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Revenue (RMB’ million)
Gross profit margin
Consolidated net (loss)/profit (RMB’ million)

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders

of the Company (RMB’ million)

Net cash generated from operating activities
(RMB’ million)

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings
per share (RMB cents)

Proposed final dividend per share
(HK cents)

Percentage

2015 2014 change
20155 2014% EHEIHL
WA(BBARE) 8,594.4 10,038.7 (14.4%)
EFE 10.6% 14.7% (4.1%)
BHEF(BR) FIB(EEARE) (167.7) 51.1 (>100.0%)
ANEIRRIENL (E5E) H5F
(ABARE) (192.3) 25.6 (>100.0%)
REEBELZFRS
(BEBARE) 15.3 85.2 (82.0%)
SREAREE(EE) /BF
(ARES) (3.10) 0.41 (>100.0%)
BRERAHRE
(L) 0.0 10.0 (100.0%)




OPERATION PHILOSOPHY
Technology leads markets
Services create value

ENTERPRISE MOTTO

To do things honestly

To treat people sincerely

To understand causes and results
To unify theory and practice

CORPORATE MISSION
For the country

For the customers

For the employees

For the shareholders

MANAGEMENT CONCEPTS
Sustainable Development
Circular Improvement

Statistics Analysis

Continuous Improvement
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PRODUCT CONCEPTS
Service

Quality

Cost

WEALTH CONCEPTS
Wealth means responsibility

TALENT CONCEPTS
Judging people on his performance
Talent comes first

MARKETING CONCEPTS

Identify the needs of the customers
Create value for the customers

Provide best services to the customers

CULTURE CONCEPTS
Respect

Communicate
Understand

Integrate

Pursue

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES
Independent Brand

Independent Intellectual Property
Independent Marketing Network
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A tree has to strike a firm root before it can flourish. A
river has to have a fully dredged source before it can flow
unceasingly far.

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Yuanda China”), | hereby present to
you the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015
(the “Reporting Period”).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the operation revenue of
the Group was approximately RMB8,594.4 million, representing a
drop of about 14.4% as compared to 2014. In 2015, the Group
was awarded with 126 new projects with an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB8,867 million. For the year ended 31
December 2015, the remaining contract value of backlog of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB20,913 million, which could
support a sustainable development of the Group for the next 2-3
years.

With respect to the domestic market, China’s macroeconomic
development slowed down in 2015 with the annual GDP growth of
6.9%. In 2015, the total investment in real estate development in
China was approximately RMB9.6 trillion, representing an increase
of only about 1.0% as compared to last year, and the growth rate
is much lower as compared to past years. The total investment
in non-residential real estate which closely related to the curtain
wall industry was about RMB3.1 trillion, up by approximately 2.3%
as compared with that of last year. With respect to the overseas
markets, North America and Asia-pacific markets maintained a
steady growth; the European market was recovering slowly; while
the Middle East, Australia and other markets shrank significantly. As
for the Group, the operating environment was facing a certain degree
of challenges.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Under the background of slower development of domestic real
estate market and gradual recovery of overseas markets, the Group
will continue to take a relatively prudent operating strategy. While
evaluating the new orders comprehensively, the Group will also
strengthen the control of existing orders, the budget management
and cost control, as well as the collection of receivables and foreign
exchange risk management, to ensure healthy and sustainable
development of the Group’s curtain wall business. Meanwhile, the
Group will adapt to the changes in the market, and strengthen the
expansion of North America and Asia-pacific markets strategically.

The Group will continue to strengthen its internal control standard,
implementing the information management system in an all-round
way, with an objective to improve the efficiency of management,
strengthen the construction of team, implement effective employee
incentive mechanism, and improve per capita performance, so as
to ensure orderly and efficient operation of various businesses of
the Group. The Group has been holding the operation principle of
“Technology leads the market; Service creates values” and in the
future, it will still constantly devote itself to technology and product
innovation, and create self-owned brands and intellectual property
rights, so as to provide the customers with excellent products and
services.

It is expected that the China’s economy will remain in a period of
transformation and upgrading of industrial structure in the upcoming
future. Traditional industries with over capacity will shrink gradually,
however, the emerging industries, represented by new technology,
new material and service industry, will usher in a golden period of
development. Curtain wall industry will step into integration period,
during which large scale companies with high-quality will outstand
through the competition. Also, the Group will actively seize the
opportunities and seek for favorable investment opportunities to
accelerate the industry integration and the strategic transformation
of enterprise and create more values for shareholders.
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On behalf of the Board, | hereby expressed my heartfelt appreciation
to all shareholders and partners who care and support Yuanda
China and all employees of the Group who made great efforts and
contribution. The Group will continue to implement the operational
philosophy of “Technology leads the market, Services create value”
and upholds the corporate spirit of “To do things honestly, To treat
people sincerely, To understand causes and results, To unify theory
and practice”. With these in mind, the Group will modernize its
workforce to talent who will act responsibly, in good faith and repay
the society. Based on this, the Group will prudently operate, pioneer
and innovate so as to bring sound results for seniors and friends
who have been giving selfless support to Yuanda China and best
investment returns for shareholders as a whole.

Kang Baohua
Chairman

30 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a provider of one-stop integrated curtain wall
solutions covering the design of curtain wall systems, procurement
of materials, fabrication and assembly of curtain wall products,
performance testing, installation of products at construction
sites and after-sales services. End users of the Group’s curtain
wall solutions are mainly located in domestic and overseas non-
residential and infrastructure development areas, such as office
buildings of government authorities or headquarters of leading
companies from various industries, hotels, shopping centers,
convention, cultural and art centers, stadiums, exhibition halls,
airports, train stations, hospitals and universities.

The Company believes that it is one of the world leading curtain
wall providers with a comprehensive product portfolio. The Group’s
integrated elements of new materials, new technology, alternative
energy, environmental protection and energy conservation into
curtain wall products through much sophisticated research and
development (“R&D”), design, production and installation works
to further develop different types of curtain wall products and be
committed to realizing the idea of “Low carbon, Function, Safety”
in curtain wall products. Such products include double-skin,
photovoltaic, ecologically friendly, video and membrane structure
types of curtain walls. The Group also provides ancillary products to
complement its curtain wall systems, including skylights, metal roofs,
canopy systems, shading systems, balustrade and breast board
systems, fire door, roll-up door and energy-saving aluminum alloy
doors and windows.

During the year 2015, the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company was approximately RMB192.3 million (31 December
2014: a profit of approximately RMB25.6 million). In 2015, the Group
incurred its first-ever whole year operation loss since the listing
of its shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in 2011, which was mainly due to the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) economic downturn and the sluggish
construction industry demand which in turn (i) decreased revenue
and gross profit margin by lengthening period of construction
projects; and (i) increased the amount of impairment of receivables
under the prudent and cautious principle during the Reporting
Period.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥KOEE)
Newly-awarded projects (excluding VAT) HEETIR(T2IEER)

During the year 2015, the Group was awarded with 126 new projects 2015% » REFEHAZETIZ1261H @ 4
with an aggregate amount of approximately RMB8,867 million, BHARES867THBEIT @ 201455
representing a decline of approximately RMB3,328 miillion or 27.3% TARYE3328B 8B TK27.3% ° 2R
as compared to 2014. The main reason for the decline was that, in EAEHPRKE NTED - BiE
light of downward pressure on the PRC economy, the construction R FE O R (PRETEERIFET
industry demand was continuously decreasing as a result of the B UARBEBEAREERANEER
declining growth rate of investment in real estate. Moreover, to avoid B ANQRRET AHE/ N OEERHLE
the credit risks from domestic customers, the Group took a more KRB - EE[OE N E T 200 FE s E
prudent and cautious operating strategy and avoided or forewent TS ETFHRYET BB RS o

those projects with less favourable payment terms or lower profit

margin.
2015 2014
20155 2014 £
Number Number
of projects RMB’ million of projects RMB’ million
HEHE ARKEHER EHEEE AREKBEST
Domestic A 97 5,165 163 7,980
Overseas pEZN 29 3,702 26 4,215
Total S5 126 8,867 189 12,195

In light of the trend of depreciation of RMB against USD and the ERNARBHEHETLREBZUKREING
gradual recovery of overseas real estate market, it is expected HMEMSZHEE  BHRAARTKNE
that the Company will seek development opportunities in overseas INTISSHMRES -

market.



BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Newly-awarded projects (excluding VAT) (continued)

iscussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

EBEmE(E)

A TR (TEEER)(F)

Details of the certain landmark projects obtained by the Group in AEE 2015 FEFHEME THIZHEIAEB

2015 are as follows:

Domestic:

Project name

HEEH

Shenzhen Upper Hills
REE
Shanghai International Financial Center
FBEEREE RO
Suzhou Gym Center
EMEBEHR L
Chongqlng Chinese Entrepreneurs Association
BEEFER
Guorui Plaza
B3 & 5
Walton Group
R\
Shenzhen Shuibei Jewelry Building
FYKEHRBERE
Guangzhou Baiyun Airport
BN B B
Maritime Museum
B
Yanchang Petroleum Research Center
FERAHEHRAH L
Jinan Life Insurance Building

BREASAE

mF :
BRIEAE :
Category of Approximate
project utilization Contract Value
HA ARER BHREENR
RMB’ million
AREBET
Commercial Complex 235.0
[HEZS
Financial Center 223.0
RO
Communal Facilities 192.0
PR
Headquarters Building 165.2
mERE
Commercial Complex 159.2
[BEZoa=y:
Headquarters Building 142.0
HBERIE
Headquarters Building 138.6
mERE
Communal Facilities 116.5
NHE
Communal Facilities 108.3
PR
Headquarters Building 108.2
mEpRE
Headquarters Building 107.6
BERE

I'S
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Newly-awarded projects (excluding VAT) (continued)

Overseas:

Project name

HEEH

Jewel Project, Australia

BNRE

Riverside Park, U.S.

SR B 2K [

Djakarta MENARA ASTRA, Indonesia
E[JJE 7 102 MENARA ASTRA

Los Angeles Metropolitan, U.S.
BRI AEE

Stadium in Ujpest Budapest FC, Australia
BN METEE 5 5

Malaysia Stara Building, Malaysia

S 2R P g FTHTIE R

Robinson Towers, Singapore
N B AR

Sequis Centre Tower, Indonesia

ElferzEsr

EBEmE(E)

A TR (TEEER)(F)

w/HMER

Category of Approximate

project utilization Contract Value

HE ARER BHREENR

RMB’ million

AREBET

Resort 472.8

RS

Communal Facilities 352.7

NHZRE

Headquarters Building 196.2

BERE

Commercial Complex 178.0

[EE S

Communal Facilities 155.9

NHZRE

Headquarters Building 128.6

HBERE

Headquarters Building 121.2

BEAE

Headquarters Building 109.9

B



BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Backlog

As at 31 December 2015, the remaining contract value of backlog
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB20,913 million (31
December 2014: approximately RMB22,209 million), which could
support a sustainable development of the Group for the next 2-3

iscussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

EBEE(E)
AEIAR

R2015F 128318 AEBEARTIA
E&£5BHAEARE20,9135ET(20145F
12 A31 B HIARK22200E8T) ' &
INAREBRKR2-3FNERRERAENX

years. 1 o
2015 2014
20154 20144
Remaining contract value Remaining contract value
#BTEEEE HRTEREE
Number Number
of projects RMB’ million of projects RMB’ million

HEBE AR%EBEER EHEHE ARKBET
Domestic Al 399 12,261 396 18,525
Overseas EZA) 100 8,652 87 8,684
Total At 499 20,913 483 22,209
Major technology achievements and awards F ZRMAR R AR 4RI

The Group adopts the strategy of “energy saving, information
technology, intelligent, new technology, new materials” as its future
technical development direction, and pioneers the development
trend of the industry based on its technical expertise and extensive
research and development experience.

In 2015, the Group obtained 37 patents, including 31 patents for
invention and 6 patents for utility model. At 31 December 2015, the
total number of patents owned by the Group was 965.

AEBIA TEIREIRIR « 281 - HRefk
BT~ FATR ] AR BRI A
TBAE R B B TR A B ) B B AR AR
SIRTTRHIRRERBE -

015 F AL EMMEFHFEITIH - Hp
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201512 A31H - AEBEHEEHREEF
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BEER R DT

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

In 2015, for domestic market, China’s macro economy stepped into
the new normal of growth shift and structural transformation, with a
relatively slow growth of GDP at about 6.9%, hitting a new low for 25
years. In light of the overall sluggish market demand, excess capacity
of traditional industries, staple commodities continued to run at a low
level, and the overall economic situation was challenging. In 2015,
the total amount of the national real estate development investment
was about RMB9.6 trillion, up by only approximately 1.0% as
compared with that of last year, among which, the total investment of
non-residential real estate closely linked with the curtain wall industry
was about RMBS3.1 trillion, up by approximately 2.3% as compared
with that of last year. The inventory level was still severely high in
domestic real estate market, and the growth rate of investment
amount maintained at a low single digit, forming a negatively strong
impact on the Group’s business. For overseas market, the U.S.
economy experienced a strong rebound, while the recovery of
European economy was slightly weak, and the Asia Pacific region
maintained at a steady pace. Affected by the continued decline
of international oil prices, the economy of resource countries in
the Middle East was facing a deflation risk where governments’
finance collapsed, resulting in a significant reduction in infrastructure
investment. The Group’s business in Asia Pacific and Americas grew
up during the Reporting Period, and it is expected more business
will be strategically expanded in these two regions in the upcoming
future.

Facing the complex domestic and international economic situation,
the Group will continue to implement the steady and prudent
business strategy, and strive to improve the level of internal
management, strengthen budget management and cost control,
strictly control the project risk, and implement effective risk
management measures to ensure the main business of curtain
wall would develop in a healthy and sustainable way. At the same
time, the Group will also continuously adhere and respond to the
changes in the real-market situation, actively grasp the new direction
of the national policy and industrial restructuring, with an objective
to be able to identify new business investment opportunities in the
emerging industry and achieve strategic transformation to create
more values for its shareholders.

XBERE

20154 - IAMISB A E - FERBLE
AL RRGE - ABEEIETERE - GDP
HRELHEIE  46.9% + BI25F KH
Ko ERERBMSRESS  BREFXER
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EHEMGEGFKARE  REBER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For 2015, the Group’s revenue decreased by approximately
RMB1,444.3 million or approximately 14.4% compared with last
year to approximately RMB8,594.4 million (2014: approximately
RMB10,038.7 million). The main reason for the decline was that,
in light of the slowdown in domestic real estate investment, the
Group took a relatively prudent and cautious operation strategy and
construction progress slowed down as a result. Among the revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2015 is:

1. The revenue from domestic market decreased by
approximately RMB1,808.0 million or approximately 22.9%
compared with last year to approximately RMB6,101.6 million
(2014: approximately RMB7,909.6 million), contributing
approximately 71.0% of the total revenue of the Group; and

2. The revenue from overseas market increased by approximately
RMB363.7 million or approximately 17.1% from last year
to approximately RMB2,492.8 million (2014: approximately
RMB2,129.1 million), contributing approximately 29.0% of
the total revenue of the Group. While the domestic revenue
dropped, the overseas revenue grew up, especially in the
markets of Asia Pacific and Americas.

Cost of sales

In 2015, the Group’s cost of sales decreased by approximately
RMB876.4 million or 10.2% compared with last year to
approximately RMB7,681.7 million (2014: approximately
RMB8,558.1 million). With the decrease in revenue, the related costs
of sales were accordingly decreased.

BEERWR DT
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20156 AEEMEXERANBAR
¥8,504.48 & L(2014F : Y AR K
10,038.7 B& L) * H2014FRIPHAR
¥ 1,444 3B ETLHLI14.4% - T EFZH
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gross profit and gross profit margin

In 2015, the Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately
RMB568.0 million or approximately 38.4% to approximately
RMB912.6 million (2014: approximately BMB1,480.6 million).

The Group’s gross profit margin decreased by approximately 4.1%
to approximately 10.6% (2014: approximately 14.7%). Among
which:

1. In 2015, the Group’s domestic gross profit margin decreased
by approximately 3.1% compared with last year to 13.3%
(2014: 16.4%), but representing an increase of 0.5% from the
first half of 2015 (80 June 2015: 12.8%). The decrease in the
Group’s domestic gross profit margin was mainly attributable
to the decline in the market growth, the increase in industry
competition, as well as the increase in cost as a result of the
slowdown of the construction schedule. The gross margin level
of all regions in the domestic market declined except west
China region, of which the North and the South China areas
recorded more significant decreases; and

2. In 2015, the Group’s overseas gross profit margin decreased
by approximately 4.4% from last year to 4.2% (2014: 8.6%).
The decrease in the Group’s overseas gross profit margin was
mainly because of the low profitability in the Middle East and
Australia, which were in a state of loss, resulting in a lowered
overseas gross profit margin.

Other income

Other income of the Group primarily comprised of government
grants, rental revenue from operating leases, net income from
provision of repairs and maintenance services and net gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment and land use rights.

In 2015, the Group’s other income increased by approximately
RMB134.7 million to approximately RMB166.2 million (2014:
approximately RMB31.5 million). The increase in the Group’s other
income was mainly due to the one-off net gain on disposal of
the property, plant and equipment and land use rights during the
Reporting Period.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Selling expenses

In 2015, the Group’s selling expenses decreased by approximately
RMB4.9 million or approximately 2.8% to approximately RMB170.6
million (2014: approximately RMB175.5 million).

In 2015, selling expenses of the Group accounted for approximately
2.0% of the operating revenue of the Group (2014: 1.7%).

Administrative expenses

In 2015, the administrative expenses of the Group increased
by approximately RMB35.9 million or approximately 3.4%
to approximately RMB1,076.6 million (2014: approximately
RMB1,040.7 million). This was mainly due to the facts that: (i) as a
result of the headcount optimization policy implemented over the
past few years, the staff cost of administrative staff declined, while
at the same time; (ii) the Group continued to maintain the principle
of prudence, and the provision for bad debts increased by RMB90.1
million to RMB209.1 million as compared with last year, resulting in
the increase of administrative expenses as compared with last year.

In 2015, administrative expenses accounted for approximately
12.5% of the operating revenue of the Group (2014: 10.4%).

Finance costs

In 2015, finance costs recorded a net income of RMB1.1 million
(2014: a finance cost of approximately RMB234.4 million). This
was mainly due to foreign exchange gains recognised during the
Reporting Period. Among the finance costs: 1) the expenditure of
interest and bank charges was about RMB238.1 million; and 2)
the net exchange gain was about RMB226.6 million. The decrease
in finance costs recognised during the year reflected the foreign
currency risk management capability of the Group’s overseas
operations was improved.

In 2015, finance costs accounted for 0.01% of the operating revenue
of the Group (2014: 2.3%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Income tax

In 2015, the Group’s income tax was approximately RMBO0.4 million
(2014: approximately RMB10.4 million).

Consolidated net (loss)/profit

In 2015, the consolidated net loss of the Group was approximately
RMB167.7 million (2014: a net profit of approximately RMB51.1
million), representing a decrease of RMB218.8 million compared with
that of last year.

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

In 2015, the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
decreased by approximately RMB217.9 million to approximately
RMB192.3 million (2014 a profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of approximately RMB25.6 million).

The basic and diluted loss per share was approximately RMB3.10
cents (2014: a basic and diluted earnings per share of approximately
RMBO0.41 cents).

Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s net current assets
were approximately RMB1,798.2 million (31 December 2014:
approximately RMB2,283.0 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB3,006.8 million (31 December
2014 approximately RMB2,662.5 million), mainly denominated in
RMB, AUD, USD and British Pound Sterling (“GBP”).

Bank loans and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total bank loans amounted
to approximately RMB4,057.1 million (31 December 2014:
approximately RMB3,320.0 million). The bank loans as at 31
December 2015 were denominated in RMB and USD of which
approximately RMB3,757.1 million were repayable within one year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Bank loans and gearing ratio (continued)

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total liabilities divided by
total assets) was 78.8% (31 December 2014: 73.8%).

Turnover days of receivables/trade and bills payables/inventory

BARBRAT —F—FARAEH

anagement Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DT
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Turnover days (day) 2015 2014
AEH(XE) 20155 20144
Receivables (note 1) FEMRBR TR (HtaE 1) 306 257
Trade and bills payables (note 2) B RNRRENEE(HZ2) 288 253
Inventory (note 3) FE(#:Z3) 44 37
Notes: izt -

1. The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on the 1. FEURBRZAE R T5@IE & A A R HA

average amount of trade and bills receivables and net contract
work receivables (gross amount due from customers for contract
work less gross amount due to customers for contract work) as
at the beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by total
revenue of the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

2. The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables is
based on the average amount of trade and bills payables as at the
beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by cost of raw
materials and installation cost of the relevant period and multiplied
by 365 days.

3. The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the average
amount of inventory as at the beginning and ending of the relevant
period (net of provision) divided by cost of raw materials of the
relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of receivables were
306 days, representing an increase of 49 days as compared to 2014,
which was mainly due to the tight domestic financial market liquidity.

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of trade and bill
payables were 288 days, representing an increase of 35 days as
compared to 2014.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Turnover days of receivables/trade and bills payables/inventory
(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the net operating cash flow amounted
to approximately RMB15.3 million (2014: approximately RMB85.2
million).

Inventory and inventory turnover days

The Group’s inventories primarily consist of materials used in
fabrication of curtain wall products, including extrusions aluminum,
glass, steel and sealant.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s inventory amounted to
approximately RMB433.0 million (31 December 2014: approximately
RMB446.1 million). During the Reporting Period, the inventory
turnover days were 44 days, representing an increase of 7 days as
compared to 2014.

Capital expenditure

In 2015, the Group’s payment for capital expenditure amounted
to approximately RMB86.0 million (2014: approximately RMB47.7
million), which was mainly related to the payment on land acquisition,
construction of plant and purchase of equipment.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated in USD,
Euro, GBP, AUD and Swiss Francs. To hedge any foreign exchange
risks, the Group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts
which hedge the forecast transactions and monetary assets
denominated in foreign currencies of the Group with a net negative
fair value of approximately RMB34.2 million and a net fair value of
approximately RMB10.0 million, respectively. The Group ensures
that net exposure to currency risk arising from assets and liabilities
maintained at an acceptable level.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015
are set out in Note 32.

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank loans of approximately
RMB940.0 million were secured by property, plant and
equipment and land use rights with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB748.3 million.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on its
assets as at 31 December 2015.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of its subsidiaries and associated
companies.

Significant investment

The Group did not make any significant investments during the
period under review.

Future plans for significant investments or capital assets

The Group does not have any future plans for significant investments
or capital assets as at the date of this annual report.

Global offering and use of proceeds

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering (the “Global
Offering”) through which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares
were offered at a price of HK$1.50 per share. Net proceeds raised
were approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
17 May 2011.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Contingent liabilities (continued)

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April 2011 and the
supplementary prospectus dated 5 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”),
the Group intended to use the proceeds from the Global Offering for
expansion of its production capacity, repayment of its existing debts,
investment in research and development, expansion of its sales and
marketing network.

As at 31 December 2015, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$1,935 million of proceeds from the Global Offering (of which
expansion of production capacity: HK$492 million; repayment of
bank loans (mainly comprised the bridge loan of Standard Chartered
Bank): HK$962 million; expenses in research and development:
HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and marketing network:
HK$220 million) was utilized in accordance with the intended use as
stated in the Prospectus. It is intended that the remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$468 million will be used in accordance to the
proposed allocation as stated in the Prospectus.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 7,924 full-time employees
in total (31 December 2014: 9,445). The decrease in number
of full-time employees was a result of the Group’s headcount
optimization. The Group has sound policies of management
incentives and competitive remuneration, which align with the
interests of management, employees and shareholders’ alike.
The Group sets its remuneration policy with reference to the
prevailing market conditions and the performance of the individuals
concerned, subject to review from time to time. The components
of the remuneration package consist of basic salary, allowances,
fringe benefits including medical insurance and contributions to
pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus and
share options. The Group has also adopted a share option scheme
and a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants, including the Directors, and full-
time or part-time employee of the Group. Details of the share option
scheme and share award scheme will be available in the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties
in addition to those shown below which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be material
in the future.

Business Risk

As most of the Group’s customers are property developers or
main contractors of public infrastructure and commercial buildings,
the business and prospects of the Group heavily depend on the
performance of the construction and real estate industries, which
are cyclical and could be significantly affected by fluctuations in
economic conditions. An economic downturn in China or any
overseas market where we operate could materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Also, the industry in which the Group operates is a highly competitive
industry in which the Group’s competitors include a number of global
and China-based companies that provide products and services
similar to the Group.

Industrial Risk

As the growth of urban Fixed Assets Investment declined, the
volume of new contracts awarded dropped significantly. An
excessive supply of curtain wall products on the mainland has
sparked fierce competition. Upgrading the industry is the only way
to force small and inferior competitors to leave the market and
eventually benefit large and superior suppliers, like Yuanda. The
whole curtain wall industry will experience the period of industry
consolidation during which market correction in curtain wall sector
may lead to more opportunities for mergers and acquisitions and
asset purchases.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continueq)
Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with
every function at divisional and departmental levels. The Group
recognises that operational risks cannot be eliminated completely
and that it may not always be cost effective to do so.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their operating procedures,
limits of authority and reporting framework. The Group will identify
and assess key operational exposures from time to time and report
such risk issues to senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.

Financial Risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (BEE %), aged 62, is the founder and chairman
of the Group, and was appointed as an Executive Director on
February 26, 2010. Mr. Kang is the vice president of the Liaoning
Chamber of Commerce (EZE A RS ). Graduated from Liaoning
University (& %8 X E2) with a diploma in politics in 1984, Mr. Kang has
over 22 years of experience in the curtain wall industry and has been
responsible for the overall management and strategic development
of the Group since 1992. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Kang was
an executive director of Shenyang Strong Wind Group Company
(EF5oaREE /A T]). Since the establishment of the Company,
Mr. Kang has been involved in the management of the Company,
including business development, finance and corporate strategy
formulation. Mr. Kang is also a director of various other subsidiaries
of the Group.

Mr. Tian Shouliang (H=FR), aged 52, is the chief executive
officer of the Group and was appointed as an Executive Director
on December 18, 2010. Mr. Tian joined the Group in 1994 and has
over 21 years of experience in the curtain wall industry. From 1995
to 1997, Mr. Tian was the vice general manager in production of
Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. (EF5&
AERZETF2ABR A 7)) (“Shenyang Yuanda”), where he was involved
in curtain wall product design and managed curtain wall production
systems. From 1997 to 2008, he was the vice President of Shenyang
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Group Ltd. (&= KR EB AR A
A)) (“Yuanda Group”) where he was in charge of operations, finance
and human resources management activities. Since 2008, Mr. Tian
has been the president and a director of Shenyang Yuanda, leading
its business expansions and product development plans. Mr. Tian
graduated from Harbin Industrial University (¥ E8E T3 K2) in
1986 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering specializing in the
study of heat turbines.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Guo Zhongshan (28 &1L), aged 51, was appointed as an
Executive Director on December 18, 2010. Mr. Guo joined the
Group in 1994 and has over 21 years of experience in the curtain
wall industry. From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Guo was the chief engineer
of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for engineering design works
related to curtain wall products. From 1996 to 1997, Mr. Guo has
been the vice president of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for market
development in the PRC. Since 1997, Mr. Guo has been the vice
president of Shenyang Yuanda. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guo
was the technical director of Shenyang Strong Wind Company
(BFZ58R A 7)) from 1992 to 1993. Mr. Guo graduated from
Shenyang Aviation Industrial College (&FZAZE T2 E£057%) with
a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering in 1986 and from
Dalian Polytechnic University (A3 T A2 with a master’s degree
in mechanical engineering in 1992.

Mr. Wang Yijun (E&%), aged 47, is the vice president of the
Group, managing director of the Group’s international operations
and was appointed as an executive Director on December 18,
2010. Mr. Wang joined the Group since 1993 and has more than 22
years of experience in the curtain wall industry. From 1993 to 1998,
Mr. Wang held various managerial positions in Shenyang Yuanda
where he managed engineering design and technology works.
In 1999, Mr. Wang was the technical manager of the Shanghai
branch of Shenyang Yuanda. Since 2000, Mr. Wang has been
the general manager of the international operations of Shenyang
Yuanda, responsible for its business in overseas markets. Mr. Wang
graduated from Shenyang Aviation Industrial College (&5 i Z=
%27 ) with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering and
design in 1992. Mr. Wang is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group.

EE(E)
HITER(E)

BB IL AL - 5158 - 2010612 H 18
HEZEARITES o AN 1994 F
MAXREE  REBITEAFE21FL
B2 o FN1994 F = 1906 F + P E BIER
BRAMNEFE IR AEEERKESR
B TR2RRAT T - 1996 FE 1997 F -
HEE—BHERBEBRANEH A&
FETISREBER - 51997 FiE - 50
EE—BHETBBRANBILE - i
AREER - 2% A K 1992 F E 1993
FHIM R B 8 E A TR BT E4F -
I ER1986 FEXNBGMET X2
BT - EX{SHM TIR2 2841 - WL 1992
FEREBETIAREREHKMIEELS

fif °

IREBRE 475 AAEEEIREF
AEBBERERESHBLE - WH2010
F12A18HEZTARNITES - T4
B1993FIMAREE - NERBITERB
B2 F 4R o PA1993FE F 19984 © £
EEABBGEAZEAEERE &
BB TRRRET KB ITIE - 19994
TRERBBEKN LSS R ARIME
B o H2000F 8 TAE—HAEBGER
ABEBEBNALE  BESIMEE
7% o ERERN1902F F E N ERG M %=
TR BESHEEIRERTE LS
il FARENAEAEEETHE RGN
EEo



R BIEBRARAR —% AR

Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wang Lihui (E3Z&), aged 46, was appointed as the chief
financial officer of the Company on 20 June 2012 and was appointed
as an Executive Director on December 18, 2010. Mr. Wang joined
the Group in 1996 and has more than 22 years of experience in
accounting and finance. Mr. Wang has experience in dealing with
internal control, risk management, corporate finance and taxation
matters and is responsible for the overall management of the
Group’s financial operations. He has been involved in formulating
the Group’s budgets, remuneration and incentive schemes. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Wang was an accountant in Northeast (No.
6) Pharmaceutical Manufacturer (ER1E557SRL %) from 1992 to
1994 and the finance director of Shenyang Wumei Shopping Centre
(BE5 ) from 1995 to 1996. From 1996 to 2004, Mr. Wang
was the financial manager of Shenyang Yuanda. Since 2004, Mr.
Wang has been the chief accountant of Yuanda Group. Mr. Wang
graduated from Anhui Trade and Finance College (Z 1181 & £ %)
with a bachelor’s degree in accounting in 1992. Mr. Wang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Lei (3R ), aged 43, since February 2013, he acted
as vice President of Shenyang Yuanda, one of the subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2002 and had
over 13 years of experience in curtain wall industry. Before joining
the Group, from 1994 to 2000, Mr. Zhang held various managerial
positions in Northeast Refractory Plant, including vice director in
charge of production and equipment and director of equipment
department in No.4 branch of Northeast Refractory Plant. From 2001
to 2002, Mr. Zhang acted as a management intern in Japanese YKK
company. From 2002 to 2005, Mr.Zhang held various key positions
including quality control and technology minister in Northeast
Branch of Shenyang Yuanda. He acted as a designer in Zhongdong
Branch of Shenyang Yuanda from 2005 to 2006. From 2006 to
2008, he acted as chief designer in Dubai Branch of Shenyang
Yuanda, responsible for the Group’s ACC44 residential buildings,
imperial buildings and commercial bay administration building
and other projects. From 2008 to 2012, Mr. Zhang held various
positions in Shenyang Yuanda, including assistant to chief engineer
in International Operation of Shenyang Yuanda, deputy director of
International Curtain Wall Manufacturer under Shenyang Yuangda,
factory controller and factory president of Shenyang Yuanda. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Shenyang Electrical Industrial School with a
diploma in electrical and mechanical engineering in 1994.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (FEME), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr. Poon
obtained a Master’s degree in international accounting, a Bachelor’s
degree in laws and a Bachelor’s degree in business studies. He
was awarded a postgraduate diploma in laws by the University of
London. He is a fellow member and an associate instructor of the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS”) and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He is also a member
of the Technical Consultation Panel and Professional Development
Committee of HKICS. He now serves as an executive director, vice-
president and company secretary of Huabao International Holdings
Limited. Mr. Poon has over 26 years of experience in regulatory
affairs, investment banking and listed company management.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of the
following companies: Sunac China Holdings Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 1918), Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
(Hong Kong stock code: 292), Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited
(Hong Kong stock code: 1249), TUS International Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 872), AUX International Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 2080) and Sany Heavy Equipment International
Holdings Company Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 631). He retired
from his position as an independent non-executive director in Ningbo
Port Company Limited and Guangzhou Shipyard International
Company Limited upon expiry of his term of office in May 2014 for
the two companies.

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#Z#8), aged 46, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April, 2011. Mr.
Woo has over 20 years of experience in the accounting and financial
services industry. He began his career as a certified accountant
at Arthur Andersen & Co where he qualified. Subsequently, he
was employed in senior positions as an investment banker at ING,
CITIC Securities and Credit Suisse. Mr. Woo holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree. He is a member of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Woo has served as
an executive director and chief financial officer of TUS International
Limited (HKSE: 872) since September 2015. He is also a non-
executive director of IRC Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1029),
and an independent non-executive director of SMIT Holdings Limited
(HKSE: 2239).
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny (¥ #&), aged 43, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr.
Pang is a member of each of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Pang
is the managing partner of Messrs. Pang & Co., in association with
Loeb & Loeb LLP. Between 1997 and 2009, Mr. Pang practiced
as a lawyer with several international law firms in Hong Kong and
Sydney. Mr. Pang received his bachelor’s degree in laws (honors)
from Bond University, Australia, in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang obtained
his Graduate Diploma in Legal Practice and master’s degree in laws
from The College of Law, Sydney and the University of New South
Wales, Australia, respectively. He has been admitted as a legal
practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia
since 1997 and as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
2009. He is a member of both the Law Society of New South
Wales, Australia and the Law Society of Hong Kong. Currently,
Mr. Pang is also an independent non-executive Director of the
following companies: China Regenerative Medicine International
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8158) and Goldenmars Technology
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 3638).

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no change to any
information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(a) to (e) and (g) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2015. All
Directors are not involved in any matters concerning Rule 13.51(2)(h)
to (v) of the Listing Rules.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip (R 5 &), aged 39, was appointed as the
company secretary and authorized representative of the Company
on 20 June 2012 and has over 10 years of experience in corporate
services field. He was an auditor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from 2000 to 2001. Since 2001, Mr. Yu has been the Principal of
the Corporate and China Services Division of Fung, Yu & Co. CPA
Limited. Mr. Yu has also been the company secretary and/or the
authorized representative of China National Materials Co. Ltd. (Hong
Kong stock code: 01893), Beijing Media Corporation Ltd. (Hong
Kong stock code: 01000) and Vale S.A. (Hong Kong stock code:
06210, 06230), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong,
since 2009, 2010 and 2010, respectively. Mr. Yu graduated from the
University of Toronto with a bachelor’s degree in commerce in 2000
and from the University of London with a bachelor’s degree in law
in 2005. He is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Certified Practicing Accountants of Australia and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Xie Haizhuang (#78iR), aged 48, is the chief engineer of
Shenyang Yuanda. Mr. Xie joined the Group in 1995. From 1995
to 2002, Mr. Xie held positions including technical designer and
technical manager, dealing with the technical aspects of curtain
wall projects. He has worked on the technical design of proposals
for bidding major projects. Since 2002, Mr. Xie was involved in the
Group’s corporate technical development management. Graduating
from Huadong Industrial College (2 % T 2Fx) in 1990, Mr. Xie holds
a bachelor’s degree in mechanical construction design.

BREEAR

REEHRE 395 ° N2012F6 A20H
BERITAEARRNARWEURRER
= REERBESEFBHI0FLR -
%1 2000 F 2 2001 FHEIEE) « BI=R
SETRNE S FTERTED o B 2001 48 -
RAEE—BEEEBIMNRG LGRS
T P B BR 2 ) 1 28 & 7 B9 AR 745 B P 48
BS © §2009 2010 & 2010 F#E + R4
Mo REEFEFMBROBRAG(ES
IRERGE:01893) @ Ik BEBHERMNDERA
B (BEBRZERGR : 01000) FLANT AR
B(BEBRENSR:06210 1 06230) =R &
BEM AR ABIWE R/ FIRERE -
RAENR2000FEXERZMERE - B
SEEELBA - WH2005F2EN R
HKRE  BUSERBELEN - RAZXH
AMEFHAAE  BNSHMAERSE

BEFMAEEE -

BB EE 4855 BEBEAEREL
T2HT o BELEN 19095 FEMAKRER - 7
1005 F £2002F * A EBEEZME
B BIERMRETA R - R
EREEHENEMEE FEaEE:SR
EMRMRET - ARBEEEIEE - B
20027 @ BEESLEREEMNDER
MEREIRE - A ER 1990 FRENE
RIS HERMERRAELEA -



BRPEERAERAF —F—IEFER

Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate governance principles
emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective internal
controls and accountability to shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has adopted
and complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices regularly
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance with the objective of enhancing shareholders’
value including setting and approving the Company’s strategic
implementation, considering substantial investments, reviewing the
Group’s financial performance and developing and reviewing the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance. The Board
has delegated to the chief executive officer, of whom the directors
also undertake, and through him, to the senior management the
authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities (continued)

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, membership of the Board is
made up of nine members in total, with six executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the
Board is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua Chairman

Mr. Tian Shouliang Chief executive officer

Mr. Guo Zhongshan

Mr. Wang Yijun

Mr. Wang Lihui Chief financial officer

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors
are expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the members of the Board are disclosed
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report. None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees of the Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship) between any
member of the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has considered a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments are based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits of the
selected candidates and their contribution to the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are carried out by different individuals and have been
clearly defined in writing.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the chief
executive officer is Mr. Tian Shouliang. The positions of chairman
and chief executive officer are held by separate persons in order to
preserve independence and a balance of views and judgments. With
the support of the senior management, the chairman is responsible
for ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings. The chief executive officer focuses
on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board. The chief executive officer is in charge of
the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The chief
executive officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the organizational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a service contract for
a term of three years, and the appointment may be terminated by not
less than one month’s written notice. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has been appointed for a term of one year and
the appointment may be terminated by not less than three months’
written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new director appointed by the Board to fill a
causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for reelection by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee established on 12 April
2011 is to be responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

rporate Governance Report
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BOARD MEETINGS
Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

The Company’s senior management, including chief executive
officer, chief financial officer and company secretary, attend all
regular Board meetings and where necessary, other Board and
committee meetings, to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory and regulatory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking
and keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and final versions are open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued)

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the year ended 31 December 2015, six regular Board
meetings were held for reviewing and approving the financial and
operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.

The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and the annual general
meeting for the financial year of 2014 held on 2 June 2015 are set

porate Governance Report
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out below: FEERENZIAOT ¢
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERE EEREE
Annual

Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Name of Directors Board Committee =~ Committee Committee Meeting
EEng EEg REZEE FMEEE ERZEE REAEAS
Kang Baohua 6/6 11 - - 11
Tian Shouliang 6/6 = 11 = 11
R
Guo Zhongshan 6/6 - - - 11
2|
Wang Yijun 6/6 - - - 11
IEF
Wang Lihui 6/6 - - - 11
TE
Zhang Lei 6/6 - - - 11
K&
Poon Chiu Kwok 6/6 1/1 - 2/2 1/1
&RE
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 6/6 = 11 22 11
FiERES
Pang Chung Fai, Benny 6/6 11 11 2/2 11
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company would provide to each newly appointed director or
alternative director an induction package covering the summary
of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of a Hong Kong
listed company, the Group’s businesses and the statutory
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company as well
as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure that he/
she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Group also provided briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the directors’ knowledge and skills from time to time.
Further, the Company continuously updates directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2015 are as follow:

Directors =
Executive Directors HITEE
Kang Baohua FREZE
Tian Shouliang H<FR
Guo Zhongshan AL
Wang Yijun EFxE
Wang Lihui FrE
Zhang Lei IR ER
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHITES
Poon Chiu Kwok i
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond EER
Pang Chung Fai, Benny TR

5T

EXANBERFARELE  A2REE
EX2AFEERER  UBRMEE
WERMB NI - ARBHRGEIE
TESHEECESFREHEAREN &N
MEFB LT AREZNBRENREME
AEEXHR LT RBIEENEERE
BERRARRRESI A - ARETRE
DEREN EMRAREMBRERRKT
MBENMEE - ARETBRTHNER
HMBIRE  UMTREERENEES
R BHE o WHN - ARB A RES
S EMBRA R EMERRE ZRKERK
R ARRETHRE  LMARRE
B RFEFEEIRTRIMBA -

EERHE015F 12831 BILFELE
BIIRFFBOT

Types of training
EINER

AB,C,D
AB,D
AB,
AB,C
AB
AB,D

B,C
B,C
B,C



DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

Notes:
A. Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)

B. Reading materials relating to general business, real estate
development, directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

C. Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)

D. Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Appendix 10”) and
devised its own code of conduct regarding directors’ dealings in
the Company’s securities (the “Company Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and
the Company Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
Company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the chief executive officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full support of the chief
executive officer and the senior management for the discharge of its
responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of senior management of
the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the directors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note
8 to the Financial Statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the
Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available to shareholders
on the Company’s website. Each of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Kang Baohua (chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and Mr. Pang Chung
Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning of directors, and
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and
made recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least one-
third of the Board;

° assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

o made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of Directors; and

. made recommendations to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, ethnicity, professional experience and
knowledge.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. One Nomination Committee
meetings was held during the year under review.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (chairman), Mr. Tian Shouliang and Mr.
Pang Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the directors’ remuneration and other benefits.
The remuneration of all directors is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level of their
remuneration and compensation are reasonable. Their written terms
of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the CG Code.
Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the Remuneration
Committee would make available its terms of reference, explaining its
role and the authority delegated to it by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior management by
band in the annual reports; and

o conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its performance
as it may consider appropriate.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond and Mr. Pang
Chung Fai, Benny, all of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
and to provide advice and comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

° reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2014 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2015 as well as significant issues on financial
control, internal control and risk management systems;

o discussed the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion included the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions; and

° developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and made recommendations to the
Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the Company
performing the corporate governance duties as below:

o to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

o to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements of inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the
Group. The internal auditor and senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors on a regular
basis, and reports to the Audit Committee on any findings and
measures to address the variances and identified risks.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai of Yu & Co. CPA Limited, the external company
secretary service provider of the Company, has been engaged by the
Company as its company secretary since 30 June 2012. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Jason Li, the vice
president of the Finance and Securities Department of the Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 29 to 34 of this annual
report. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the company
secretary undertook over 32 hours of professional training to update
his skills and knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the Company
is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 87 to 88.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2015
amounted to approximately RMB8.8 million. The external auditors of
the Company also provided tax transfer pricing services to the Group
with remuneration of RMB1.0 million approximately.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting (including making proposals/moving a resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting)

° Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, including making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.

o Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for the purpose of making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1121, 11/F
No.1 Block, Grand Central Plaza, 138 Shatin Rural Committee
Road, Shatin, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

° The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, the agenda proposed to be included the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the extraordinary
general meeting, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned.

° If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board
has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any outcome to
the contrary and fails to proceed to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of associations, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”
are for reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The
information does not represent and should not be regarded as legal
or other professional advice from the Company to the shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the
Company. The Company disclaims all liabilities for losses incurred
by its shareholders in reliance on any contents of this sub-section
headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.

Making enquires to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the principal place of business of the Company

in Hong Kong by post through the following means:

Telephone number:  (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic &
Technological Development Area,
Shenyang, 110027, China

Attention: Investor Relations Department

By email: investors@yuandacn.com
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s articles of association is also available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Investors Communication Policy

The Company regards the communication with institutional investors
as important means to enhance the transparency of the Company
and collect views and feedbacks from institutional investors. To
promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.yuandacn.com, where up-to-date information and updates
on the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are posted are available for public access. During the year under
review, the directors and senior management of the Company
participated in numerous road shows and investment conferences.
In addition, the Company also maintains regular communication with
the media through press conferences, news releases to the media
and on the Company’s website, and answering enquiries from the
media.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders face-to-
face dialogue with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and, where applicable, the
chairman of the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2015 will be held on 2 June 2016. The
notice of annual general meeting will be sent to shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the annual general meeting.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 of the
Group.

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of one-stop
integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet the
technical specifications and performance requirements of their
projects. The analysis of the revenue of the Group for the year is set
out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year under review and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and outlook
of the Company’s business, possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing and important events affecting the Company
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2015 are provided
in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 11
and the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 12 to 28 of this annual report. An account of the Company’s
relationships with its key stakeholders is included in the paragraph
headed “Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and Customers”
of the report of the Directors on page 58 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2015 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 12 to 28 of this annual report.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company
are provided in the paragraph headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance” of the report of the Directors on pages 84 to 86 of this
annual report.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
financial condition of the Company and the Group as at that date are
set out in the Financial Statements on pages 89 to 207.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the year are set
out in Note 28(c) to the Financial Statements.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any annual dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015, subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 2 June 2016 (the “Annual
General Meeting”).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividend payment.

BOOK CLOSURE PERIOD AND RECORD DATE

For the purpose of determining who will be eligible to attend and
vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Friday, 27 May 2016 to Thursday,
2 June 2016 (both days inclusive), during which time no transfer
of shares will be registered. To ensure that the shareholders are
entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the
shareholders must deliver their duly stamped instruments of transfer,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, to the Group’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 26 May 2016 for registration of the relevant
transfer.
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Report of the Board of Directors

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2015 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity of the Financial Statements. Details of movements
in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in Note
28(a) to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution of dividends to
the shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Associations, and with the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividend may be declared and paid out of share premium account or
any other fund or account which can be authorized for this propose.
As at 31 December 2015, the distributable reserves of the Company
were RMB574.0 million (31 December 2014: RMB1,063.8 million).
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note
28(e) to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

The changes in property, plant and equipments of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 12 to the
Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the Group’s five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 10.4%
and 28.2% of the Group’s total purchase, respectively. The
percentage of revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 3.4% and 12.2% of the Group’s total revenue,
respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors or his/her close associates and none of the
shareholders possessing over 5% of the interest in the share capital
of the Company possessed any interest in the abovementioned
suppliers and customers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture.
The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate
and long-term goals. To maintain its market competitiveness within
the industry, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards
and high quality products to its customers. During the year under
review, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year and as of the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)

Tian Shouliang (Chief Executive Officer)
Guo Zhongshan

Wang Yijun

Wang Lihui (Chief Financial Officer)
Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

Poon Chiu Kwok
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
forth in the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

BES HERKEF ZENEE

AEERD BEERKMNESEE -
AEBREEZFNOFYEE - AR
SIXHEESR - AEBTEHREREREN
FBEE - W R EMIBIREMNEL S
ZHFHE -

AEBEBIREERNAEPBEANX
b AEBETAR  BEREBHLEFRF
FREBEREAR  YRAERKNHEE
EZRRRER - RERTEANTISE
Fh ARBEURETHREPRKIR
SEHENERRBER REBEFER
AEFERBERR/HFF 2MIREE
AMEAREAL L

=

FARBEAREBHBHIENEETESN
T

HITES

FREE(LE)

W ~F R (7TEA#R%L)
AL

ITEE
IVE(EEMEE)
RE

BYIFATES
YRGB
LB
ZHiE

EENSEEEABNBREFBHNA
BEEZRSEBEEAR| —#F -



SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for the executive Directors and
non-executive Directors are set out under the section headed
“Appointment and Re-election of Directors” of the Corporate
Governance Report. There was no service contract entered by the
Company and any Directors to be re-elected in the coming annual
general meeting stipulating that the Company may not terminate the
appointment within one year without compensation payment (other
than the statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the
CG Code, Mr. Kang Baohua, Mr. Guo Zhongshan and Mr. Wang
Yijun will retire at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.
Please refer to Note 8 to the Financial Statements for details of
the remuneration of Company’s directors for the year ended 31
December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 29 to the Financial
Statements and in the section “Connected transactions” below,
there was no other significant contract with any member of the
Group as the contracting party and in which the Directors of the
Company possessed direct or indirect substantial interests, and
which was still valid on the year end date or any time during the year
under review and related to the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

The Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, through Best Outlook Limited
(“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited (‘Neo Pioneer”), owns
in aggregate approximately 53.37% of the total mumber of shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual report. Mr.
Kang Baohua, Best Outlook and Neo Pioneer are the controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also owns 100%
interest in Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. (“Yuanda Singapore”) through Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Group Ltd. (“Yuanda Group”), which is owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua. Yuanda Singapore is primarily engaged in curtain wall works
and trading as well as investment holding. Although the Company
has established a wholly owned subsidiary in Singapore to carry
out curtain wall contracting projects, the ability to contract for large-
scale public curtain wall projects in Singapore is dependent on local
contracting experience. Given the lack of direct local contracting
experience, the Group has been cooperating with Yuanda Singapore
on the contracting of large scale public curtain wall projects in
Singapore during the last five years and will continue to supply
curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore until the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiary will be able to undertake such projects in
Singapore on its own. Please see the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in the Prospectus for details. For the aforesaid
purpose, Yuanda Singapore has been excluded from the deed of
non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) provided by the
controlling shareholders to the Company on 21 April 2011.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS
(continued)

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the Company’s controlling shareholders in respect of the
compliance by them and their associates with the Deed of Non-
competition. Each of the controlling shareholders of the Company
have also confirmed that all of them have abided by the Deed of Non-
competition during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-competition, the confirmation given by each of the Company’s
controlling shareholder and whether the controlling shareholders
have abided by the non-competition undertaking under the Deed
of Non-competition. The independent non-executive Directors
confirmed that they had determined that the controlling shareholders
have not been in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective connected
persons possessed any interests in any business that competed or
might compete with the business that the Group conducted.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he or she may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise
in relation thereto in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 April 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board can grant options
for the subscription of our shares to the employees, managerial staff
and senior employees of the Group and those other persons that
the Board considers that they will contribute or have contributed to
the Group (the “Participants”) as described in the Share Option
Scheme in order to serve as compliment and to reciprocate their
contribution to the Group. The maximum number of shares that may
be issued under the Share Option Scheme was 600,000,000 shares
which is equivalent to 10% of the issued capital of the Company
after completion of the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus).
The number of shares that may be granted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
shares of the Company immediately after the completion of the
Global Offering. Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting, the number of shares that may be
granted to the Participants under the Share Option Scheme shall not
exceed 1% within any 12-month period (other than those granted
to the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)), or
the total number of shares that may be granted under the options to
the independent non-executive Directors or any of their respective
connected persons shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of
the Company from time to time. There is no minimum period that
the options must be held before they become exercisable, and the
options granted shall be exercised within the period decided by the
Board of Directors, and however no options shall be exercised 10
years after they have been granted. The exercise price of the option
shall be the highest of:
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@  the closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

() nominal value of the Share. Each grantee shall pay a
consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is
adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from
that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have been
granted.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted
on 10 April 2013 to recognize and motivate the contributions made
to the Group by its employees and to give incentives in order to retain
them for the continuous operation and development of the Group.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, approximately 27,007,000
shares had been awarded under the Share Award Scheme.
Details of the rules of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 10 April 2013.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of
10 years commencing on the date of adoption on 10 April 2013.
Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the shares will be acquired
by the independent trustee at the cost of the Company and be held
in trust for the selected employees until the end of each vesting
period. The maximum number of shares which may be granted to
the selected employees under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed five percent (56%) of the total issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to a selected employee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed one percent (1%) of the total issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.
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DEBENTURE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company, its holding
company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting parties of
any arrangements from which the Directors could make a profit by
purchasing the shares or debentures of the Company or any other
companies.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which would be required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which would be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to Model Code, are as follows:
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

(i) Interest of the Company

Name of Director

Esns

Kang Baohua

FEE

Tian Shouliang
AR

Guo Zhongshan
EIT

Wang Yijun
IEE

Wang Lihui
FiE

Zhang Lei
R

Notes:

Nature of Interest

EEtE

Beneficial owner

ExBEA

Interest of controlled corporation
BN ER

Beneficial owner

5237 2PN

Beneficial owner

5237 2PN

Beneficial owner

5237 2PN

Beneficial owner

5237 2PN

Beneficial owner

5237 2PN

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

(2)  Of the shares held by Mr. Kang Baohua, 2,582,971,923
Shares were held by Best Outlook Limited and 730,632,771
Shares were held by Neo Pioneer Limited, both companies
of which are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang Baohua.

AF —F—TAREHR

e Board of Directors

EEERE

EERKRND - HERORESFNERR

RE(E)

() RARTRERS

Approximate Percentage

Number of Shares of Shareholding
R85 RESNEDL
181,600,000 (L) 2.92%
3,313,604,694 (L) 53.37%
12,714,460 (L) 0.20%
12,714,460 (L) 0.20%
12,714,460 (L) 0.20%
10,335,384 (L) 0.17%
3,000,000 0.05%

Mzt

FRTLRERRZEFZHFNTA ©
REBELEMBAENRND
B EEBARAAFH
2,582,971,023 8% 15 - M AlHE
R 2 7] Bl #%5  730,632,771 f% %
m MRAFREAREELESR
BHEAR o
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

(i) Interest in associated corporations

Name of Associated

Name of Director Corporation
BEEns HEZEER
Kang Baohua Best Outlook Limited
FREE EFEERAF

Neo Pioneer Limited
HEIER AT

Kang Baohua

FEE

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at the date 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed
or taken to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or
the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of SFO, or who was directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company:

Interest of the company

Name Capacity

£ =27

Best Outlook Limited (! Beneficial owner
ERBERAFO EnBEAA
Neo Pioneer Limited @ Beneficial owner
HEIBRATO EnBmAAN
Standard Chartered PLC Beneficial owner
Standard Chartered PLC EnlEaA

EERKRMD - HEROREFNERK
KRB (E)

iy  RIBREBAREDS

Percentage of

Number of Shares Shareholding
ROHE RERDL

) 100%

) 100%

(1) FRILIRRNZFEFNLEER -

FTERROERERAR

MR2015%F 12 A31 8 » RN AR T
BREZES LK ERMIEIBCHKREFTEDN
Zifl - TIAT(ZESESRARFHZETT
BABBRIN RS R B E ERIRGH X
HERNDHEEREEFRATKIE
XV B85 2 K 3 9 BREVR A T I BB e i 2
k/KAKR  KEEIEEEFARAT
BBITIAN 5% A _ERyRERS ¢

RARR A
Approximate Percentage
Number of Shares of Shareholding
RGO EE REBAEIL
2,582,971,923 (L) 41.60%
730,632,771 (L) 11.77%
374,885,803 (L) 6.04%



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS (continued)

Interest of the company (continued)

Notes:

(1)  Best Outlook Limited and Neo Pioneer Limited are companies
incorporated in the BVI and are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua.

(2)  The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.
SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December
2015 are set out in Note 14 to the Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Connected Transaction Exempt from the Independent Shareholders’
Approval Requirement but are Subject to the Reporting and
Announcement Requirements

On 25 June 2015, Shanghai Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering
Co., Ltd. (/R KRIRE T2 B AF]) (‘Shanghai Yuanda’), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into three Design
Consultation Contracts (“Design Consultation Contracts”) with
Yuanda Singapore, pursuant to which Shanghai Yuanda agreed
to provide variation design and consulting services at a total
consideration of SG$ 11,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$
63,250,000 ).

AT —F—TAFEFH

ort of the Board of Directors

EEERE

TERRIEERAR(E)

RARR R R (&)

Hat -

(1) ERARRAEHFEIGRARASNER
%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁkﬁﬁ'\]@ﬂ ’ jﬁEE ><%§§
FEDEHER -

@ FEILIKRRRZEEFNLT

m

o) PN

RATR2015F12 31 B EZEBHEA
RIFEBEN T BHRKMIFE14 -

EEEN

REBEFEA - BB FEENEH
ARBEHHIERMERBYEXBEE R
TTEREVGHA)

REXS

RAFREZE2015F12 A31 BIEFEA
ZRAER GBI

FEER 8 ST B R B /E R E BRI
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R2015F6 A25H » ARalz2EHB
ANE EBRARETRAERAG( LE
BA )BT IR KET N = D& ET 5558
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected Transaction Exempt from the Independent Shareholders’
Approval Requirement but are Subject to the Reporting and
Announcement Requirements (continued)

Yuanda Singapore is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yuanda Group,
which is in turn beneficially owned by Mr. Kang Baohua, an
executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company.
Accordingly, Yuanda Singapore is an associate of a connected
person of the Company and the transactions contemplated
under the Design Consultation Contracts constituted connected
transactions for the Group for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transaction entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Details of the Design Consultation Contracts are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 June 2015.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the
Reporting and Announcement Requirements

(1)  Purchase of metal materials and parts from Yuanda
Environment

On 24 December 2014, Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. (BIERARETEGREA
7)) ("Shenyang Yuanda’) entered into a master agreement
(the “Yuanda Environment Purchase Agreement”) with
Shenyang Yuanda Environment Engineering Co., Ltd. (&5
ARIRBITRABRRAA]) (“Yuanda Environment’), pursuant to
which the Group agreed to purchase metal materials and parts
from Yuanda Environment for a term of three years ending 31
December 2016, subject to annual caps not exceeding RMB6.0
million, RMB6.1 million and RMB6.4 million, respectively. The
transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMBO0.1 million, which did not exceed the annual
cap for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The annual caps under the Yuanda Environment Purchase
Agreement were determined based on fluctuation of metal
price and the historical transaction amount as well as taking
into account the projected continuing increase in the sales
volume of products which require metal materials and parts
for manufacturing, the demand of the Group and the current
market prices for such products.

RERS (&)

EReETHIRRMUEREEZRR
RmMAERECBERS(E)

MMEEASEASENZENEQ
A MEASEAARRNITESRIE
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BAEEREZE2015E12A31HILEE
AT BELSME » ARRIEESE
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HiA 20156 25 HZ A °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

(1)

@

Purchase of metal materials and parts from Yuanda
Environment (continued)

As at the date of the Yuanda Environment Purchase
Agreement, Yuanda Environment was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yuanda Group, which was in turn beneficially
owned by Mr. Kang Baohua, an executive Director and the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, Yuanda
Environment was an associate of a connected person of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under
the Yuanda Environment Purchase Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transactions for the Group under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Yuanda Environment Purchase Agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 24
December 2014.

Processing services from Shenyang Yuanda Intellectual
Industry

On 24 December 2014, Shenyang Yuanda entered into a
master agreement (the “Processing Agreement”) with
Shenyang Yuanda Intellectual Industry Group Co.,Ltd.
(formerly known as “Shenyang Brilliant Elevator Co., Ltd.”) (}#
BEANERIESERNDERAR(R DESERSEHAN
EMRAA])) (“Shenyang Yuanda Intellectual Industry’),
pursuant to which Shenyang Yuanda Intellectual Industry
agreed to provide processing services to the Group for a term
of three years ending 31 December 2016, subject to annual
caps not exceeding RMB11.0 million, RMB95.3 million and
RMB97.8 million, respectively. The transaction amount for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately RMB0.9
million, which did not exceed the annual cap for the year ended
31 December 2015.

hEBERARAT % AR

Rebort of the Board of Directors
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

@

S

Processing services from Shenyang Yuanda Intellectual
Industry (continued)

The annual caps under the Processing Agreement were
determined based on the expected demand of structural
steel processing services by the Group during the term of the
Processing Agreement.

As at the date of the Processing Agreement, Shenyang
Yuanda Intellectual Industry was a subsidiary of Yuanda
Group, which was in turn beneficially owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua. Accordingly, Shenyang Yuanda Intellectual Industry
was an associate of a connected person of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under the Processing
Agreement constitutes continuing connected transactions for
the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Processing Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 December 2014.

Construction, decoration and renovation services from Puhua
Construction

On 22 July 2013, Shenyang Yuanda entered into a master
agreement (the “Puhua Construction Service Agreement”)
with Shenyang Yuanda Puhua Construction and Decoration
Engineering Co., Ltd. (BB ER AL ERZERMHTRER
‘A7]) (“Puhua Construction”), pursuant to which Puhua
Construction agreed to provide the construction, decoration
and renovation services to the Group for a term of three
years ending 31 December 2015, subject to annual caps not
exceeding RMB10.0 million, RMB10.0 million and RMB10.0
million, respectively. There was no transaction incurred under
the Puhua Construction Service Agreement in 2015, which did
not exceed the annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2015.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

S

“)

Construction, decoration and renovation services from Puhua
Construction (continued)

The annual caps under the Puhua Construction Service
Agreement were determined with reference to the prevailing
market rates for the provision of services of a similar nature and
based on the contract amount of the confirmed construction
projects and the planned construction projects of the Group.

As at the date of the Puhua Construction Service Agreement,
Puhua Construction was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yuanda
Group, which was in turn beneficially owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua. Accordingly, Puhua Construction was an associate
of a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Puhua Construction Service
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Puhua Construction Service Agreement are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 23 July 2013.

Supply of curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore

Yuanda Singapore contracted for curtain wall projects in
Singapore for which the Group supplied the curtain wall
products.

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master supply
agreement (the “Yuanda Singapore Supply Agreement”)
with Yuanda Singapore, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to supply curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore for a term
of three years. On 15 November 2012, the Company entered
into a supplemental agreement (the “Yuanda Singapore
Supplemental Agreement”) to the Yuanda Singapore
Supply Agreement with Yuanda Singapore, pursuant to which
the annual caps for each of the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2013 has been increased to RMB208.0 million and
RMB156.0 million, respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent ERRETHE YRR EREEZER
Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the R &

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

“)

Supply of curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore
(continued)

On 31 December 2013, the Company entered into an
agreement (the “2013 Yuanda Singapore Supply
Agreement”) with Yuanda Singapore, pursuant to which
the Group agreed to supply curtain wall products to Yunada
Singapore for a term of three years ending 31 December
2016, subject to annual caps not exceeding RMB80.0 million,
RMB40.0 million and RMB40.0 million, respectively. The
transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately RMB6.7 million, which did not exceed the
annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The annual caps under the Yuanda Singapore Supply
Agreement, Yuanda Singapore Supplemental Agreement and
2013 Yuanda Singapore Supply Agreement were determined
based on prevailing market prices of the curtain wall product
of the Group and the anticipated volume of supply to Yuanda
Singapore.

As at the dates of the above agreements, Yuanda Singapore
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yuanda Group, which was
in turn beneficially owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Accordingly,
Yuanda Singapore was an associate of a connected person of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under 2013
Yuanda Singapore Supply Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Group under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2013 Yuanda Singapore Supply Agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 20183.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

(%)

Purchase of raw materials from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master
purchase agreement with Shenyang Xinwan Fulong
Commerce Co., Ltd. (V&M EREBEER 2 A )
(“Shenyang Xinwan Fulong”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to purchase building materials and hardware tools
from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong for a term of three years ending
31 December 2013, and such agreement has expired on 31
December 2013.

On 31 December 2013, the Company entered into a new
agreement (the “Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase
Agreement”) with Shenyang Xinwan Fulong, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to purchase building materials and
hardware tools from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong for a term of
three years ending 31 December 2016, subject to annual
caps not exceeding RMB20.0 million, RMB20.0 million and
RMB20.0 million, respectively. The transaction amount for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately RMB1.2
million, which did not exceed the annual cap for the year ended
31 December 2015.

The annual caps for the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase
Agreement were determined based on the historical
transaction amount and taking into account the demand of the
Group and the current market prices for such products.

As at the date of the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase
Agreement, Shenyang Xinwan Fulong was wholly-owned by
Ms. Kang Fengxian (EZ/Bl1L) , the sister of Mr. Kang Baohua.
Accordingly, Shenyang Xinwan Fulong was an associate of
a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Group under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the
Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

(5) Purchase of raw materials from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong
(continued)

Details of the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase Agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2018.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
above continuing connected transactions of the Group.

All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions, and confirmed that those
transactions were entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. under normal commercial terms, or on terms better to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

3. in accordance with the agreements governing the above
continuing connected transactions, the terms of which are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
confirmed to the Board that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;

2. are in all material aspects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

3.  have been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the relevant cap disclosed in the previous
announcements.

Pursuant to Rule 14A. 56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing their conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of independence
issued by all the independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board of Directors was
satisfied with the independent status of all the independent non-
executive Directors.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering through
which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares were offered at a price
of HK$1.50 per share. Net proceeds raised by the Company were
approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
17 May 2011.

As stated in the Prospectus, the Company intended to use the
proceeds for expansion of its production capacity, repayment of
its existing debts, investment in research and development, and
expansion of its sales and marketing network.

As at 31 December 2015, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$1,935 million of proceeds from the Global Offering (of which
expansion of production capacity: HK$492 million; repayment of
its existing debts (mainly comprised the bridge loan of Standard
Chartered Bank): HK$962 million; investment in research and
development: HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and
marketing network: HK$220 million) was utilized. It is intended that
the remaining proceeds of approximately HK$468 million will be
used in accordance to the proposed allocation as stated in the
Prospectus.

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS

The Group owns only 49% of the equity interests of its operating
companies, Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting for Buildings
Underes (“Yuanda Kuwait”) and Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., W.L.L. (“Yuanda Qatar”), in Kuwait and Qatar
respectively, as both Kuwait and Qatar laws do not allow foreign
companies to own a majority interest in a local operating company.
The Group had no operation in Qatar prior to the establishment of
Yuanda Qatar and prior to the establishment of Yuanda Kuwait,
the Group supplied products to a local company for projects it
undertook in Kuwait.
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait

Under Kuwait law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable it to govern and
control the financial and operation of Yuanda Kuwait and capture
its entire economic interest from its operations, the Group entered
into an agreement on 30 March 2009 (the “Kuwait Incorporation
Agreement”) with Mr. Mohamed Tareqg Al Essa (the “Kuwait Local
Partner”), an independent third party, pursuant to which the Kuwait
Local Partner agreed to be the facilitator of the Group in relation
to the conduct of the Group’s business in Kuwait. Pursuant to the
Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, the Kuwait Local Partner has
declared that:

° all the capital and assets belong to Shenyang Yuanda;

° he has no share (and hence no voting rights) or the right to get
any share in Yuanda Kuwait or any entitiement to the profit of
Yuanda Kuwait;

° he is not involved in the day-to-day operation of Yuanda
Kuwait, save for assisting Yuanda Kuwait with coordination
with the local government authorities;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Kuwait under
the management of Shenyang Yuanda;

° he would not be held liable for any losses; and

° the above terms in the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
irrevocable for three years effective from the date of signing
and will be automatically renewed for a similar period unless
and until terminated by both parties with a notice at least 90
days in advance.

Through the above arrangement, the Group is able to control the
operation of Yuanda Kuwait. As advised by the legal advisors of the
Company as to Kuwait law, the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
legal, valid and binding to its parties and constitutes legally binding
and enforceable obligations against the Kuwait Local Partner under
Kuwait law and is in compliance with the laws and regulations
of Kuwait. Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant
accounting standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Kuwait into
its consolidated financial statements as a wholly-owned subsidiary.
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EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

As disclosed in the Prospectus and subsequent annual reports
of the Company, notwithstanding that the Company considers
that it is able to effectively operate and conduct the business of
Yuanda Kuwait under the present arrangement, the Company has
undertaken that in order to protect the interests of the Company,
it will introduce further measures, including using our best efforts
to amend the terms of the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, by
entering into supplemental agreements that would include, among
others, revisions that the Kuwait Local Partner will not transfer any
of its shares in Yuanda Kuwait without the prior written consent of
the Company, it will vote for any resolutions of Yuanda Kuwait in
accordance with the instruction of the Company, and if there shall
be any change to the Kuwait laws or regulations and/or policies
such that a foreign entity becomes legally entitled to hold a majority
interest in Yuanda Kuwait, it will promptly transfer its relevant interest
in Yuanda Kuwait to the extent permitted by the then applicable
laws or regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable the Company to
become the majority shareholder of Yuanda Kuwait.

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there
will not be any legal consequences assumed by the Company
arising solely as a result of the Company’s failure to enter into the
supplemental agreements to implement these additional measures.
However, in order to better protect the Company’s interests,
the Company will search for a replacement for its existing local
partner who is willing to enter into a cooperation agreement with
the Company that will contain the terms of the abovementioned
additional measures which are in compliance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still in negotiation
with the Kuwait Local Partner on the implementation of the above
additional measures and the Company will disclose any measures
implemented and/or replacement of existing local partner in the
Company’s future annual reports.
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar

Under Qatar law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable the Company
to govern and control the financial and operation of Yuanda Qatar
and capture its entire economic interest from its operations, the
Company has entered into the memorandum of association of
Yuanda Qatar dated 20 January 2008 (the “Qatar Articles”) with
Mr. Ahmed Omar Bbhaa Ahmed (the “Qatar Local Partner”),
an independent third party, and an agreement dated September
16, 2007 (the “Qatar Incorporation Agreement”) entered into
between Shenyang Yuanda and Actrade for Trading & Contracting,
a company of which the Qatar Local Partner was the authorized
signatory with respect to the governing of the operation of Yuanda
Qatar.

Pursuant to the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement, Yuanda Qatar was established and held as to 51%
by the Qatar Local Partner and as to 49% by Shenyang Yuanda.
Pursuant to the Qatar Articles:

o representatives of Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing the company during the entire term of its existence;

o profits of the company will be distributed as to 95% to
Shenyang Yuanda and as to 5% to the Qatar Local Partner;

The Qatar Articles were supplemented by the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that:

o the Qatar Local Partner will facilitate Shenyang Yuanda to
conduct business in Qatar;

o instead of receiving dividends from Yuanda Qatar, the Qatar
Local Partner will be paid an annual service fee of US$40,000
plus a scalable commission calculated based on 1% to 5% of
the contract value of projects that Yuanda Qatar won with the
assistance of the Qatar Local Partner;
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Qatar (continued)

° the dividends declared by Yuanda Qatar may be used to offset
and settle any service fees due or payable to the Qatar Local
Partner;

° save for assisting Yuanda Qatar with coordination with the
local government authorities, the Qatar Local Partner is not
involved in the day-to-day operations of Yuanda Qatar;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Qatar under
the management of Shenyang Yuanda.

As advised by the legal advisors of the Company as to Qatar law,
subject to the Qatar Articles, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is
legal, valid, binding and enforceable under Qatar law, and as the
Qatar Incorporation Agreement and the Qatar Articles are related
to the same subject matter, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is
considered to be an explanatory to the Qatar Articles under Qatar
law. The Company’s legal advisors as to Qatar law has further
advised that the Qatar Articles is a validly binding and legally
enforceable document and constitutes legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of the parties thereto with respect to the
governance of the affairs of Yuanda Qatar and is in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations of Qatar and the Qatar
Incorporation Agreement is enforceable against the Qatar Local
Partner.
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

The Company entered into this arrangement in Qatar in order to
enable it to control and operate Yuanda Qatar and capture the
economic interest from its operations, and these are supported by
the following terms in the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement:

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are entitled to
similar responsibilities and authorities in Yuanda Qatar as
board members in other subsidiaries of Shenyang Yuanda;

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing Yuanda Qatar during the entire term of its existence
and they may not be removed without the approval from
Shenyang Yuanda;

o resolutions of the shareholders of Yuanda Qatar will only be
valid by approval from a majority of the shareholders holding
75% of the shares in Yuanda Qatar;

° Yuanda Qatar is managed exclusively by Shenyang Yuanda
and its representatives for the period of its existence.
Shenyang Yuanda and its representatives shall have full and
absolute authority and exclusive right to manage and operate
the business of Yuanda Qatar. Such powers are irrevocable
and the Qatar Local Partner may not intervene in managing
the company or bind or commit Yuanda Qatar in any way
whatsoever except with prior written consent from Shenyang
Yuanda;

° Pursuant to the Qatar Articles, the profits of Yuanda Qatar
will be distributed as to 95% to Shenyang Yuanda and as to
5% the Qatar Local Partner, while the dividends declared by
Shenyang Yuanda may be used to offset and settle any service
fees due or payable under the management of Shenyang
Yuanda under the Qatar Incorporation Agreement.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Qatar (continued)

Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant accounting
standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Qatar into its
consolidated financial statement as a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group.

As disclosed in the Prospectus and subsequent annual reports of
the Company, notwithstanding that the Company considers that it
is able to effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda
Qatar under the present arrangement, the Company has undertaken
that in order to protect the interests of the Company, it will introduce
further measures, including using its best efforts to amend the terms
of the Qatar Incorporation Agreement, by entering into supplemental
agreements that would include, among others, provisions that the
Qatar Local Partner will not transfer any of its shares in Yuanda
Qatar without the Company’s prior written consent, it will vote for
any resolutions of Yuanda Qatar in accordance with our instruction,
and if there shall be any change to the Qatar laws or regulations
and/or policies such that a foreign entity becomes legally entitled to
hold a majority interest in Yuanda Qatar, it will promptly transfer its
relevant interest in Yuanda Qatar to the extent permitted by the then
applicable laws or regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable the
Company to become the majority shareholder in Yuanda Qatar.

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there will
not be any legal consequences to the Company arising solely as
a result of our failure to enter into the supplemental agreements to
implement these additional measures. However, in order to better
protect the Company’s interests, the Company will search for a
replacement for its existing local partner who is willing to enter into a
cooperation agreement with the Company that will contain the terms
of the abovementioned additional measures which are in compliance
with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still negotiation
with the Qatar Local Partner on the implementation of the above
additional measures and the Company will disclose any measures
implemented and/or replacement of its existing local partner in its
future annual reports.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company, except that the trustee of the share
award scheme adopted by the Board on 10 April 2013, pursuant to
the terms of the rules and trust deed of such scheme, purchased
on the Stock Exchange a total of 7,380,000 shares of the Company
during the Reporting Period.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules
regarding the provision of advances by the Company to an entity.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in the
past five years is set out on page 208 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association of the Company or the ordinance of Cayman Islands,
stipulating that any new shares shall be offered according to the
respective shareholding of the existing shareholders of the Company
when new shares are issued by the Company.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
under the Listing Rules from the Listing Date to the year ended 31
December 2015.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
Environmental Protection

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for the Group.
The conscientious use of resources and adoption of best
practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its commitment
to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection and comply with environmental legislation
and promote awareness towards environmental protection to the
employees.

The Group puts great emphasis in environmental protection and
sustainable development. Through the establishment of an ever-
improving management system, enhancement on procedure
monitoring, energy conversation and environment protection
were strongly promoted, leading to the remarkable achievement
of environmental management. Several measures have been
implemented by the Group in order to promote environmental
protection.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those that
have significant impact on the Group. The audit committee of
the Company is delegated by the Board to monitor the Group’s
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. Any
changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to
the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units from
time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company.

BIR - HERER

R RE

RERBNARAEBENERTIE- K
SEEXHLEFTEERNBER I
RARETR - AED HRERTH) A
o NREBESBIRRE - ETRERGIAL
BORITEENRRER -

AEEIERERENAFEER B
BEIY TNHECRREERR K&
MSRBIRE TR - KA HEESRERPERR
MERIRA  EERREEETIEEA
R REBC BEEZEE - ARE
RIBRE °

EBERMOER

EHEARER  NHERANEEEST(L
HREBEELABARE  ZFERE
2 RARZER - ARRIBRZE S
EXeZREEARAKEETEARZR
EEZER - HBABRE I REREEEMN
STIRENTERER  RAUKERZ
(ERCIE-SK

BARRRIMAM  RERBEA HETY
ARBZEKREBEBEERTE ZHH
RERNER



BERPREBERA A % TR

Report of the Board of Directors

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Workplace Quality

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not
discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics. The Group has
employee handbooks outlining terms and conditions of employment,
expectations for employees’ conduct and behavior, employees’
rights and benefits. The Group also establishes and implements
policies that promote a harmony and respectful workplace.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of
an enterprise and regards human resources as its corporate
wealth. The Group provides on-the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression.
Through different training, staff’s professional knowledge in
corporate, and management skills are enhanced. The Group also
organized charitable and staff-friendly activities for employees, such
as outings, sport match and health talks to provide communication
opportunities among staff, which are vital to promote staff
relationship and physical fitness.

Health and Safety

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial
work environment. Adequate arrangements, training and guidelines
are implemented to ensure the working environment is healthy and
safe. The Group provides health and safety communications for
employees to present the relevant information and raise awareness
of occupational health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, staff are entitled to medical
insurance benefits as well as other health awareness programs.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)
Training and Development

The Group is committed to the professional and personal
development and growth of all employees and considers training and
development a continual process. Many on-and off-the-job training
courses and programs are provided to help employees develop and
maintain consistency, proficiency and professionalism. Structured
training programmes including courses, seminars and workshops
are offered to staff at all levels with the objective of grooming
and unleashing their full potential, supporting, organizational
development and facilitating team synergies. Employees are
encouraged to take advantage of these programmes in order to
equip themselves with the skills and knowledge for expanded career
opportunities within the Group.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 has been audited by KPMG. The Company will

submit a resolution in the coming annual general meeting to re-
appoint KPMG as the Auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Kang Baohua
Chairman

30 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMIG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuanda
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 207, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2015

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B AR E @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015 and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2016
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Statement of Profit or Loss
SptERER

(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”))  For the year ended 31 December 2015
(AARBTARE ) RER) HZ20155F12A31 HILFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —F@mF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE ARYT T ARET T
Revenue WA 4 8,594,364 10,038,653
Cost of sales SHE KA (7,681,718) (8,558,050)
Gross profit ER 4(b) 912,646 1,480,603
Other income E AU A 5 166,218 31,505
Selling expenses HEE R (170,640) (175,479)
Administrative expenses TE R (1,076,619) (1,040,700)
(Loss)/profit from operations e (BR)AE (168,395) 295,929
Finance costs Bh& Bk A 6(a) 1,107 (234,398)
(Loss)/profit before taxation Al (EE|) FE 6 (167,288) 61,531
Income tax Fr1S%5t 7 (443) (10,424)
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(BE) FiE (167,731) 51,107
Attributable to: AT AL FEG :
Equity shareholders of the Company — ZANQ GIIRE (192,257) 25,597
Non-controlling interests FEIERG fE RS 24,526 25,510
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (FE) FE (167,731) 51,107
(Loss)/earnings per share B8 (BER) 2T
(RMB cents) (AR¥Z)
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 11 (3.10) 0.41
The notes on pages 97 to 207 form part of these financial statements. FEITEEFE207 B2 MIFALENHRE L

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company — D c ERARBRRELFAFE
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note 28(b). &% B FF B E AT EE 28(0) ©

U/
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YUANDA CHINA HO

Consolidated Statement of Profit

B EERAEMEERER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2015
(AARBAER) BE2015F12A31BILFE

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments):

[tems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

— Exchange differences on translation

into presentation currency
— Cash flow hedge:

net movement in the

hedging reserve

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year

2015 2014
=F-HF —FWF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARETT ARETIT
ER(EHE)FE (167,731) 51,107
FREAMBEE KRGS
(BRBREFIE
FEE) 10
HEREFHES
BxMIEE ¢
—BE B2 S
[E 5 =% (71,115) 45,746
—BEeREEH
S E) R
(28,633) (32,292)
FREABE RS
(99,748) 13,454
FRAZHEKRELE
(267,479) 64,561
BUF AL :
P N/NE] )4 (289,876) 26,995
BRSO T 22,397 37,566
EREHEWREE
(267,479) 64,561

The notes on pages 97 to 207 form part of these financial FATEEF207E 2 T AL ETERE 2

statements.



Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Lease prepayments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Short-term investments
Inventories

Gross amount due from customers

for contract work
Trade and bills receivables
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Gross amount due to customers
for contract work

Receipts in advance

Accrued expenses and
other payables

Bank loans

Income tax payable

Provision for warranties

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

The notes on pages 97 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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AT —F—TAFEFH

ement of Financial Position

BT BARR R

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2015

(MARKAREN) R2015F12A31H

2015 2014
—E-HF —F@mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®TT
749,165 794,582
638,126 551,708
340,992 289,696
1,728,283 1,635,986
- 300,000
432,960 446,061
5,738,168 5,933,550
2,812,661 2,864,965
619,922 597,564
3,006,827 2,662,517
12,610,538 12,804,657
4,258,978 4,663,206
1,560,772 1,365,694
82,059 119,776
880,955 808,748
3,757,104 3,320,000
229,214 207,994
48,222 41,254
10,817,304 10,521,672
1,793,234 2,282,985
3,521,517 3,918,971

207 B2 MiE AUt EM IR 2
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YUANDA CHINA H

Consolidated Statement of
B PR IS AR R 3R ()

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2015
(AARBRER) 20156124318

Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Bank loans RITER
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE
Provision for warranties RIEEAE

NET ASSETS BEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital A&z
Reserves (G

Total equity attributable to equity  Z< 5] )R R FE(L
shareholders of the Company HRER
Non-controlling interests R RS

TOTAL EQUITY RS

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
March 2016.

Kang Baohua
RHE

Director (Chairman)

EF(TE)

The notes on pages 97 to 207 form part of these financial
statements.

28

2015 2014
=F-HF —FWF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®MTR  ARETE
300,000 -
3,401 2,067
175,057 128,630
478,458 130,697
3,043,059 3,788,274
519,723 519,723
2,658,041 3,425,653
3,177,764 3,945,376
(134,705) (157,102)
3,043,059 3,788,274

BEEN20164E3 A30 B #E /& R IRHEZM -

H

Tian Shouliang
HFR
Director
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Balance at 1 January 2014

Changes in equity for 2014:

Proft for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year

(Note 28(0))

Shares purchasedt under the share

award scheme (Note 29)
Sheres granted under the share

award scheme (Note 28]
Shares vested under the share

award scheme (Note 29)
Appropriation to resnves

Balance at 31 December 2014

The notes on pages 97 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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H14E12731 B2k

of Changes in Equity
SRS R

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2015
(UARBAER) BE2015F12A31BILFE

Atroutable to equty shareolders of the Company

Sae  Shee HERG Capld Ot
captd  pemum  REEE  resene  resene
BE REGE HARD AARE REBE  BR
RMBOO0 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

RMB'000

RATRRER
Shares held
under share
award PRC Non-
scheme stafutory contraling

resenes  Exchange  Hedging  Refained nterests  Total
MEEE  reseve  reseve  pofs  Told FEER equiy
dE EiGE HREE RENR & B 4

RMB0O0 RMBOO0 RWBIOO0 RMBO0O0 RMBOOO RMBIOOD RMBO00

ARETL ARRTT ARETT ARMTR ARKTR ARETL ARETL ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETL ARETL
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YUANDA CHINA

Consolidated State

B ERSBR@®

(Expressed in RMB)

Balance at 1 January 2015

Changes in equity for 2015:

(Loss/proft for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year
(Nots 2800
Shares purchasedt under the share
award scheme (Note 29)
Sheres granted under the share
award scheme (Note 29)
Shares vested under the share
award scheme (Note 29)
Appropriation o resenves

Balance at 31 December 2015

The notes on pages 97 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(AARBAER) BE2015F12A31BILFE

01551 1 A2 ER
NHEVERSE

AR/ AR
Efp2e

PAkaLR

FL-EEHEZRE
(Hz2800)

RERRH % EEE
2R hzizs)
RERR R E
2is)
RERAREH5E
Rz

AEEE

H5E1231 B2k

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KLERRERG
Shares held
under share
award PRC Non-
scheme statutory controlling
Share  Share RERH  Capital  Other reserves Exchange Hedging Retained interests  Total
capital premium  REirE reseve reseve WEET reseve reseve profits  Totl  EER  equity
Ba RGEE FERG EARE RHEE  BE EXRE WNEE RENE &% 0 B8 4RR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARNTR ARRTR ARMTR ARKTR
(Note ~ (Note ~ (Note  (Note ~ (Note  (Note  (Note (Note
20)  2B(li)  2B(li)  2B(li)  2Bi)  2B(c)) 28] 2Bl
Wz WE B WE B R b
26 2800)  280)0) 28000 280)) - 28601)  286)0)) 28]

BT 106385 021 - 18968 034 G800 3 1751718 QM6 (157109 3768274
- - - - (1050 (190257 5% (16773
I L I I
S .o (%) (BE%Y (192057 [808TH 20T (267479

. - deney - (eyTey
. I T 1659
N Th 14 14705
N 1
T - -y - - -

- (eorsy 900 - 268 @I - T

59728 ST404  (10) - 180698 340743 19943  (28304) 1,562,124 3177764 (134,705) 3,043,059
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Operating activities

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Interest income
Interest expenses and
other borrowing costs
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment
and land use rights
Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses
Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in gross amount
due from customers for contract work
Decrease/(increase) in trade and
bills receivables
Increase in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade and
bills payables
Increase in gross amount due
to customers for contract work
Decrease in receipts in advance
Increase in accrued expenses and
other payables
Increase in provision for warranties

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

The notes on pages 97 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.

AT —F—TAFEFH

dated Cash Flow Statement
EHEESRER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2015
(UARBAER) BE2015F12A31BILFE

2015 2014
—E—RE —Z—F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
o AR®T R AR®T T
RETEH
BiAn (&518) /FE (167,288) 61,5631
HEIFE
W& Koo 6(c) 63,977 65,021
FEWA 6(a) (12,576) (16,742)
il BB RE A
AR 6(a) 238,076 231,581
HEME - BE K
R AR A R £ 3 {5 FA A
(Wz=),/ EEFE 5 (131,639) 5,062
PABR A5 DARR A%
D5 6(b) 14,705 15,277
HEESHE)
FERD,/(3Em) 13,101 (28,736)
ElREFERIR
iR,/ (32 m) 195,382 (781,357)
B HRENR R ERER
",/ (3E) 52,304 (21,742)
& BEEK
H i fE kg N (18,376) (56,883)
B RN R RENER
CRiA),/38hn (469,947) 471,596
ENEF AR TI2EEEEM
195,078 55,084
TEUCRIRR (37,717) (83,007)
FERT 5 2 e E A FE A5 3R A0
42,666 189,518
RIEBEIE N 27 53,395 12,800
REFMBHRSE 31,141 119,003
BERFER 26(a) (15,860) (33,794)
RETEHMESRSTFE
15,281 85,209

97 BEE207 B 2 MR AUt EMEHER 2
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YUANDA CHINA HOLDI

Consolidated Cash Flow Statemen

EHEERER®

(Expressed in RMB)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(AARBEEN) HE2015512A31BLEFE

Investing activities
Payments for purchase of property,

plant and equipment and land use rights
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment and land use rights
Payments for purchase of

short-term investments
Proceeds from redmption of

short-term investments
Interest received

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Payments for purchase of shares under
share award scheme

Net (increase)/decrease in advances granted
to the controlling equity shareholder
of the Company and his affiliates

Dividends paid to the equity
shareholders of the Company

Borrowing costs paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

The notes on pages 97 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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TIfEREL FER

BEEBREMNR

BRREHRE AR

BKFE

REFBRE/ (FA)

REFR

BEED

HERITEFRAEH

EERTER

R

RERD LRI EIRE

Befn 2 (%

B

B

ANAARERRRRE

BEAREHF

($&m),/ WL

ENARABRRAES

EREERA

MERDRAREFH

RERBEEEY

B,/ (Hd) #8

R1A1BH%E
RREEEN

HEERSDHTE

R12831 BHESE
RBEEZEY

2015 2014
—B-5F —ET-mEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 AR®TR ARETL
(86,023) (47,699)
123,271 39,981
- (300,000)
300,000 -
12,576 16,742
349,824 (290,970)
5,397,104 4,190,000
(4,660,000) (3,933,159)
25 (2,653) (7,781)
29(a) (15,079) 1,886
28(b)i) (489,788) (390,519)
(237,729) (234,471)
(8,145) (374,038)
356,960 (579,799)
20 2,662,517 3,273,800
(12,650) (31,484)
20 3,006,827 2,662,517
FOTHEF207 A ZMERILZERBERKRZ
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was

incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 February 2010 as an

exempted company with limited liability under the Companies

Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)

of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were

listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Stock Exchange”) on 17 May 2011. The consolidated financial

statements of the Company comprise the Company and

its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). The

principal activities of the Group are the design, procurement,

production, sale and installation of curtain wall systems.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and related Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”). These financial statements also comply
with the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEEIN - UARKARER)
RAER

BAPBEZERERAB([AAR DR
20102 H26 ARIBEH S FH S A A
SEE22F (1961 FE =AM » £84:
G RIER]) EREHSTMK L A
NEBRAR o AARIRRMHIR2011F
S5A17TBEERHMERZBRAR
(TB AT ) £ o AR BINE HFI 7
HEBEARRIREWE R R (5B
[REBEDBWER - AEBWHEZH
BAESZ KB £E  HERTHE
BRBRG -

BAEFBE
@ EHER

I EMBHREIIRBEB#EA
) (B B B 75 R 5 2E A1) ([ BaBR B
BmEER ] EEEGHBARE
EEEEFENEES(H
SRerHERIEES ) BiH W
FfT 7 38 A 8 51 B B B 75 3 o A
Al Bt ER(BEEEs
A REEREMER -
EVBHRERITFEEAAT
GOIRERBRAES TR
AT LR Al ]) /3 A # B &
X REBEMNERNSH K
FREMEAT ©

B et ElREeCBMmE
TRTR] RARIE AT H) B B 75 3
SR W FEEAERAEH
RARBEMHN G HEER
EREARFERN - BRER
% FEAEE AR BER 5
WELEAPSIREA BES
AHENSFBREHE R
Rt FEMBHRE - ARENE
SIRBEE2(c) ©

9%



98

YUANDA CHINA HOLDI

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 7S R 2R B & (a0)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments which are stated at their
fair values (see Note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 3.

2
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
incurred net loss of RMB 167,731,000. These
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis notwithstanding the net loss
performance for the year ended 31 December 2015
because the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that based on a cash flow forecast of the Group for the
twelve months ending 31 December 2016 prepared by
the management, which takes into account the banking
facilities of RMB1,410,000,000 not yet utilised as at 31
December 2015 (see Note 24(g)), the Group would have
adequate funds to meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due at least twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the followings amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

o Amendments to IAS 19, Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

o Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

o Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Bt 7S R 2R B & (a0)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those equity interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those equity interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative equity interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss (see Note 2(k)(ii)), unless the investment
is classified as held-for-sale.
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Bt 765 3 2% P & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(= HHEH5

2

AR R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€)

Investments in debt securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt securities
are as follows:

Investments in debt securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs.

Investments in debt securities which do not fall into the
categories of investments in securities held for trading
or held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
Interest income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(u)(v).

When the investments in debt securities are derecognised
or impaired (see Note 2(k)(i)), the cumulative gain or
loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or
loss. Investments in debt securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant
gain or loss is in accordance with Note 2(g).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Hedging

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as
a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
or the foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains or losses
on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument
to fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss in the same period or periods during which
the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit
or loss (such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the hedged forecast
transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place,
the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss immediately.
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Bt 765 3 2% P & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRI - UARK AELL)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(k)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see Note 2(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated

useful lives

Plant and buildings 30 years
Machinery and equipment 15 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the estimated useful life
of an asset and its residual value are reviewed annually.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

eased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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Bt 7S R 2R B & (a0)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)} Leased assets (continued)

(i) Operating lease charges (continued)

Payments made on the acquisition of land held
under an operating lease are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(k(ii). Amortisation is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease term.

(k) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities

and receivables

Investments in debt securities and receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

and

- significant changes in the market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor.

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt securities
and receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the receivable’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the receivable’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these receivables),
where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively
where these receivables share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for receivables which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for receivables
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
receivable’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRI - UARK AELL)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EAEIEEK(E)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) k) BEREE)
() Impairment of investments in debt securities (i) REEESHRIREL

and receivables (continued)

= For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in
the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
receivables whose recoveries are considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
the receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified
as being held under an operating lease; and

- investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measureable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with |IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see Notes 2(k)(i) and 2(k)(ii)).

Inventories

Inventories record the cost of raw materials waiting to be
assigned to specific construction contracts. Inventories
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost is calculated at acquisition or direct production
cost. The cost of inventories includes design costs,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
production overheads. The net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion.

When inventories are assigned to specific construction
contracts, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the year in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the year the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the year in which the reversal occurs.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in Note 2(u)(i). When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

2

EXSHBE(E)
(m) BHREAMEKR

B REMEWRNTIER R
BEER HEKBEERMEX
AR B SH PR AR R BR R (B B
518k (RMTRE2(k) (i) » e YR
FABBALRENEEE
X B I 48 4 ] [ R 4 A Sk G
BHEESTEKAIBRIN - £
ZEBRT - BRFKTIIREK A
R BR R E BB Y BR (R M
2(k)(i)) °

RekReEEY

RehBReFEYRRERTE
AR FHEEE  RIRTREAM
B Bl M OO B T 3R N T BB B
HREBRABEHNERETHEARN
BEZIRARI FTERNNE
- RIS -

BREASRAMME—HEEN
—HEEMETPREERD
B - 5P REEE &R H
TEREBIR - AEAGRKA
V& ETBOR B EE 2(u) (i) © fi
BESRM AR R SEMEE
BRKARTIZERREHRY
ERTIREERRMAX - &
BAERKABAEBBRARAR
WA B - T8 R & 18 J5 BB R
RFAX - WEEARMNERT
BERISEfLEt  ARRATINE
ELHMERRMAX -



2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

Construction contracts (continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in the
statement of financial position as the “Gross amount due
from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amount due to customers for contract work” (as
a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid
by the customer are presented as “Trade receivables
for contract work” under “Trade and bills receivables”.
Amounts received before the related work is performed
are presented as “Receipts in advance for contract
work” under “Receipts in advance”.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are charged to profit or loss
when incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

Share-based payments

The shares awarded under the share award
scheme are acquired from open market. The
net consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as
“Shares held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.

For shares granted under the share award
scheme, the fair value of shares granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares on grant date plus any
directly attributable incremental costs. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the shares,
the total fair value of the shares is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the shares will vest.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n  Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of shares
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of shares that vest with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the
awardees upon vesting, the related weighted
average acquisition cost of the awarded shares
vested are credited to “Shares held under share
award scheme”, and the grant date fair value of
the awarded shares vested are debited to the
capital reserve. The difference between the related
weighted average acquisition cost and the grant
date fair value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss

as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Service income

Service income from the rendering of services
is recognised when the related services are
rendered.

Sale of raw materials

Other income is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the raw
materials have been transferred to the customers.
Other income excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any sales
discounts. No other income is recognised if there
are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of
the consideration due, the possible return of raw
materials, or continuing management involvement
with the raw materials.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)  Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

2

BEXREHBEE(E)

V)

BEINE

SNER BTN R S B HIE A
MINEEXBREREEENE
BHOEEE - UINESHER
E¥EEMBBNERRES
RERNINSERBKERESR
BNERNINEEE - SMNEHK
@ MER TN BRR AR o

AINE R E L N ARG ERIEE
BEERBBNEARR S A
HERINEEXRE LG
ERNDEEE - RAAEE
FIBRM ASNE AR EE
RaENERANEERAEE
ERERMINEERBREDE
PAEEHIEER

AEARB(KRKEZIEKE
BN NRE BB EE X
BRERN R 5 B HE A E S
BEXHEENEZBE/AR
% o MR RIA B JH RN R
SRS HIMNEERBE S
AR¥E - FTEENELZRTY
REMEERSANER - 1B
MRS RO IE S R R RERR o



2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or completed.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)  Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i

V)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 25 and 30 contain information about the assumptions

and the risk factors relating to fair value of shares granted

under share award scheme and financial instruments. Other

key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@)

Contract revenue

As explained in the accounting policies set out in Notes
2(0) and 2(u)(i), revenue and profit recognition on an
uncompleted project is dependent on estimating the
total outcome of the construction contract, as well as
the work done to date. Based on the Group’s recent
experience and the nature of the activity undertaken
by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the point
at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is reached
the gross amount due from customers for contract work
as disclosed in Note 17 will not include profit which
the Group may eventually realise from the work done
to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total
cost or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period, which would affect
the revenue and profit recognised in future years as an
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Provision for warranties

As explained in Note 27, the Group makes provisions
under the warranties it gives on construction of curtain
wall systems contracts, taking into account the Group’s
recent claim experience. As the curtain wall systems
required by the customers become more complex,
it is probable that the recent claim experience is not
indicative of future claims that the Group will receive in
respect of past construction of curtain wall systems. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit
or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(©)

Impairment of receivables

The management maintains an allowance for doubtful
accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability
of the customers and debtors to make the required
payments. The management bases the estimates on
the assessment of recoverability of individual customer
or debtor balance, customer and debtor credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the customers or debtors were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated.

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
a long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset
may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of long-lived assets as described
in Note 2(K)(ii). These assets are tested for impairment
whenever the events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to the level of
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of the level
of revenue and amount of operating costs. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact on the
carrying value of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future
years.
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3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(€)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, if any. The management reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values, if any, of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The determination of the useful lives
and residual values, if any, are based on historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.
In determining the amount of deferred tax assets to be
recognised, significant judgement is required relating to
the timing and level of future taxable profits, after taking
into account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems.

Revenue represents contract revenue derived from the
design, procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall systems.

The Group’s customer base is diversified. There was no
customer with transactions that exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising
from the Group’s largest customers are set out in Note
30(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed below.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations of the construction contracts. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following six reportable segments: Northeast China,
North China, East China, West China, South China
and Overseas. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

o Northeast China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the northeastern region of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which
includes Liaoning, Jilin, Heilongjiang, Shandong,
Henan and Inner Mongolia provinces and
autonomous region.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

North China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the northern region of the PRC,
which includes Hebei and Shanxi provinces,
Beijing and Tianjin.

East China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the eastern region of the PRC, which
includes Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui and Jiangxi
provinces, and Shanghai.

West China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the western and northwestern
regions of the PRC, which include Sichuan,
Yunnan, Guizhou, Hubei, Shaanxi, Ningxia, Gansu,
Qinghai and Xinjiang provinces and autonomous
regions, and Chongajing.

South China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the southern region of the PRC,
which includes Guangdong, Hunan, Fujian, Hainan
and Guangxi provinces and autonomous region.

Overseas: comprises construction contracts
carried out outside of the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments,
the Group’s most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

Segment assets include all assets with the
exception of property, plant and equipment,
lease prepayments, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and bills payables, gross amount due to
customers for contract work, receipts in advance,
accrued expenses and other payables and
provision for warranties managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments. No significant inter-
segment sales have occurred for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014. The Group’s
other operating expenses, such as selling and
administrative expenses and finance costs, are
not measured under individual segments. The
measure used for reporting segment result is gross
profit.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 is set out below.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 EEERDERE (&)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) () »E3RE (E)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities i) 9BER BERAR
(continued) (&
2015
0155
Northeast North East West South
China China China China China  Overseas Total
R 3 ER £f £ ph) Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARMTR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARMTR
Revenue from exteral RESNPERHMA
customers and reportable — RAIEERALIRA
segment revenue 1364534 1028048 1,865,454 691,935 1,151,640 2492753 8,594,364
Reportable segment BEEvEES]
gross proft 188,687 179,977 258,941 108,238 72,851 108,952 912,646
Reportable segment assets  AIEHTEE 2640639 1544220 2350813 1,088,063 1484267 2416522 11,524,524
Reportable segment iabiies  FTEHAHEE 1,361,342 946,661 1,778,041 543 555 829849 1803313 7,347,761
2014
T
Northeast North East West South
China China China China China QOverseas Total
31 £ ER Edi] Eci] 5 fee
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Revenue from extemal RENGZPHBA
customers and reportable  RAIEEATUA
segment revenue 1805705 1840726  2362,109 639993  121099% 2129125 10,038,653
Reportable seqment AEEAHEN
gross proft 286,270 434,019 343,760 80,629 163,776 182,249 1,480,603
Reportable seqmentassels AR FEE 2006066 1703618 2402532 1136041 1414563 2450838 11,715,658
Reportabe segment ebiies FEHAHEE 1279805 104713 1709400 G118 GR416 1691799 7286500
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 EEERDEHRE (2)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment assets

b) DEBwRE(E)

(i) THEFSBRERARD

and liabilities FEEE S
2015 2014
2015 £ 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Assets &E
Reportable segment assets A BRI EE = 11,524,524 11,715,658
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - M= &% 749,165 794,582
Lease prepayments JEEE 638,126 551,708
Deferred tax assets IEEF TR EE 340,992 289,696
Unallocated head office and AOBLAAZ R AR EE
corporate assets 1,621,253 1,545,675
Elimination of receivables 53 B fo oy B B 4R B R
between segments, and FEW R 55
segments and head office (535,239) (456,676)
Consolidated total assets Aot EE 14,338,821 14,440,643
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities AIERHHEEE 7,347,761 7,235,511
Bank loans BITER 4,057,104 3,320,000
Income tax payable FEN PS5 229,214 207,994
Deferred tax liabilities RIETHIABE 3,401 2,067
Unallocated head office and AORBEHX R AFEE
corporate liabilities 193,521 343,473
Elimination of payables 53 BB R 70 B L 4R B
between segments, and FES SR 8E
segments and head office (535,239) (456,676)
Consolidated total liabilities affaaE 11,295,762 10,652,369
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographic information

The following tables set out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s (i) revenue
from external customers and (ii) property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments (the
“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at
which the construction contracts are carried out.
The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is determined based on the physical
location of the assets. For overseas construction
contracts, the Group further divided the customers
based on regions, where each country within the
region shares similar characteristics as to the
depth of the Group’s penetration in the market and
industry practices.

() The Group’s revenue from external
customers:

The PRC (excluding
Hong Kong and Macau)
(Place of domicile)

(sEfitt)

Europe region B [

Australia region SEUM b [
Far East region REHIE
Middle East region F BRIt [@
Americas region M bR
Others HAth

B (T RREEERRPM)

(iii) HEFH

RMB’000
ARBT R

6,101,611

TR BRAAKE ()R
BSMNERE P ROMA K (i) ¥
X BEERBALE
NHEE(EEFRRBE
EDHMBLENEFR -
BRI IRA B TR B
TTEES RIS D -
T FEM B B B H M IR (U
ENRBEENER M
g7 - BB TRERAKIM
5 AKEE-FRIE
ENEF  HEANBEX
EARKE NS RITRER
W2 B IRE T AR IR
e

) AKEEBINEE
FHIA

2015 2014
2015 2014 4

RMB’000
ARETTT

7,909,528
607,458
919,996
127,997
156,273
223,662

93,739

663,171
885,627
307,112
205,484
391,870

39,489

8,594,364

10,038,653
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I py F T ELNEELC )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBES - UARKRERL)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 EEERDEHRE (2)

(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b)

(iii) Geographic information (continued)

(i) The Group’s specified non-current assets:

DEbRE (&)

(i) HWEFE ()

(i) AEBEWEEFER

FEE
2015 2014
2015 & 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

The PRC (excluding B (TEIEEERRFT)
Hong Kong and Macau)  (5Xffih)
(Place of domicile) 1,371,422 1,329,844
Overseas SN 15,869 16,446
1,387,291 1,346,290
OTHER INCOME 5 EHayg A
2015 2014
2015 2014 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREBT T
Government grants ERAT 4 8E 27,583 28,840
Rental income from operating leases LEHERS WA 3,053 3,507
Net income from provision of repairs IR E NRE RS
and maintenance services bl 3,424 4,194
Net gain from sale of raw materials THE R R F IS 519 26
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME - BERERENUR
plant and equipment and land use T R RERY
rights (Note (j)) T (E518) (KR () 131,639 (5,062)
166,218 31,505
Note: Kiat -
()  The amounts included a gain of RMB131.4 million arising 0] SREBEREAER—HP KB

from disposal of land use rights by a PRC subsidiary of
the Group in exchange of a new land (see Note 13) and
compensation to be received in relation to the disposal,
after deducting the cost to be incurred to relocate the
subsidiary’s property, plant and equipment to the new land.

A B S 3 fE PR A DABRER T
(R HIEE13) - MBREFRENE
RAINDE  BERREEHN L
Hh ) AR AR 18 BSOS s A R I
181.4BETT °
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(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

6

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 Bial(&E) B
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ TEl (B8 BTG (5T A)
(crediting): AR EIRRESH ¢
(@  Finance costs: @ BEKA :
2015 2014
2015 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARETRT

Interest on borrowings EER A 203,329 194,669
Bank charges and other finance costs R 17U & & H b g & kA~ 34,747 36,912
Total borrowing costs BIEEKAR 238,076 231,581
Interest income B A (12,576) (16,742)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss GNE (U 2s) /e S 5a (143,983) 56,998
Net loss/(gain) on forward foreign =HISNES R/
exchange contracts: B8, (Ueas) JF% ¢
— net loss/(gain) on cash flow —BERENSEN
hedging instruments BReERmEEHPTARN
reclassified from equity B8 (Uhek) g
(Note 10(b)) (e 100)) 51 (24,260)
- net gain on other forward — B AR HASNE & R 8Y
foreign exchange contracts e FRE (82,675) (13,179
(1,107) 234,398

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB Nil).

REE2015F12 A31 8 It &
EWEEERAEE AR (2014
F: ARBZT) -



6

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(b)

Staff costs™:

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans (Note (i)

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses in respect of share
award scheme (Note 25)

Note:

(Hrez ()

RS (H1at25)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby these
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the schemes
at rates ranging from 12% to 21% of the employees’
basic salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are
entitled to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established outside of the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed by
the respective local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
respective schemes at rates stipulated by the relevant
rules and regulations of the respective jurisdictions.

The Group does not have any further material
obligations for payments of other retirement benefits
beyond the above annual contributions.

6

e TEREMET
A 57 5E AR RET B R

B R B2 BT EIAY A
PRAAE B AR AR S 3K

AT ZF TR

inancial Statements (continued)

I py F T ELNEELC )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BN - UARK BELL)
BiAl (&5|) RE(E)
) EBImRA":
2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
917,135 964,066
104,367 103,777
14,705 15,277
1,036,207 1,083,120
Hiazt -

@M

2N &5 B A HR B A ST O BT FR A
A8 (& B 2 E2ith 75 B AT # 8
B8 E HEFGR KR AET
2 - Rtk R BT B A R B IR
EEEARHS12% E21% [
ZEFEIHE - PRI E A
AlE B RN EBIE B RINFR
AR LR E=ES
BHREFEEHEEKFEFE DL
FTEARRET] o

AR ER B AR B 35 S0 B ST ) i
BREMEEZSEEZAM
77 BT #% B B B2 ) SRE R K
RRIENFTE] - RSN
&R E AR E BAERME
B33 B ROE R P AT AR A LE
AT BN

REBE B R — PAEN
FEHEFAIN E AR KA
MELE -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB ARBAEE)
6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6  BiA(ESE), RE(E)
()  Other items: ) Hbigg :
2015 2014
2015 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Depreciation and amortisation” FEREE" (HF12K13)
(Notes 12 and 13) 63,977 65,021
Impairment losses on trade and other & 5 K H th fE W FURME
receivables (Notes 18(b) and 19(a)) 518 (A/aE 18(b) & 19(a)) 209,108 118,993
Operating lease charges in respect AR+ - HERIEF -
of land, plant and buildings, motor VRER N B R A R AR
vehicles and other equipment HEFEL” 57,337 45,725
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEAH S
— statutory audit services — ETEZERTE 7,500 7,300
— other services — H A AR A 2,342 3,507
Research and development costs® TR A ! 342,525 375,130
Increase in provision for warranties”  {R{SE LI (HfaE27)
(Note 27) 113,817 104,132
Cost of inventories” (Note 16(b)) BFEERAN' (B:E 16(b)) 7,681,718 8,558,050

Cost of inventories includes RMB732.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB720.4
million), relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, operating lease charges,
research and development costs and provision for
warranties, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above
or in Note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.

HZE2015F12 A1 HILFE
GERABFEE IRA I
EREHEAST  KEHER
¥ RERRRREEEE
BN AARE 7324 5E T
(20144 : AR¥ET7204BHE
JL) ¢ S B IR AL £
Sk RE6(0) 2 B B BR M) & 48
FZ BB o
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Statements (continued)

I py F T ELNEELC )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX 7 Fir
(@ Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a)
represents:

Current taxation (Note 26(a)): BNEAFAIE (M2 26(a)
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — BB
— Overseas income tax —BINTERL
Deferred taxation (Note 26(b)): EEFRIB (a2 26(b))
— Origination and reversal of —TRFERAREL
temporary differences N e
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b)
(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:
(Loss)/profit before taxation Fian (&8),/FE
Expected tax on (loss)/profit ZHERE Al AR R L A
before taxation, calculated at AR R E R AT

(&), FERETIA
(HIE () - (@) ~ (i) & (iv))

the rates applicable to profits
in the jurisdictions concerned
(Notes (i), (i), (ii) and (iv))

Tax effect of non-deductible AT S RIS R 2

expenses (Note (v)) (Hi ()
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERARBBTRIBEEE
not recognised RIS R 2

Tax effect of write-down of
deferred tax assets (Note (i)
Tax concessions (Note (Vi)

WORRERR IR A 2 (AfaT (v))

PR (H1E (vi)

Income tax FTiS#i

&

(BBHEBES - UARKRERL)

B

BHBERAFAEM

2015 2014
2015 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®TRT

42,394 48,489
3,885 2,336
46,279 50,825
(45,836) (40,401)
443 10,424

PR R X IR E AN R E T H A
T (B1R),/FIHaEEk :

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 &
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥ETR

(167,288) 61,531
(68,117) 29,333
10,706 22,157
15,934 23,961
59,942 -
(18,022) (65,027)
443 10,424
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(B=BEHEHIN

UARE RERL)

7 INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(it

(i)

(iv)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: 16.5%). No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made, as
the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB Nil).

The Company and a subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands, respectively, are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25%
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 25%).

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in
countries other than the PRC (including Hong Kong),
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, are
subject to income tax rates ranging from 8.5% to 35%
for the year ended 31 December 2015 pursuant to the
rules and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation (2014: 8.5% to 35%).

The amounts mainly comprised non-deductible
entertainment and other expenses in excess of the
tax deductibility allowances under the PRC tax laws
and regulations.

7 FEB(E)

b) BERXEZERREFTEN
SEIMENEER : ()

#isz -

U

(i)

(iv)

WIN/NCT)NE Az s 25 VA VPN
EEMBRRREZE2015F
12 431 B I F E A% 16.5%
(20144 : 16.5% ) KT R BN
EREFEH - BRAARRA
EEREBEMERAKTEA
FIREZE2015F 12 A31 A1k
FEBEESRESTIERN
FERFLFE - SR LS
BHAHEERE (2014F « AR
BEZIT) o

RIBE S BEMARZBERD
BMAIRER - DRIRFHASE
SREBRREEEMAKL
AR F) e AN 5 B — R B
REBAGNERPIEHR

ANE B AR BB A R E
E2015F12A31BIEFEA
12 25% (2014 £ : 25%) K9 i
RN BN ZEFTEH o

RIEE S B MR B R AR
AR5 - AEERFE (S
BEE) HeHERABR
RS LASNB SR kA 7 O B
BREIZEREZE2015F 128
31 B I FE RN 8.5% E35%
TENMBETHERERATER
(20144 : 8.5% = 34%) °

ZECRIERRBETH
BiERERIA T AR &
AV AT IR AREE T E At FA 7 -



7 INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

The Group wrote down previously recognised tax
losses of RMB59.9 million (2014: RMB Nil), as the
utilisation of these unused tax losses has changed
due to changes were made to the estimates of the
future operating results of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

One of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC has obtained approval from the tax
bureau to be taxed as an enterprise with advanced
and new technologies for the calendar years from
2014 to 2016 and therefore enjoys a preferential
PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 15%). In addition
to the preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate,
this subsidiary entitles an additional tax deductible
allowance amounted to 50% of the qualified research
and development costs incurred in the PRC by this
subsidiary.

AW —F—TAEEHR

Statements (continued)

I py F T EL L))

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEHIN

UARE RBERL)

7 BB (E)

b) BEFAXEZERRETEN
SEABONEER : (&)

Hrat

(vi)

(vii)

(&)

ANER B MUR T AT E R
EEARK59.9HE T (2014
F:ARETIT)  RERAE
EEE THB A B RRLEL
FERGFTHIRES - B
% B AR I A 7% e 48 /O ) A
IR -

REBEHR—RFEREA
AIBESHEBIEE 2014
FEE2016F ILHEFEIEA
AT EANTEIE -
HZE2015F12 A31 HILFE
ZH15% KRBTSR
BEB K (20144 : 15%) °
BRTEZATRBECEMBHIE
BREDS M BARE
BREXNHPEEENEGE
& T 35 3K S B9 50% AN ET H1BR
-
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(BBHEBEN - UARKREN)

8

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Executive directors
Mr Kang Baohua

Mr Tian Shouliang
Mr Guo Zhongshan
Mr Wang Yijun

Mr Wang Lihui

Mr Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive directors
Mr Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny

HnEs
£
AsRE
Bk
ES 2y
Tugks
RERLE

BUFHGES

BRERE
by

PRt

=

e

=]

8 E=Me
RIBEBB D REHIEIBNERAE
(ERRANEBHEE) ROIE B MK
BHNEEMSFBEET
2015
0155
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits ~ Retirement
in kind scheme Share-based
Directors’ #4+ contributions payments
fees ZER Bik:t8  Sub-total NRAA Total
Ezne  EMEA fii5k N BRAR h
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR  ARETR
(Note ()
()
- 188 3 221 - 221
- 197 3 230 - 230
- 197 3 230 - 230
- 167 2 196 - 196
- 184 32 216 - 216
- 183 32 215 544 759
201 - - 201 - 201
201 - - 201 - 201
201 - - 201 - 201
603 1,116 192 1,911 544 2,455
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(BBHEBES - UARKRERL)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EEM& (&)
2014
N4E
Salaries,
allowances

and benefits ~ Retirement

inkind scheme Share-based
Directors’ 4+ contributions payments
fees R BIGE Sl WRGA Total

e EMEA fiat Pt ERAX it
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARETR ARt  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

(Note ()
(Htn)

Executive directors HIES

Mr Kang Baohua REERE - 183 31 214 - 214

Mr Tian Shouliang BFREE - 193 31 224 - 204

Mr Guo Zhongshan FRLEE - 193 3 224 - 224

Mr Wang Yijun IZA%E - 181 3 212 - 212

Mr Wang Linu TuBtE - 180 3 211 - 211

Mr Zhang Lei FELE = 179 3 210 564 U

Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES

MrPoon Chiu Kwok AR 19 - - 19 - 1%

MrWoo Kar Tung, Raymond HREREE 19 - - 195 - 19

Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny FHELE 1% = - 1% = 1%

585 1,109 186 1,880 564 2,444

Note: Hiat -

()  This represents the estimated value of awarded shares )  EREAQTZRGEEFERT
granted to a director under the Company’s share award ERRERMD 2 EEHEE - 2E)
scheme. The value of the awarded shares is measured A&7 2 (BB TR B = 2(r) (i) FTd AR &=
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share- BEEBAARN AERIRZ K
based payments as set out in Note 2(r)(ii). The details of Ko EABMENZFE - BEM
these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and B SRR (D 2 E B BB &
number of awarded shares granted, are disclosed in the RESZEHmE K25 -

Report of the Board of Directors and Note 25.
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9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 BeEHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none hEamzaTMALTF  BEEAAL
(2014: none) is a director of the Company. The aggregate of (20144 : ) AEE - WIFEFMZ
the emoluments in respect of the five individuals (2014: five) AEAL(2014F : AR EINARZE
who are not directors are as follows: m

2015 2014

2015 F 2014 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He o EMREYET 7,997 7,957
Discretionary bonuses BOISIEAT = 101
Retirement scheme contributions RORGTEMER 1,456 1,367

9,453 9,425
The emoluments of the employees who are not directors and AEEREERTWENIFEEZ A
who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group THIFN FLATEE -

are within the following bands:

2015 2014
20155 2014 F

(In Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”)) (B (I#EITl))
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 - 2,500,000 4 4

2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 1
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(BBHEBES - UARKRERL)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 HME2mEK=
(@) Tax effects relating to each component of other @ BHEEMEEWESHEKXDBD
comprehensive income PSS
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTTT

Exchange differences on translation BE AR EHNE L EZ58
into presentation currency (BRI RFB)
(before and after tax) (71,115) 45,746
Cash flow hedge: Beme i
net movement in the hedging reserve G EFEE
— Before tax amount —TiA&E (34,356) (43,385)
— Tax expense —FERY 5,723 11,093
— Net of tax amount —FHE (28,633) (32,292)
Other comprehensive income HAh 2 EUEs (99,748) 13,454
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, including
reclassification adjustments b)) BEEMEZEKZEKIS -
BREFHOERAR
2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR®TT

Cash flow hedges: HEREEH M
Effective portion of changes in G A FERR Y ET

fair value of hedging instruments TEAREBEEED

recognised during the year K5 KEB (34,407) (19,125)
Reclassification adjustments for RSB S E

amounts transferred to profit DA (K 6(@)

or loss (Note 6(a)) 51 (24,260)
Net deferred tax credited to other REAM 2 EWEET AR

comprehensive income (Note 26(b))  IEIETH T8 %58 (151 26(b)) 5,723 11,093

Net movement in the hedging reserve R E {2 IS HETRHY
during the year recognised FNEPREEE) T
in other comprehensive income (28,633) (32,292)
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11 BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 SREAREE(BR) EAR

(@) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (@ BTREX(ER) BT
The basic loss per share for the year ended 31 HE2015F 12831 HIEFE
December 2015 is calculated based on the loss EREABEBREARQARRE
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of IR E1E ARK1923FH & T
RMB192.3 million (2014: profit of RMB25.6 million) and (20145 : BAARK256HE
the weighted average of 6,198,626,000 ordinary shares J0) RN B B 31T IR
(2014: 6,188,268,000 ordinary shares) in issue during £116,198,626,000 J L im@A% (2014
the year. F : 6,188,268,000 A% @M% ) 5T
§ o
The calculation of the weighted average number of RE E2015F k2014412 B
ordinary shares during the years ended 31 December 31 HIEFEMEF L BIRE
2015 and 2014 was as follows: Bst&mT :
2015 2014
2015 20144
’000 ‘000
T % T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 71 A1 BB 23178 E@A% 6,188,520 6,178,734
Effect of shares purchased and RIEAR D BT 2 E
vested under a share award KRB RE
scheme (Note 25) (B 25) 10,106 9,534
Weighted average number of M 12 A 31 BAYhnEFS
ordinary shares at 31 December TEAREE 6,198,626 6,188,268
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share b) EREE(ER), BT
There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding R & £2015F % 2014912 A
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. 1B IEFEREABTEEN

FEHIRRAD BT ©



Cost:

At 1 January 2014
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Transfer in/(out)
Disposals

At 31 December 2014

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2014
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2014

Net book value:
At 31 December 2014

Cost:

At 1 January 2015
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Transfer in/(out)
Disposals

At 31 December 2015

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2015
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2015

Net book value:
At 31 December 2015

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B
®2014%1 1A
EHAE

e

g)/(i)

HE
12014512 A31 B

ZitE:
R2014E1 A1 R
3T
FRHE
HERD

12014512 A31 B

BHFE
12014512 A31 B

R :
R2015%1 A 10
B 5 A

NE

8) /(1)

HE

2015612 A31 B

ZHHE:
R2015F1 A1 B
B S AR
FRHE
HEER

2015612 A31 B

REFE:
12015512 A31 B

inancial Statements (continued)

S py FELNEELE )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(KRBT

12 Y% - BMEKRRKRE

UARE RBERL)

Motor
vehicles
Machinery and other
Plant and and equipment  Construction
buildings equipment ARER  inprogress Total
HERET  BERRE HthikfE ERIR by
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETR  ARETr ARETT ARETR
672,152 379,238 206,219 20,675 1,278,284
(545) (1,874) (13,862) - (16,281)
20,827 4,012 5,613 6,583 37,085
1,441 4,020 - (5,461) -
(1,048) (867) (65,703 (10,452) (18,070)
692,827 384,529 192,267 11,345 1,280,968
(118,728) (186,048) (144,333) - (449,109)
78 1,212 8,624 - 9,914
(19,717) (16,949) (16,126) - (52,792)
251 330 5,020 - 5,601
(138,116) (201,455) (146,815) - (486,386)
554,711 183,074 45,452 11,345 794,582
692,827 384,529 192,267 11,345 1,280,968
(75) (370) 502 - 57
813 3,395 20,074 331 24,613
331 - - (331) -
(29,888) (35) (8,825) - (38,748)
664,008 387,519 204,018 11,345 1,266,890
(138,116) (201,455) (146,815) - (486,386)
(15) 164 (554) - (405)
(19,126) (17,108) (13,841) - (50,075)
11,357 35 1,749 - 19,141
(145,900) (218,364) (153,461) - (517,725)
518,108 169,155 50,557 11,345 749,165
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(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13

At 31 December 2015, property certificates of certain

properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB118.4
million (31 December 2014: RMB198.7 million) are yet to
be obtained. Of these properties, Mr Kang Baohua, the

ultimate equity shareholder of the Group (the “Controlling

Shareholder”), has undertaken to procure the title documents

of properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB3.8
million (31 December 2014: RMB71.4 million). If these title
documents could not be obtained, the Controlling Shareholder

agreed to indemnify the Group for all the losses and damages

arising therefrom.

LEASE PREPAYMENTS

Cost:
At 1 January 2014
Disposals

At 31 December 2014

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2014
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2014

Net book value:
At 31 December 2014

Cost:

At 1 January 2015
Additions (Note 5(i))
Disposals (Note 5(i)

At 31 December 2015

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2015
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2015

Net book value:
At 31 December 2015

RS
R2014%1 A1 H
RE

MR2014412 A31 H

ZoTEe -
R2014%1 A1 H
F
k=i
MR2014412 A31 H
BREFE :
2014412 831 H
AR

R2015F1 A1 H
NE (KT 50)

BB (KE50)

2015412 31 H

E-HE o
R2015F1 A1 H
F N E
2015412 31 H

BREFE
MR2015412 A31 H

12 Y%  MERRE(E)

201512 31 B » & THKREF
BEAARKE118.45E8L(2014F 124
318 : AR¥A98.7EE L) MM
RESYIHEFE - Ed - AEEZ &
IRPEIRAR R BT 2 S A ([ 15 RRARER )
EFAERERENEGEEARKISAHES
TT(2014%F12A31H : ARBET71.45
ET) YR o fRAREEEE
FREXH - ERRREERAEE®
EFE L mELRTA BB RIEBX -

13 ANHEE

RMB’000
ARETT

658,210
(35,560)

622,650

(60,872)
(12,229)
2,159

551,708

622,650
119,684
(23,663)

718,671

(70,942)
(13,902)
4,299

(80,545)

638,126



13 LEASE PREPAYMENTS (continued)

14

Lease prepayments represented land use right premiums paid
by the Group for land situated in the PRC. At 31 December
2015, land use right certificates of certain land use rights
with an aggregate carrying value of RMB141.8 million (31
December 2014: RMB22.9 million) are yet to be obtained.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.

Name of subsidiary

HEAREH

Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd.
(“Shenyang Yuanda’)

BREARXTRARAR
(T&HEAL)

*

Shanghal Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd.™
EERARETRARAR"

Yuanda (UK) Co., Ltd.**
EAAERRAF™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/
rRAH

The PRC

17 Apr 1993
i

19934 A178

The PRO
24 March 1998
o

199823 24 B

United Kindom
30 April 2002
#E

200254 A30H

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRBAE

United States Dollar
(USD") 323,298,200

323,298, 200%7T
(E3)

RMB15,000,000
ARH 15,000,007

British Pound Sterling
(GBP") 500,000

500,000 &%
(%))

RAR —% 54

inancial Statements (continued)
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13 FEfRHEE(E)

BAESEASERARFEN L
FIZ T H) T E AR H RS - 2015
F12A31H ' HARBEEEER
AR¥A141.8F &L (20144 12 A 31

B: ARMB20EET)MET i
{55 PR 1 08 FAREE o

14 R—AERBARZERE

TREJLHAKENERE  BEX
BEEEARFEZMNBRRIER -

Proportion of ownership interest

BAERL
The
Group’s Held
effective by the Held by
interest ~ Company subsidiaries  Principal
£82  AALR  AKEAF  activities
ERER KR WE IEER
100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
production, sale and
installation of curtain wall
systems
Fat RB AR
HERRERREN
100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
production, sale and
installation of curtain wall
systems
Fat B EE-
HERRERRAM
60% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,

sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat AR
HERRERRAN
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HELAREH

Shenyang Yuanda Metal Coating
Co,, Ltd*

EREACRR2ARAA"

Foshan Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd.™
frLEARETRERAR

LLC Yuanda Curtain Wall**
BABRBBAR™

Yuanda Australia Pty Ltd.”*
BARAHZERAR ™

Yuanda USA Corporation™*
BAZEARAR™

Yuanda Canada Enterprises Ltd."™*

("Yuanda Canada’)
EAMERBRAT ™
(}-9N/IEIN))

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
AL/
¥ERAH

The PRC

19 March 2003
i
2003534198

The PRC

9 March 2005
thE
2005F3A9H

Russian Federation
23 November 2005
&

2005F11 23

Australia

5 September 2006
N
200659A5H

United States of
America

16 May 2007

e

2007455A16H

Canada

15 April 2008
JIIEYN
200854 A15H

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRBAGE

RMB7,000,000
ARH7,000,0007

RMB20,000,000
AR 20,000,0007C

Russian Ruble
280,000
280,000 EEER

Australian Dollar
(AUD") 1,069,291

1,069,201 &7
(I&rl)

USD1,000,000

1,000,000

USD500,000
500,000% 7T

14 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

L =]
The
Group’s Held
effective by the Held by
interest  Company subsidiaries  Principal
S8z BALNY  AKEAF  activities
BiRER ] BE IEEE

100% = 100%  Plating and coating of metals

SEREREZ

100% - 100%  Purchase of materials for and
provision of services to group
companies

REELARERIH
RinE Rt AR

100% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat R A%
HERRERRZSR

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat B A%
HERRERRAN

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat B AR
HERLRERRZS

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERREBRAR



INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

KELREH

Yuanda Aluminium Industry
Engineering (Germany) GmbH"™*
BABEIR (8 BRAF™

Yuanda Aluminium Engineering
(Inclia) Private Limited™*
(Yuanda Indli’)

BARETR (IR)AA
BROT™
([EXEE])

Yuanda Europe Ltd.
(“Yuanda Europe’)™*

EABRMBRAR
(TEXERH])

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Hong Kong)
Company Limited™

BARE(BE) BRAR™

Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting
for Buildings Underes™

EANENRAREAR
BRELAF™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/
WHRAH

Germany
28 April 2008
{28

200854 A 28H

Republic of India
(‘Indla’)

28 July 2008

I RE (TEE )

200857 F28H

Swiss Confederation
29 July 2008

it 0B

200847 A29H

Hong Kong
14 May 2009
2000555148

State of Kuwait
(‘Kuwait’)

17 May 2009

B ([R5 )

2000%5A17H

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRBRAGE

Eur0100,000
100,000 07

Indian Rupee
(“INR") 1,476,200

1476200 EIEELL
([HEEL)

Swiss Franc
(CHF") 1,000,000
1,000,000 AR
(BiawA))

2,000,000 shares

2,000,000 &7

Kuwaiti Dinar
(*KWD”) 1,000,000

1,000,000 BB E MR

(HEs=mE)

inancial Statements (continued)
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14 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

L Sl
The
Group’s Held
effective by the Held by
interest  Company subsidiaries  Principal
S8z BALAY  AKEAR  activities

ERER 2] ¥E IERR

100% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat R AR
HERRERREM

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERRERREAR

60% = 60%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERRERRAN

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERRERRAN

100% - 100%"  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fet R AR
HERRERRZR
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14 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HELAREH

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Vietnam)
Co,, Ltd™

EARRE (B0 ARAELA™

Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Indlustry Engineering Co., BR™

EREARELRARAR
PR

Hik

Eurl Yuanda France
ENFEBRAT

Yuanda (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited"™*
A (BR)EBARAT ™

PT. Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Indlustry Engineering™

BAREIRAE
EBZARAF™

CNYD Aluminium Indlustry
Engineering Malaysia SDN.
BHD.*

BARETRERED
MABRAR™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
AL/
¥ERAH

Socialist Republic

of Vietnam
29 July 2009
BBt e TR ANE
20097 A29H

Kingdom of

Saudi Arabia
21 November 2009
psidEn =
2009F11 A21 B

France

18 March 2010
el

201037 18H

Hong Kong
23 March 2010
2010563 A23R

Republic of Indonesia
9 June 2010

e

201056 A9H

Malaysia

10 June 2010
SRET
201066 A10H

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRBAGE

USD100,000
100,000%7

Saudi Arabian
Rival 500,000

500,000 %5
HIARTR

Euro13,020,000
13,020,000 B

1 share
1R

USD750,000
750,000

Malaysia Ringgit
750,000
750,000 F R

AL
N A

14 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest
L =]
The
Group’s Held
effective by the Held by
interest  Company subsidiaries  Principal
S8z BALNY  AKEAF  activities
BiRER ] BE IEEE

100% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat RB AR
HERRERRZS

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat AR
HERRERRAN

60% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Cogb
HERRERRZS

100% = 100%  Investment holding
RARR

99% - 99%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat AR
HERLRERRZS

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat B A%
HERRERRAR



INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

KELREH

Yuanda Azerbajjan Limited
Liabiity Company ™™
EAMERBAREMLA™

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd.™
BARE (Fing) BRAR™

Yuanda Mexico S.A. de C.V.**
BABEINEEAERAT ™

Yuanda International Aluminium
Engineering Indlia Private
Limited™

EAERERTRIE
hABRAR ™

Yuanda Italy S.R.L**
BABANARAMRAR™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
R/
WHRAH

Repulblic of
Azerbaijan

17 December 2010

OESEs |

2010512 178

Republic of Singapore
27 December 2010
AN
20105124178

The United Mexican
States (‘Mexico’)
29 April 2011
2hF(2EF))
01154 A29H

India

7 July 2011
0
011E7A7A

[taly

14 September 2011
BAT
011597148

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRBRAGE

Azerbaljani Manat 400
H0MERBE i

Singapore Dollar
(SGD") 1,950,000

1,950,000 104 T
(k7))

Mexican Peso
(“MXN’) 1,000,000

1,000,000&F L £
([2EFLR])

USD540,000

540,000% 7T

Eur020,000
20,0000

cial Statements (continued)
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14 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

L Sl
The
Group’s Held
effective by the Held by
interest  Company subsidiaries  Principal
S8z BALAY  AKEAR  activities
BRER ] BE ITEE

100% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat R AR
HERRERREM

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERRERRAN

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERRERRZR

100% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERRERREM

60% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat RB AKX
HERRERRAN
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HELAREH

Yuanda Queensland Pty Ltd.”*
EARLRARAT™

Yuanda WA Pty Ltd.”™*
BABRAFIEARAR ™

Yuanda SA Pty Ltd."™*
BARREATIZERAR

Yuanda VIC Pty Ltd.™*
BAGSHEARAR ™

Yuanda Pakistan (PVT.) Limited™*
BABETABRAR ™

Canada Yuanda Aluminum
Corporation™*
MERBERREAR ™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
AL/
¥ERAH

Australia
25 November 2011
BAME
2015117258

Australia

3 December 2012
BAME
2012F12 43R

Australia
3 December 2012
RAME
201212 A3H

Australia
28 October 2013
BAME
2013510728 H

The Islamic Republic
of Pakistan
11 December 2013

B FHTR A

20135 12R 118

Canada

6 March 2014
JIIEYN
01453 H6H

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRBAGE

AUD800,000
80000027

AUD1
187

AUD1
187

AUD
1271

USD60,000
60,000%7

Canadian Dollar
(CAD") 100

Y
(TmeAxzl)

Proportion of ownership interest

The
Group’s
effective
interest
SE2
BiRER

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

L ]

Held

by the
Company
BARAE
]

Held by
subsidiaries
HKEAR
2]

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

14 R—AERBARZRE(E)

Principal
activities

IREH

Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat R A
HERRERRZS

Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERRERRZS

Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

soRb -
HERRERRAS

Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat R A%
HERRERRZSR

Design, procurement assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat R AR
HERRERRZS

Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERLRERRZS
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

*k

This company is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the mainland China.

These companies are limited liability companies established
in the mainland China.

These companies are limited liability companies
incorporated outside of the mainland China.

The Group, through Shenyang Yuanda, owns 49% equity
interests in these companies, where the remaining 51%
equity interests are held on trust for Shenyang Yuanda
by individuals resided in the respective jurisdictions. In
accordance with the respective entrust agreements,
these individuals do not have the right to vote or receive
dividends declared or participate in the liquidation of these
companies. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider the Group effectively owns 100% equity interests
in these companies.

The following table lists out the combined financial information

of Yuanda Europe and its subsidiaries, a sub-group within the

Group, which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).

The summarised financial information presented below

represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Revenue LN

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to NCI

FRME

Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities nBBE
Net liabilities e

Net liabilities attributable to NCI

IR (5 A

FEN IS

ARAF —F— TR

the Financial Statements (continued)
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R—ERBLARZRE (&)

ok

RER/NPBEKZNINEEE B

ZE R A AR BRSNS Y
BRAR

REBBBEGEAERZZAA
B 49% B 4 - 1 EL #5561% B T
B JE IO & BLARE R B A T IAE 5ETE
ARBEERTR - RESTEW
E% RS AR A LI AR %
ARERMREETIRBE ‘Jzﬁﬁﬁi
/ﬁﬁ At » RARESZRR -
SEER LEEZER TE’HOO%

TREIEABMN R EHEQE (R
SEBEAHERESNMBEE)
BHMBER - TX2HMOMHER
BE RN ER QR EEEIER 2 Al

RS %E o
2015 2014
2015 4 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T ARETFIT
740,020 491,704
61,315 63,775
24,526 25,510
20,289 12,791
373,407 295,852
(730,458) (701,398)
(336,762) (392,755)
(134,705) (157,102)
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15 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 15 REHRE
2015 2014
2015 & 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR®TRT

Investments in debt securities: REBESH 2B
— with original maturity —REEBA=EARA
within three months - 300,000
The investments in debt securities as at 31 December 2014 R2014F 12 A31 B 2 EHEHKE
represented wealth management products managed by Bl e REIEERNRARETE
financial institutions in the PRC with guaranteed principals and SR B EEEEM - JIREN
fixed or variable returns, and were recognised in accordance i 2(e) FTE @t HURIER

with accounting policies set out in Note 2(e).
16 INVENTORIES 16 #FE

(@ Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial @ AHPBRARANTERE
position comprise:

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 &
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Raw materials R #E 441,010 455,396
Less: write down of inventories S TEEMUR (8,050) (9,335)

432,960 446,061




16 INVENTORIES (continued)

(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense and included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss during the year is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories AREEaRNEFE
used in construction contracts ARMEE
Reversal of write down of inventories 17 &5 # [0l

17 GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK

Contract costs incurred plus recognised REBRMAERARIFT
profits less recognised losses in EAERE BN
connection with construction B HER AR B HERR
contracts in progress at the end E518

of the reporting period

Less: progress bilings W HEERIE

Gross amount due from customers for EUEFEARIIZ A%
contract work (Notes (i) and (ii)) CHTa ) %% (i)

Gross amount due to customers for ENEEARIIZAREE
contract work (Notes (i) and (iv)) (BT (i) %% (iv))

AF —F—TAREHR

Statements (continued)

S py FELNEELE )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(KRBT

16 #FE(#E)

UARE RBERL)

b)) RNFRERSFALT ARG
WEKAHNEFEESEIITOT

2015 2014

2015 4 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
7,683,003 8,563,367
(1,285) (5,317)
7,681,718 8,558,050

17 BW NHEFARIREAE

2015 2014
2015 F 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
45,445,528 41,387,301
(41,268,132)  (36,819,445)
4,177,396 4,567,856
5,738,168 5,933,550
(1,560,772) (1,365,694)
4,177,396 4,567,856
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17 GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK (continued)

18

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

All of the gross amount due from customers for contract
work are expected to be billed within one year, and upon the
billing, the amounts of RMB969.1 million as at 31 December
2015 (31 December 2014: RMB835.9 million) related to
retentions receivable are expected to be recovered over one
year.

Included in the gross amount due from customers for
contract work are amounts of RMB37.0 million at 31
December 2015 (31 December 2014: RMBO0.4 million) due
from affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder.

Included in the gross amount due to customers for contract
work are amounts of RMB8.7 million at 31 December 2015
(81 December 2014: RMB6.6 million) due to affiliates of the
Controlling Shareholder.

All of the gross amount due to customers for contract work
are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables for contract work ARIIRE SR
due from:
— Third parties ==

— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder

Bills receivable for contract work

Trade receivables for sale of raw materials

due from:

— Third parties
— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder

Less: allowance for doubtful debts

—%£=7

(Note 18(b))

— R BCR BB A F)

ERIEEERE
HE R 5 UG -

— R BR BB A F)

B RERFEAE (M5 18(b))

W, NEFeRTIRAEHE(E)

Hizt

(i)

(i

()

FERKEFSRIIZEEBEHN
—FAAR - AARRTE - R20154F
12 A31 HHEEWEFREBEHEBRN
SRARKE969.1HEL(2014F 12
A31H : AR¥835.95&L)EH
R—E&KE o

BREF G R IRAERIER 2015
F12 A 31 AR BB AR B A
AIRIBAREI7.08 &7 (20144F
12A3818 : AR¥B04EET) °

ENEFARIEAESBER
2015%F 12 A 31 A fE {752 A% A% 5Bt /8
ARIFBARKES7EHET (20145
12A31H : AREBGBEBET) °

FERNZF AR T2 AERHN
—FABERSEA -

BEZERR R ERERE

2015 2014
2015 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
3,193,472 2,990,433
133,418 136,875
3,326,890 3,127,308
141,121 192,560
1,512 1,327
1,742 1,611
3,254 2,938
3,471,265 3,322,806
(658,604) (457,841)
2,812,661 2,864,965




18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2015, the amount of retentions receivable

from customers included in trade and bills receivables (net
of allowance for doubtful debts) is RMB992.9 million (31
December 2014: RMB906.4 million).

Except for retentions receivable (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) of RMB484.6 million at 31 December 2015 (31
December 2014: RMB472.1 million), all of the remaining trade
and bills receivables are expected to be recovered within one

year.

The Group generally requires customers to settle progress

billings and retentions receivable in accordance with

contracted terms. Credit terms of one to ten years may be

granted to customers and debtors for retentions receivable,

depending on credit assessment carried out by management

on and individual customer or debtor basis.

(@)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice date
and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

Within 6 months

More than 6 months but
less than 1 year

More than 1 year

NEAR
HaE7 B AE DR —F

HBiE—F

Details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note
30(a).

ARAF —F— TR

the Financial Statements (continued)
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18 EBEZRURREWRERE (&)

R2015F 12 A31H  BIEEESE
WHREREWREBREANEREFRE S
e (R RERE) R ARK92.9
AE (2014128318 ARE

e —

906.4B&ETT) °

B 2015F 12 A31 H A R#484.6
BEL(2014F12A31H : AR
4721 BET) MEYIRE € (IR R
BRI EBRB B S RKA KR
FEWEIETE B —F ALk [E o

AEBE—REREFTFPRIEA RIER
BEEEFARERRES - BTE
BERERNEP REBAEEETH
EEETE  ARETEEREK
REEATFPREBARTIFE
FEEH -

@@ BRERDMT

RBEESHKR - EHRUARE
WEE (R RERE) HER

AERRBRER DATUO T
2015 2014
2015 4 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT T ARETFIT
789,134 1,168,520
363,045 283,127
1,660,482 1,413,318
2,812,661 2,864,965

AEBEERROFERNM
7£30(a) °
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18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade and bills receivables directly (see Note 2(k)

(0)-

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
account during the year are as follows:

At 1 January m1H18
Exchange adjustments b 5
Impairment losses recognised ERERRERE
At 31 December Mm12H31H

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade and bills
receivables of RMB658.6 million (31 December 2014:
RMB457.8 million) are individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related
to customers that were in financial difficulties and
management of the Group assessed that none of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB658.6
million (31 December 2014: RMB457.8 million) are
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

18 EFEWRKEWRZE(E)

(b)

B 2R & B IRH R (E

B 5 MUK K R 1B KR E
BRI ERRERAR  BRIE
AEEEAREZFENES
B WHELER T RERR
EERE S RIFEEKRRE
hisE CRETEE2(0)0)

FRREEEESIOT :
2015 2014
2015 & 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
457,841 338,848
(7,980) =
208,743 118,993
658,604 457,841

RH2015F 12 A31H » KN&E E
NEBESERZEERERAR
#658.6 B & Jt(20145F 12 A
318 : AR¥4578BEIL)E
ERIEE ARE - BRIRERN
R TR ERMBRRENT
FPE@ mAKEERETH
T8 HA 4 5% W 151 5 T R UK o
bt EEREEREREAR
#658.6 B Bt (20144 12 A 31
H: AR#¥4578HET) ° &
EEVENRZSEBRFTEEM
R o



18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired I K8 B SR E

Less than 6 months past due BH7SE A K

More than 6 months but less wHAR BN E A B
than 1 year past due DR—F

More than 1 year past due BEARA—F

Given the nature of the Group’s business, except for
retentions receivable under credit terms granted and bills
receivable not yet matured, all remaining receivables are
considered past due once billings have been made by
the Group and the customers have not settled the billings
within the credit terms granted, where applicable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to bills receivable from the issuing banks and
retentions receivable from customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of customers that have a good track record with
the Group. These receivables mainly relate to construction
projects either in progress or at final inspection stage.
Based on past experience and credit insurance scheme
entered into by the Group (see Note 30(a)), management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

BARBRAT —F—FARAEH
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18 EBEZRURREWRERE (&)

(©

I & IR RE 2 B 5 B W &
e

A AR A R 2 B
5% 8 3R T B M B e 5 7T
o

2015 2014

2015 F 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
747,233 653,270
674,727 998,318
372,749 318,559
1,017,952 894,818
2,065,428 2,211,695
2,812,661 2,864,965

ERAEEXEHHE  BRRE
BHEEGRERRES RE
W RB RSN — B3R
HEHAKEELMEF LR
REFEHEEEK(ER) E

BROR - AP E A B TS

BIEBE -

BE R 380 5B 7T ARORU B 2 8 W K £
ZPRTHBEEERERE
FRESEH REFEFPLE
BERRELEE °

B 280 3118 3F 8 R 18 2 FE IR
ZREFPAM ZEEPEX
SEEERARFZIHEER
%o RERWAETBANER
SR EBRKEERNTRER -
RIEBELR LK AEERT LA
EERRTE (RHEE30())
HREEERTESEREE -
Bz FRERIDBAR 2 R BB
B HERBREHBANLS
REERFTIERERE - AKE Y
BB SRR A TR -
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19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 19 R&R& - ANRREAAERR
RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
2015 & 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Prepayments for purchase of BEEERENK L)
inventories (Note (i) 235,802 189,609
Prepayments and deposits for KERERNARIES
operating leases 14,299 13,617
Deposits for construction contracts’ BESRIIERELD
bidding and performance (Note (i) Be (B1a2 ) 221,407 204,818
Deposits for purchase of forward BERBRREARZRS
aluminium contracts 3,905 30,072
Advances to staff FEfF B T8 23,321 27,564
Advances to third parties TENE=HER 23,938 25,007
Derivative financial instruments: PTESBMIA :
— held as cash flow hedging —FEREREHAHA TR
instruments (Notes 30(d)(i) & (8)) (BT 300)0) % (e)) 21,678 23,010
— other derivatives (Notes 30(d)(i) & (e)) —EMfTETA
(Bt 30()(i) % (e)) 14,005 62,049
Amounts due from the Controlling JrE LA o2 A% A B N ELBih
Shareholder and his affiliate (Note (ii)) NEVFRIA (B3 (i) 16,062 30
Amounts due from non-controlling U NS B JETE AR
interests of the Group (Note (i) FRIB (132 (i) 2,613 2,498
Others Hh 47,969 24,002
624,999 602,276
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREBAE (K757 19@))
(Note 19(a)) (5,077) (4,712)
619,922 597,564
Notes: Kt -
i) Included in the balance are prepayments of RMB3.9 million (0] ZAER BN 201512 A31 B A
at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: RMB4.1 million) R¥3.9ARET(2014F12 318 :
made to affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder. AREE A1 B ETT) K 1R15 A% A% B B
A BWEERTBAK o
(i)  The balance represented deposits placed with customers iy ZEREREEARNEGRIZER
for contracts bidding and performance of contracts in BARBEFIZNNES - Z25Kke
progress. The deposits will be released to the Group upon HRBRERERERTIE(RER)
the completion of the related bidding and contract work, TELEEBAEH -
where applicable.
(i) ~ The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have iy ZEFEAEEE  2EAEEET
no fixed terms of repayment. B o



19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Except for amounts of RMB5.1 million at 31 December 2015
(81 December 2014: RMB7.6 million), all of the remaining
deposits, prepayments and other receivables are expected to

be recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Impairment losses in respect of deposits, prepayments
and other receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
is written off against deposits, prepayments and other
receivables directly (see Note 2(k(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
account during the year are as follows:

At 1 January »®1A1H
Impairment losses recognised HREREERE
Uncollectible amounts written off HEE AR U Bl £ 78
At 31 December m12H318

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s deposits, prepayments
and other receivables of RMB5.1 million (31 December
2014: RMB4.7 million) are individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired deposits,
prepayments and other receivables related to debtors
that were in financial difficulties. Consequently, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of RMB5.1 million (31
December 2014: RMB4.7 million) are recognised. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

BARBRAT —F—FARAEH

otes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3R P A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RSB IEHAIN - IARE RER)

19 B% - ANRRHEBERRE)

MR 2015612 A31 HHSBARK
51ABIL(2014FE12A831H : AR

wreB&EIL)S

HepprAEE - B

1350 B At FE WK TR ER 7R — R AU
B RFER B

(@)

76 AR RN B/ SR i € /4:
E

Be - BN R R E MR
REBECERBRERAR
BR IEA SR B {5 40U = 5% SR R
BEmM - WERBRT R
EBEEERZS  BARE
L pE MRS (R BT EE2(K) ) °

FRRRBHEES)OT -
2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
4,712 4,727
365 =
= (15)
5,077 4,712

R2015F 12318 A& E
KRS ~ TENT ) K% E i FE UK
AR#ES51BET(20145F12 A
318 : ARB47EEL)EE
R E T AIRE o 18 IR B’ 1%
© - TER R E A fE YR ) B
IR R R ES AR -
Eit - BEBREEREKEE
AR#ES51BET(20145F12 A
31H: ARB4TEEL) - &
SEVERZSERFHEM
EHG o
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21

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand RITIFRRFERE
Time deposits with banks HRITE BIF K
The Group’s business operations in the PRC are conducted
in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 21
Trade payables for purchase of BEFEZE RN
inventories due to:
— Third parties =EE=75
— Affiliates of the Controlling — VERR AR R EEE B A A
Shareholder
Trade payables due to sub-contractors ADBEENE S ERR
Bills payable AN
Financial liabilities measured RS ARG T 2/
at amortised cost SRBE

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

20

BHEREBEESEEY
2015 2014
2015 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
3,006,827 2,545,912
= 116,605
3,006,827 2,662,517

AREBNPHEEBAARETE - A
RETDAABEHABNES - BT
R E S X 5 BIHUT B M SMNE S i

FT8BR o

BEZEARREMNERE
2015 2014
2015 4 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
2,407,146 2,619,230
2,725 1,497
2,409,871 2,620,727
734,603 765,259
1,114,504 1,277,220
4,258,978 4,663,206

FrEE SRR RENERRAN—
FRBERARERERE -
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tatements (continued)
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TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 21 EZRENRRENERE(Z)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of REREHIKR - ESEMNAMENERE
trade and bills payables, based on the maturity date, is as ZB B B RBREE AT T ¢
follows:
2015 2014
20154 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T AREFIT
Within 1 month or on demand — & B A sk Z sk E EA 3,346,548 3,594,756
More than 1 month but less than 3 months  #2iE—{& A8 R =& A 275,680 312,885
More than 3 months HBiE=MEA 636,750 755,565
4,258,978 4,663,206
RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 22 FEWEFEIE
2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Receipts in advance for contract work &R TIETEWERIE 82,059 119,776
Receipts in advance represented advances received from AW GRIEIR SR RS SR AR
customers for which the related construction work has not HRARETREEREFREK -

been commenced as of the end of the reporting period.

All of the receipts in advance are expected to be recognised as Fr A TEWGRIETE AR — F AR AU
revenue within one year. A e

165



166

YUANDA CHINA HOL

Notes to the Financial Statements (continue

Bt 75 R 2R Y & (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

23 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 ERHAXRHEMEMR
2015 2014
20154 2014 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTT
Payables for staff related costs JEf B TR AS 282,537 245,274
Payables for miscellaneous taxes JETFERS 127,619 144,374
Payables for transportation and FEfTiE s MR
insurance expenses 46,942 31,305
Payables for interest expenses FERF B FX 5,798 5,451
Payables for construction and purchase EENEEME  MEK
of property, plant and equipment SR A N 1 b {55 PR ME FE 1~ 3R
and land use rights 97,184 63,943
Deposits from sub-contractors DEEE RS 64,390 73,942
Deposits from suppliers for contracts’ HIERE S IHIRIE R
bidding and performance [B#IRE 145,237 186,634
Amounts due to the Controlling eI AR SR B EL BB A |
Shareholder and his affiliates (Note (i) B FRIB (A2 () 3,224 2,271
Others Hih 21,021 19,145
Financial liabilities measured RBEK AT ENERBE
at amortised cost 793,952 772,339
Derivative financial instruments: TESRBTA :
— held as cash flow hedging —EHEREREFHT A
instruments (Notes 30(d)(i) & (e)) (K7 30(A)0) % () 55,927 22,902
— other derivatives (Notes 30(d)(ii) & (e)) —HMTAETHE
(Baz 30(d)i) % (e)) 2,915 8,507
Provision for outstanding legal claims REMERRERE
(Note 32(b)(iv)) (HTz£32(6)(iv)) 28,161 -
880,955 803,748
Note: Bt -
)  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have (0] ZHEBEER TR EREEE

no fixed terms of repayment.

Eod
A

yom h
KA o

=

BHN2015F 12 A31 HM AR 13.5
A& (2014F12A831H: AR
1448 87T) &N - FiB T
X REMENRBRER —FREE
FIRE AR ERSIREREE -

Except for amounts of RMB13.5 million at 31 December 2015
(31 December 2014: RMB14.4 million), all of the accrued
expenses and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on
demand.
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24 BANKLOANS

24 RITERK

(@ The Group’s short-term bank loans (excluding the @ AEEMNEHRTER(TEE
current portion of long-term bank loans) are analysed as RESRITE RS BNEZ S ) /IR
follows: T

2015 2014
2015 £ 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Secured by property, plant and DAAREE Y - BE R
equipment and land use rights SRAE DA I £t {5 AR A
of the Group (Note 24(c)) VEIRAR (B 72 24(c)) 310,000 400,000
Guaranteed by an affiliate of AR S E AR AR ER Y
the Controlling Shareholder Bt B A Al ER 150,000 130,000
Unguaranteed and unsecured A HE(R K7 A 2,740,000 2,660,000
3,200,000 3,190,000
Add: current portion of long-term 0 RERERTTE R
bank loans (Note 24(b)) BNERER S (A7t 24(b)) 557,104 130,000
3,757,104 3,320,000

The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as

follows:

Secured by property, plant and
equipment and land use rights
of the Group (Note 24(c))

Guaranteed by a third party
(Note 24(d))

Less: current portion of long-term
bank loans (Note 24(a))

UAREENYE - BE
I 55 AR DA R -t {50 F e
YEHI (M 5E 24(c))
B % = R
(Ktat24(a))

W REIRITERH
BNERER S (ATt 24(a)

AEBENRBRITER DA

™
2015 2014
2015 F 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
630,000 130,000
227,104 =
857,104 130,000
(557,104) (130,000)

300,000
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24 BANK LOANS (continued)

(b)

The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as
follows: (continued)

The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as
follows:

Within 1 year or on demand —FENGIRER
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERTFNR

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate carrying value of
the property, plant and equipment and land use rights
pledged for the Group’s bank loans is RMB748.3 million
(81 December 2014: RMB555.6 million).

At 31 December 2015, the long-term bank loan is
guaranteed by a third party, where a subsidiary of the
Group provides a counter-guarantee to this third party.

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to RMB4,680 million (31 December 2014:
RMB1,800 million) were utilised to the extent of
RMB3,270 million (31 December 2014: RMB1,130
million).

24 SRITEXR(E)

(b)

AEBEHRHRITE KD 740
T: (&)

AEBORBBITERNER
1R

2015 2014
20154 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AREBTR
557,104 130,000
300,000 -
857,104 130,000

R2015F 12 A31H » LA &£
ERRTERDEBNYE -
TR 55 R 5% 4 DA I &= th {55 FRAE Y
BWEEABEAARMKETI83EE
JT(2014F 12 A31H : ARKE
555.6 BB IT) °

R2015F 12 A31H - REIRTT
EXABYE=FER mMA
SEH— B R R BImZE
VE=FRERER -

R2015F 12 A31H » A& E
RIRITRBAARKE 468088
JL(2014F 12 A31H : AR¥
1,800B&87T) EBAARE
3,2708H & st(20144 12 A 31
BH: ARKA1130BETT) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BANK LOANS (continued)

() Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the loans would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
30(b). At 31 December 2015, none of the covenants
relating to the bank loans had been breached (31
December 2014: None).

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

On 10 April 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the directors of the
Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) as a mean of rewarding and retaining certain
employees of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development with the Group. A trust has been set up
for the purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may purchase
shares in the Company from the Stock Exchange with cash
contributed by the Group, and to hold such shares until they
are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to time, at its
sole and absolute discretion, select any employee of the Group
(other than those classes of employees specifically excluded
as stated in the Share Award Scheme) for participation
in the Share Award Scheme and grant such number of
awarded shares to any selected employee of the Group at nil
consideration. The directors of the Company are entitled to
impose any conditions (including a period of continued service
within the Group after the award) with respect to the vesting of
the awarded shares.

The Share Award Scheme came into effect on the Adoption
Date, and shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (i) such date
of early termination as determined by the directors of the
Company.

24

25

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()
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(BrREEHEIN - UARK RERL)

RITER (&)

f AEBWETRITER KA
ERESBEBIIVNERET
R HRERAAEE - AKX
SEERZWH  AERERE
BER ASETHEERS
B TEARLH  AEBETER
BEoRERMNE—THEBERER
Fff 5£30(b) © 720154 12 A 31
B #EERTMEREITER
BRI (20145128318 -
) o

URAEERS

20134 A108 ([HRMBEH]) - &
NAIEBHRM—IERG B8 ([
D IREET &) - ERREIRBIEAE
EETEE  URARERE—FH
EBREIAEAR - BEAEERDER
STEIRAIERT

IRIEIR G SR8 - ISR LALE
AEBBHORSE - KB E A
RAREY - ARBEZERHAEH
SRAVEEBAL -

RRBERATRORTERIBTRELRSE
E(EfIE S (B p R EIER T &
FEHZFERESRRIN) 20 8’
BIETE - AR EERERASTEAE
ERERHAHEE RN, - K
NEEEHERSEBRBR D EINE
e (REN R REERE R E
E gy HAR) ©

Pt B2 B ST I ER A B B AR AR
RRATEREE LI : () 3R B
FHERFER - R(I)ARRESMH
RERPRIEHRE] -
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Details of the shares held under the Share Award Scheme are
set out below:

2
20
Average

25

015

156
No. of

purchase shares

price

held

¥ kG

LURAEER 5 ()

Befn EERpET BRI BT -

2014
2014
Average No. of
purchase shares
price held
Value Y FERG Value

BEE (| BE HEE 2 H EE

HK$ ’000 RMB’000 HK$ 000 RMB’000

BT TR AR% BT T ARE

Tr T

At 1 January m1A1H 20,214 9,270 30,000 115,863
Shares purchased FNIEE R

during the year 0.45 7,380 2,653 0.57 17,304 7,781
Shares granted and FARLKEE

vested during the year ) (27,007) (11,713) (27,090) (13,864)

At 31 December Mm12 A31 8 587 210 20,214 9,270

On 5 May 2015, 27,007,000 ordinary shares held under the
Share Award Scheme were awarded to certain employees of
the Group with a fair value per share of HK$0.69 (equivalent
to approximately RMBO0.54 per share). The fair value of the
awarded shares is determined by reference to the closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares on 5 May 2015. These
awarded shares were vested on 14 May 2015.

7201585 H5H » 27,007, 000/% 18 1
I {p R SR AN EEREE TR
SEETEE  EHEAREBEEAER
0.6978 T (HERNERARKE0.54
T0) o REVROHW AR BEIZER
AN EIE B 201545 A 5 H U
BETE - ZSRERHEN2015F5
R14B5%8 -



e S 171

ments (continued)
W I ¥R R M =E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

26 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26 BHPBRRRANFES
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@ Movements of current taxation in the consolidated @ BB E AR B ARF I8
statement of financial position are as follows: FEhaT -
2015 2014
20155 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Income tax payable at 1 January ®1 A1 BRERNFREE 207,994 190,963
Exchange adjustments Ve b (9,199) =
Provision for income tax on the FAEFTFE R R

estimated taxable profits for FriSEi s (At 7(a)

the year (Note 7(a)) 46,279 50,825
Income tax paid during the year FREFER (15,860) (33,794)

Income tax payable at 31 December A 12 A 31 B HFE FREEE 229,214 207,994
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26 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26 AOHUBRRRANESR (2)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(o) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) BRERAECHBEENARE:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities RE FFE AR R FER AV IR &
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MEEELMBENAKIS D R
position and the movements during the year are as FAEEIT -
follows:

Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of the
related
depreciation,
and
government Remeasurement
grants and Impairment  Provision for of the
related losses  warranties, fair value of
depreciation ontrade  legal claims, derivative
Unused RAEE andother  and expected financial
fax bt i Writt  receivables contractlosses instruments
losses  FESRE down of g5k B Eifitg
Deferred tax arising from: ABR  NREGEE  iventories  HEEUEN  FEEER  fEERIE Total
ATIIEERENEERE HEEE  RAEAE Gt vl HEEE AERNEE  NOAEE it

RUBOD  RVBOD  RVBON  RWBOO  RWBOO  RWBOO  RWBOOD
ARRTT ARRTT ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARRTR ARETR

At1 January 2014 ROUEIR1A 106,799 34,362 3,663 80,631 37,216 2652) 236,135
Crededicharged)tohe RARREESA/

consoldated stetement o (&) )

proft o loss (Note 7(8) 20,028 (6.216) (1329 17415 2,869 1634 40,401
Credted o resenves Note 700) IEEA B 100) - - = = - 11083 11,088
At 31 December 2014 0141231 B 126,821 2,136 2,334 98,046 40,085 (7,799) 27629
Exchange adjusiments B (679 - - (3m) (541) - (1597
(Cherged)credtedtothe it et

consoldated statement of (18)/3HA

proft o loss (Note 7a) W) (16974) 1216 (321) 3974 15,551 6,390 45,8%
Crecitet o resemves (Note 100 WEETAdE D) - - = - - 5128 6128

At 31 December 2015 RA015E12A31A 10,174 35,352 2013 181,643 55,005 4314 37591
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(©)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position:

BARRAT —F—FARAEH

otes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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26 EHPBRRRANAED (&)

(©

Deferred tax assets recognised AE BB OR R A
in the consolidated statement REELERIEEE
of financial position

Deferred tax liabilities recognised AS FIITSAA R R A
in the consolidated statement REELERIEE FE

of financial position

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
2(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences arising from certain subsidiaries of the
Group of RMB748.8 million at 31 December 2015 (31
December 2014: RMB557.8 million), as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. Except for the amount of RMB391.3 million
which will not expire under the relevant tax legislation, the
remaining unused tax losses at 31 December 2015 will
expire on or before 31 December 2023.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2015, temporary differences relating
to the retained profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC amounted to RMB2,787.0 million
(81 December 2014: RMB2,720.8 million), of which no
deferred tax liabilities in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these profits was
provided as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it
is probable that such profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

B O AR R ARER R

HIBEENBEREEE
2015 2014
2015 4 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
340,992 289,696
(3,401) (2,067)
337,591 287,629

REREEIRIEE E

IRABHIRE 2(s) FTE & 5T K
ANEBIRFL2015512 531 B
BASEEE THEBARELD
R ) FA A5 I8 B 18 I A] HRE B
= ARET748.8 B 27T (2014
F12H318 : AR¥S57.888
TO) EREERBEAE  RER
BT RARER R BB ARK
O] e 78 FERRAR A1 A DASK 88 AT
FRANEERARE313EE
TSR BHISER T ER -
AT 20156 12 A 31 BHIAKRED
FARISEESR 2023 F 12 A 31
B sk AR = e

AEREIEHIARE

R2015F12 A31H @ AL
& A B B A B B4R B A A
TRy = ARK2,787088
TL(20144F12 A31H : AR
2,720.8B87T) + ERENRE
o IRZE B EMSTIBNE
EHREEEELEE REL
ANRQ RS I S H B A 7 AR
BB mMEEEEZEFNH
AJRERE AT AR RIED K
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27 PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES 27 RIEEE
2015 2014
2015 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARETRT

At 1 January W1A1H 169,884 157,084
Exchange adjustments P& H R (8,993) -
Additional provisions made ERHRRBINE R 113,817 104,132
Provisions utilised EBAEE (51,429) (91,332)
At 31 December W12 H31H 223,279 169,884
Less: amounts included as current WS ERBEE

liabilities at the end of the MBBERNNSRE

reporting period (48,222) (41,254)

175,057 128,630

Under the terms of the Group’s construction contracts with its BERAEEEAR S HEESR
customers, the Group will rectify any defects arising within one G AREBBeRTESREER
to ten years from the date of completion of the construction RESK - BIEEERREEERTIN
contracts, depending on the terms negotiated with each HHR—ETFRNELERNRRE -
customer. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of It BB SRR —E+FA
the expected settlement under these construction contracts TERMEEERMBBEZEEEER
in respect of construction contracts completed within one KO TE B AE HRE Ry B (=L ST AT 42 o £
to ten years prior to the end of the reporting period. The HE BT R A BT AR R R R AL -
amount of provision takes into account the Group’s recent IWEFE AT RE H IRIR IS R REFRTR ©

claim experience and is only made where a warranty claim is
probable.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

28 EX - #EREKE

(@  Movements in components of equity @ A SHE

AEBEHE GRS AR D
HIT) R R SR B AR
EHESEHRT - FONEF
AR IR A B 6 (B B 4 22 4B X

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in

the Company’s individual components of equity between
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Shares held
under share
award
Share Share scheme Capital ~ Exchange Accumulated
capital premium  BERAED reserve reserve loss Total
s RbEE  HEAERG EAGE EiGE 2tk 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
MNole28C)  (Note280))  MNote28)  Mote 28l (Note 280
Wiosy)  WEosuy  Bessen KRB0 Ko
At1 January 2014 Ro014E1 BB 28 A B (1935 - - [B9gy) (2102) 1816790
Changes in equity for 2014: N4z ERES:
Loss for the year EnER = - - - - (5,461) (461)
Otfer comprehensive income RipRmkE = - - - 487 - 487
Total comprehensive income SEbEeE - - LA | N
Dividends approved inrespectof  SLE—EEIEZHE
the previous year (Note 28(0)i) (2800 - (390519) - - - - (390519)
Shares purchased under the FERNEREES
share award scheme (Note 25) R3hiEzs) - - (7,781) - - - 7.781)
Sheres granted under the RERAZE IR
share award scheme (Not 29] LR HeE2s) - - - 15211 - - 15217
Shares vested under the FERDERHESE
share award scheme (Note 28] il ) - - 13,864 (15277) - 1413 -
. S L 6083 .- S T 1418 083009
At 31 December 2014 01412831 B 2 £ 519728 1,083,835 9210 S (84979 (6,150 1433163
At1 January 2015 201551818 519728 1063885 | (@20 - - (BA9TS)  (G6150) 1433163
Changes in equity for 2015: N5 EHET:
Loss forthe year EngR = = = = - (3,084 (3,084)
Other comprehensive income A2aka - - - - 56,512 - 56,512
Total comprehensive income thwagE = s = - %512 (3084 58428
Diidends approved inrespectof SR HEZIRE
the previous year (Note 28(0)(i) (Hiz280/) - (489,788) - - - - (489,788)
Shares purchased under the RERDZ&EEE
share award scheme (Note 25 R (Hize) - - (2,659) - - - (2,653)
Shares granted under the FERDERTEIR
share award scheme (Note 25 R (Hze) - - - 14,705 - - 14,705
Shares vested under the FERDERHESE
share award scheme (Note 25) Vol - - 11,113 (14,705) - 2,092 -
. O .1 I S0 o . 2% Wi
At 31 December 2015 R015E12831 A2 519,723 574,047 (210) = (28.463) (56,242) 1,008,855

RO MR EFIBEIIMNT -
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 28 EX - RERRE(E)
(o)  Dividends ) KB
()  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () HBEBRFANENZEART
Company attributable to the year AR AR B
2015 2014
2015 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Final dividend proposed after %45 HAoR 14 a5 a9 R HA

the end of the reporting R EFREBRES T
period of HK$Nil per ordinary (2014 4F : EARE@EAL
share (2014: HK$0.10 per 0.10/%7T)
ordinary share) - 489,788
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the iy HBERE—VBEE/E
Company attributable to the previous financial NAQNRBERS  BER
year, approved and paid during the year N S HEME RO
2015 2014
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARETT

Final dividend in respect of the  _=—BA B E /& #y 7R Ef

previous financial year, i S E AR 0.10 T
approved and paid during (2014 F : HFRRE B
the year, of HK$0.10 per 0.08787T) ' ERAFE
ordinary share HEAE R AT

(2014: HK$0.08 per
ordinary share) 489,788 390,519
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28 EX - RERBRE(E)

(c)  Share capital © B
()  Issued share capital: () BEITRA:
2015 2014
2015 20145
No. of shares No. of shares
R EE PG
’000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’000
TR AR%®TR TR ARETT
Ordinary shares, ZER > B8
issued and fully paid: REE
At 1 January and R1A1BR
31 December 128318 6,208,734 519,723 6,208,734 519,723
(i) At 31 December 2015, 587,000 ordinary shares (i) H2015F12H31H @ &

are held by the Company under the Share Award
Scheme (31 December 2014: 20,214,000 ordinary
shares) (see Note 25).

N AR IR (0 2B A 85
B587,000/% i@ (2014
128318 : 20,214,000
iR imak) (RFIE25) ©

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves 0 EENEERER

(i)

(i)

Share premium (i)

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Shares held under share award scheme (ii)

The amount represents the consideration paid for
shares held under the Share Award Scheme.

B RE

FARGRERZHASE
ERREE 22 (1961 4F
FE=IBEN - BERE KRB
51) 5 B4 KB -

R M RIS T K
1]

R AR B A D D ET
R ERMDATHORE -
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the
grant date fair value of unvested shares under the
Share Award Scheme granted to employees of the
Group that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(r)(ii).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the aggregate
carrying value of non-controlling interests
acquired by the Group in excess of the total
considerations paid; (ii) the surplus/deficit of the
carrying values of the controlling equity interests
in subsidiaries under common control disposed
of over the considerations received; (iii) the
difference between the carrying values of the
controlling equity interests in subsidiaries acquired
and the considerations paid under the Group’s
reorganisation completed in 2010; and (iv) the
difference between the carrying value of the net
assets acquired and the consideration paid for the
acquisition of a business under common control in
2012,

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association of the
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC,
these subsidiaries are required to set up certain
statutory reserves, which are non-distributable.
The appropriation to these reserves is at discretion
of the directors of the respective subsidiaries.
The PRC statutory reserves can only be utilised
for predetermined means upon approval by the
relevant authority.

28 EBEX - HERRE(E)

(d)

REOHEERE N (B)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

£ ]

BEARGH R ARERD =R
stElRAKEEB R TE
EENE LIl eupi s dan=
BHAARBENED
REBRBN ST BERER
A FE2(r) (i) B AR 2 11

%
e I

HAh 5 4E () AN B Pk
B IR R AR R
EfERENEEE: ()B
& 2 RE I A R
FZERR IR R R AR E B E
W BRI ZREREAL ¢ (iii)
FIT U i B B8 1 A B0 12 AR AR
ERREEEBEAEER
2010 F e EAB S AR
BzEMER: RivVR
2012 FUYLIE 2 RIE HI 2
BETE S EERMER
TRAREZHENEE -

P BE TE

RIBA KB B8 A A
MAEBERAR - ZFH
BRBARYET A D
IKESETE R © MR F
ey D o i & KT BB 2 B
EEWIHTRE - PEUEE
ERERINER S S 1
HAENTBRETERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) PRC statutory reserves (continued)

In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
regulations, with effect on 1 January 2012, a
reserve for production safety is required to be
set up and to be appropriated at a fixed rate
on the revenue of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC. The reserve can be utilised
for expenses or capital expenditures incurred in
connection with production safety.

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into
the presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(v).

(vii) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in the fair
value of hedging instruments used in cash flow
hedges pending subsequent recognition of
the hedged cash flow in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in
Note 2(g).

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of
reserves (including the Company’s retained profits, if
any, and share premium) available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company is RMB574.0 million
(81 December 2014: RMB1,063.8 million). The directors
of the Company do not propose a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$0.10 per
ordinary share) (see Note 28(b)(i)).

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEHEIN - UARK RERL)

28 EBEX - HERKRE(E)

(d)

HEHIEERE M ()
v) FREEEEMN (2

tEsh - RIEE 20124F1 A
1 B AR MR B
B AEERERE AR
AR EEENEEL
BIRS Z2 EEEE © %
REA AN ERZE
EEMEENMAZHER
Fx o

(vi)  ShEE i

SMNEFIRBRIRERINE
B BHRERREINEEH
EERINEZR - ZHHE
TIRBEM 2V A8 e
ATBURBREE -

(vii) 3% i

HhERERRAEEER
BEHE2ARBELRE
Eh AT SR AN & SRR A
RERDHHRSREN
BamEEMAMEHhT
BENARBENRFFE
BHBMED

Al DR

R2015F12H381H * Al f{t &
T ARRFIRRRA FEERTE (2
BARRRENE(ME) ki
MRE) BARBST40BE T
(2014412 A31H: AR ¥
1,063.8B&7T) - N¥kEHIRA
BH% ARREZEETEHH
HZE2015F 12 A31 HIEFE R
AR E (2014 4F : GREE
B2 0.1087T) (R HIFE28(b)()) °
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

®

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
the Group defines adjusted net debt as total debt (which
includes bank loans and trade and bills payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents and short-term investments. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity other than
amounts recognised in equity relating to cash flow
hedges, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2015, the Group’s strategy was to maintain
the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at an acceptable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to equity
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

()

28 EBEX - HERRE(E)

BEARER

AEEEREANTERERER
RERAEBEBEFBELH6
N BUEEFE B E E m KR
B EEERRKE -2 RS
BERABERARGSRELER
B RAR A [0 3% K A H b ) 25 40
FAER MM o

AEBEEE L E s REE
HERGEHE  N@EFARSE
BEKFRERFHREKRED
WEIBEE AR HHES
RREZ HEBG T WHE
BARREZEHE NGB

-

AREZEHBFEHEERN
HERAGEEEBHEERER -
BUME  AEERELHAE
FEGRBER (AP BREIRTT
ERARESERNRRENE
%) IR BORAE - WRE
ERSEEYREHRE - &
HAEEARNBEMA DA
BB R IF R AT B A S - L
5 B H T R 2R R AR
HYSERERS ©

M2015%F « REEWMBERAE
HAERFCRAERFEBEENRL
T RAERKE o BRI
HEZIELE - AEEREE
PR TREARE SRR -
BOIHRMD BEEERTR
ERNEBRENEHER
ELUR D ER o
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 28 EX - FERRE(E)
(i  Capital management (continued) n EBXREEE)
The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 R2015% 2014912 A31 HEY
December 2015 and 2014 was as follows: R ERSEE AN RO ¢
2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥ETR

Current liabilities: mBAas:
Trade and bills payables B HENTLENEE 4,258,978 4,663,206
Bank loans RITER 3,757,104 3,320,000
8,016,082 7,983,206
Non-current liabilities: ERBEE :
Bank loans RITER 300,000 -
Total debt HRIETS 8,316,082 7,988,206
Add: proposed dividends o BRARE - 489,788
Less: cash and cash equivalents A e RRSEEY (3,006,827) (2,662,517)
Less: short-term investments VB R HARE - (300,000)
Adjusted net debt RARFER 5,309,255 5,510,477
Total equity Ry ey 3,043,059 3,788,274
Less: hedging reserve W AR 28,304 (329)
Less: proposed dividends A FERIEE - (489,788)
Adjusted capital RAREAR 3,071,363 3,298,157
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio &FHE BEKHEEARLE = 173% 167%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are A | S H AR F B A R

subject to externally imposed capital requirements. SZHNEBHEINEY & AAR FE PR ] o
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the material related party transactions

entered into by the Group during the year are set out below.

(@) Transactions with the Controlling Shareholder and his

affiliates

Revenue from contract work BRIIZUA

Sale of raw materials SHE R

Purchase of raw materials BB RME

Rental income from operating leases  4& <2 E/FHES I A

Net increase/(decrease) in TEI REESE A TR TET R
non-interest bearing advances 2]k, Crd) F58
granted to related parties

Net increase in non-interest HERAESE A T U T ET S
bearing advances received FASRIE INFER

from related parties

Further details on guarantees provided by a related party
for the Group’s bank loans are disclosed in Note 24(a).

EXBBERS

BRI I S5 B 75 Rk Eo At #E 20 B BR O 4
FRON - RERERNEFRR] A B AR
ARZEINIT

(@)  ERFEARARR Ko LB A ] XX
2

2015 2014
20154 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

54,884 46,734
370 415
4,766 12,919
- 21
16,032 (1,701)
953 185

— 2B ALTRAEBRITE
RIRENERNE—SFHFBER
B 5E 24(a) B EE -



A e S TR 183

Statements (continued)
I py F T ELNEELC )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBES - UARKRERL)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EBEXREHAIRZ(E)
(continued)
(b)  Key management personnel remuneration ) EEEBEAEHN
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBEFBEE ABRFH -
Group, including amounts paid to the directors of the BERMESIHENANATIES
Company as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows: TATBFRIBEAT
2015 2014
2015F 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Short-term employee benefits EHIEEEF 1,904 2,032
Retirement schemes contributions RG220 224 216
Equity compensation benefits in BRAND =ENETEIR
respect of share award scheme R M8 (et 25)
(Note 25) 1,270 1,316
3,398 3,564
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note FeEa SN EIRA (R
6(0). KizE6(0)) °
()  Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected © LEWmRARBEERIZHERE
transactions
Certain of the related party transactions included in it E A FE 29(a) B9 T R B
Note 29(a) above constitute connected transactions AR GHER ETHRAFE14AZERT
or continuing connected transactions as defined in ATHBERZIHFEBER
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. These transactions 2 WERSHERE LA
are disclosed in the Report of the Board of Directors as FUAZENRENESTSHRER

==

required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. °
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 HMEEREERSMIANAAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS =]

AEBASNBEEBBIEPEERN
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. =E - nEHES - MXRREERME o

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to gross
amount due from customers for contract work, trade and
other receivables and derivative financial instruments.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of the gross amount due from customers
for contract work and trade and other receivables
other than derivative financial instruments, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers and
debtors. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
and debtor’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers and debtors
as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customers and debtors operate. The
Group generally requires customers and debtors to
settle progress billings and retentions receivables in
accordance with contracted terms and other debts in
accordance with agreements. Credit terms of one to
ten years may be granted to customers and debtors for
retentions receivables, depending on credit assessment
carried out by management on an individual customer
or debtor basis. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers and debtors. The Group
entered into a credit insurance scheme with an insurance
company to insure against the recoverablility of certain
trade receivables arisen from the Group’s overseas
construction contracts. At 31 December 2015, 7% (31
December 2014: 13%) of trade and bills receivables are
insured by this credit insurance scheme.

T E AR S BA T A% E R R A
5 B0 P DA B 32 5% B e 0 B S L B
BIEBR M IER -

@)

EERRE

AEENEERREIBREE
WEFERIZERE BHR
HibBUR R TEERMT A -
EEECFBEERK  ¥Z

FEEEEEZEEERAR

REREFARIZATEUR
B 5 REMBURGR (FTESRT
BB mE - ERlEETE
DA BAERER REB AT -
ZETHEFRERLREBA
XA B BRI B9 3R 1 A 8k IR IR
RAMREND TEEEER
FREBARBRF QLT
KBIRERENEEER o K
SE—RERATEFREBA
BIE A EHRFUS B E3E &
BEHZEEEEMER - KT
EREERERNEPSEHAZRE
EETHEEFTEME - A&
HEaggegRnEr REFAKRT
NE—FETFHNEER —
BnE  AEEYEARF R
BEHBARGERR - NEEH
EERBR ARG ZEERRA
2l - DURFE A] Uk B AR & B Hh
IREANETESEUK -
R2015F 124318 ' 7% &
SEBFREREEZLEE
REETEIRE (2014 F 12 A 31
H:13%) e



30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Transactions involving derivative financial instruments
are entered into with either banks or recognised futures
exchange in the PRC, and with whom the Group
has signed netting agreements. Given the high credit
standing of the banks and futures exchange in the PRC,
the management of the Group does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer or
debtor rather than the industry or country in which the
customers and debtors operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers
and debtors. At 31 December 2015, 2.1% (31 December
2014: 2.4%) and 7.1% (31 December 2014: 7.0%) of
the total gross amount due from customers for contract
work and trade and other receivables (excluding the
amounts due from the Controlling Shareholder and his
affiliates) were due from the Group’s largest debtor and
five largest debtors, respectively.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in Notes 32(a) and 24(d), the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
gross exposure to credit risk arising from gross amount
due from customers for contract work and trade and
other receivables are set out in Notes 17, 18 and 19.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed by the
Group, which includes the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on current rates at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest dates the Group can be required to pay:

30 BRKEREEREMIANAARE
BE(E)

AEBESFERMBHA &
ERAEERNENRENER
EXRERBREFR - AE
ENBRRRERERERDE
CHBREETRERENG
o NEREERTHIRS
BREETESRBERSTHR
MAEBRERE  nmEHEE
HRERRHESHR -

TRAFMNAEETES R
BERTESRABERREH
BMEEBENSRTARZIAA -
DERBRFERRSRE (B
R A R =G E NN SR
Ak (B FBH ) REH®RE
IR A SE A MBRTH ) RAK
ERZNFNZEBHEL -

2015
20155
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BREAERRERL
More than Carrying
Within 1 year but amount
1 year or on less than at 31
demand 2 years December
—FRH BA—F Total W12831H
EZK BYRME #ct REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Trade and bills payables BHRNFRENRE 4,258,978 - 4,258,978 4,258,978
Accrued expenses and 1R ER AT 2 LT
other payables measured Bz R E M FER 3
at amortised cost 793,952 - 793,952 793,952
Bank loans RITER 3,851,319 302,950 4,154,269 4,057,104
8,904,249 302,950 9,207,199 9,110,034
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 UHEABEERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) b) mEBESRMRE(E)
2015
2015%

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
AH*EEIRIR% I)Ib /I)II.A

More than More than

Within 1 year but 2 years but

1 year or on less than less than

demand 2 years 5 years
—£R BE—F BBmF Total
REER BLRME BOREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT ARBTFR ARBTR

Derivatives settled gross: EHEETET RS
Forward foreign exchange ﬁf’ﬁfﬁﬁumiiﬂ‘ T
contracts held as cash AREAINESF
flow hedging instruments — (#fz£300a)) :
(Note 30(d)(i):
- outfiow it (2,060,984) (497,500) (45006)  (2,603,490)
- inflow i 2,034,460 489,685 44,489 2,568,634
Other forward foreign HizENEAR
exchange contracts (HizE30a)i) -
(Note 30(a)i):
- outflow - (287,383) (37,635) (24,059) (349,077)

th
~inflow —mA 297,839 37,526 23,742 359,107
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(o)  Liquidity risk (continued)

Trade and bills payables

Accrued expenses and
other payables measured
at amortised cost

Bank loans

EIRNARKENER
RESHR AT B R FERT
F 2 S EL A AR

RITER

30

BEEREEREMIANDIAE
B#)

b) RBETER(E)

2014
2014 4

Contractual

undiscounted

cash flow
within 1 Carrying
year oron amount at 31
demand December

R—F Ak E
EREECZERAR M12A31H
BRI RE AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT
4,663,206 4,663,206
772,339 772,339
3,398,496 3,320,000
8,834,041 8,755,545
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 UHEABEERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(E)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) () mBECRER ()
2014
20144

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
ARAMRRS (RE),/RA

More than More than

Within 1 year but 2 years but

1 year or on less than less than

demand 2 years 5 years
—FR BiR—F R Total
FEEK BORmE EBIRAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  AR%TR

Derivatives settled gross: BHEEITET RS
Forward foreign exchange ~ $H{EBR&REHHT

contracts held as cash AREHINERR

flow hedging instruments — (#fz£300a)) :

(Note 30(d)(i):

— outflow — i (1,169,966) (682,691) (155,581) (2,008,238)

- inflow A 1,179,560 675,287 153,037 2,007,884
Other forward foreign HiRHINEA R

exchange contracts (HF300a)i) -

(Note 30(a)i):

~ outflow - (711,609) (77,104) (14,551) (803,264)

th
~inflow —mA 756,145 78,284 14,413 848,842
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at

variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively.

(i

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting

period:

Fixed rate borrowings:
Bank loans

Variable rate borrowings:

Bank loans
Total borrowings

Fixed rate borrowings
as a percentage of
total borrowings

BERREE
RITEH
EBHRREE
RITEH
HERE

BENREES
HERERIL

30 BRKEREERESMIANARE
BE(E)

(€ FIxEkR

AEENHNREREZRER
BEE - mF BN K EEHM
RHEHWEERED RS A RE
XReRENERRRRALE
EMEER -

() FIERR

TRALAEEEENR
EHREE BB R

1
2015 2014
20155 20144

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate

BERA=% BB A=
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
4.74% 2,780,000 5.70% 2,330,000
3.70% 1,277,104 5.49% 990,000
4,057,104 3,320,000

69% 70%



30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(©)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s loss
after tax and retained profits by approximately
RMB10.9 million (2014: RMB8.4 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after
tax and retained profits assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied
to remeasure those non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk at the end of
the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s
loss after tax and retained profits is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expenses of such a
change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
revenue from and costs incurred for contract work,
and purchases of imported materials which give rise
to receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
USD, Euro, SGD, AUD, GBP, CHF, KWD, Bahraini Dinar
(“BHD”), CAD, RMB, HK$, Qatar Riyal (“‘QAR”) and
Vietnamese Dong (“VND”).
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

A significant portion of the Group’s business is
overseas construction contracts, and these contracts
are generally settled in currencies other than RMB.
The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts
to minimise its exposure to currency risk arising
therefrom. The Group’s management believes that
RMB will appreciate against most foreign currencies in
the foreseeable future, and accordingly, the Group will
continue to increase the use of forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge its foreign currency exposure.

(i) Forecast transactions

The Group hedges portion of its estimated foreign
currency exposure in respect of highly probable
forecast revenue from overseas construction
contracts.

The Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge its currency risk and classifies
these as cash flow hedges. At 31 December
2015, RMB2,034.5 million (31 December 2014:
RMB1,179.6 million) of the forward foreign
exchange contracts have maturities of less than
one year after the end of the reporting period, and
RMB534.2 million (31 December 2014: RMB828.3
million) of the forward foreign exchange contracts
have maturities of more than one year after the end
of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had forward
foreign exchange contracts hedging forecast
transactions with a net negative fair value of
RMB34.2 million (31 December 2014: a net fair
value of RMBO.1 million) recognised as derivative
financial instruments.

30 BRKEREERESMIANARE
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EREEAZNEERR - K
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B Bt NEEEEEE
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FRZR

REB LRI = H/E
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HED EETINEER o

REBFERAEBINES R
¥R EEE RIS EE
REEMEBER - KR 2015
#F12H31H AR &
2,034.56 B & (2014512
A31H: AR¥1,179.6
BEL)MERBIINESR
WEH A RRESRREE
HELR—F  MAHKA
R¥534. 28 & (201445
12 A31H : AR#828.3
BET)NEBIINESR
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognised assets and liabilities

Change in the fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts that economically hedge
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies is recognised in profit or loss
(see Note 6(a)). At 31 December 2015, the net fair
value of forward foreign exchange contracts used
by the Group as economic hedges of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies was RMB10.0 million (31 December
2014: RMB44.8 million) recognised as derivative
financial instruments.

In respect of the remaining receivables and
payables denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk

The following tables detail the Group’s exposure
at the end of the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using
the spot rates at the end of the reporting period.
Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency are excluded.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(iii)

(Gross amount due from
customers for coniract work
Trade and bils receivables
Deposts, prepayments
and other receivables
(Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and bils payables
Bank loans
Accrued expenses and
ofher payables

(3ross exposure arising from
recognised assets and liabilfes

Notional amounts of forward
foreign exchange contracts
used as economic hedges

Net exposure arsing from
recognised assets and liabifes

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

BIEFARIREE

EARUTRENRE
Rt BRSNS

RERRLSRN
BARATRENRE
Riras

B R E

EEDEERRREL
HEREE

liEbsapl
NERRAZEE

EEDEERRREL
HERE

USD  Euro

EST 1 U

30 BRKEREEREMIANAARE
B(#E)
d BEERERGE)
(i) EBRHEWERE(Z)
2015
215§
S0 AU GBP CHF KWD BHD CAD RMB HKS QAR WND
ME% Bk 48
RE RLED ZHE S0E meAn ARE  Rm AR HEE

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RME'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

A% ARE ARM ARM ARE AR® AR® ARE ARM ARM ARM AR¥ ARE
frn f1 T fr fx T fr T fr fi I fn fn
B0 - BW M - - - - - - ...
BTOB M50 175 240 B2 BISTE BN 1368 /AU - G640 T80 2N
%8 - - - 5B tOg - - - - X - -
GG w6 % 26 - - - 4% M - - -
oo @ - - - @) - - - - @ - -
A = = = e = e = a4 e s
6o - - - @Be) - - - - @e0) - - -
BT68M  M415 160136 03300 101442 20021 24BN 1365 M8 (9876) M6ie 790 20
0080 - (135 (191369 (M) - - - - - - - .
G602 M45 UGET 22011 (9000 2002 48N 1368 M8 (9876) 68 790 20
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 FHXERREEREMIBENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(E)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) EEREREE)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EBRHEWERE(Z)
2014
pllk
UD Bwo SGD AD GBP CHF KMD BHD CAD RMB  HKS QMR WD
Ml N 58

AOETOFMET BT BB ROAD BRR RRA meAn ARR B MR 4EE
RVBOI RMBOOD RNBOOD RMBO0D RMBOOO RUBO0D RVBOOD RVBOND RBOD RBO) RBOI) RMBON) RMBOOD
ARE  AR® ARR ARE ARE ARE ARE ARR AR ARR ARR ARR ARW
i i i ot o o of T Tt T T

Gross amount due from BUEPEAIRES
customers for contract work 41,361 - 006 8t - - - - - - - - -
Trace and bl recevebles DHRYRENSE 86314 9362 133142 230808 6 SBE18 2015 14B 082 - 0B B B
Deposits, prepayments fre B RAEYG
and ofher receivables 172714 - - 00 5288 12215 - - - - 197431 - -
Cashand cash equivalents RERREZEN 8679 352 § M 528 - - - 20 2o - - -
Trade and bils payables BARATREASE 042 g - - [0 peoy - - - - - -
Accrued expenses and other payables  Et S RAIERT @ - - - - - - - o3 - - -
Gross exposure rsing fom BETEERAREL
recognised assets and liabiltes MEkEE 843033 38040 162,176 234365 386,980 208283 22015 14435 012 (10579 288235 23874 23742
Notional amounts offovard et
foreign exchange contracts hECREREE
el economic hedges (%25 (439 (B Q5609 (63D (%) - - @a® - - - -
Net expostre asig fiom BETEERAREL
recognised assets and liabiltes MRk SR 106781 23671 28805 18696 80618 204872 2015 1443 4936 (190579 288235 88714 2742
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (ivy BBESR
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRETHMAEERNHE
change in the Group’s loss/profit after tax and &S A RXEARR
retained profits that would arise if foreign exchange RSN [ = 70 5% B BB AT
rates to which the Group has significant exposure g RERFABHMAE
at the end of the reporting period had changed Rk A RERFTE - AR
at that date, assuming all other risk variables B/ ERFERR

remained constant. DX ER BN E) o
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

usD
Euro
SGD
AUD
GBP

CHF

BHD
CAD
RMB
HK$
QAR

VND

e

BT
AT
BT

R

H L)ARR
RERSERAL
EmERE
MEKXTT
AR¥
BT
RERFIH
BrE

30 BRKEREEREMIANAARE
BE(E)

(o EERERGE)

(iv) BRESH(E)
2015 2014
2015% 20144
Decrease/
(increase) in
loss after
tax and Increase/
increase/ (decrease) in
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ profit after
(decrease) in retained (decrease) tax and
in foreign profits in foreign retained
exchange HEER exchange profits
rates R4,/ (30) rates  FBEFIER
MEER  RREBAE SV R RE
LA (TR) #&m/ CEL) EFH/(TE) %/ (Rd)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETT
5% 26,521 5% 30,396
(5%) (26,521) (5%) (30,396)
15% 4,389 15% 3,018
(15%) (4,389) (15%) (3,018)
5% 6,228 10% 2,448
(5%) (6,228) (10%) (2,448)
15% 34,681 20% 3,178
(15%) (34,681) (20%) (3,178)
10% (3,313) 15% 10,281
(10%) 3,313 (15%) (10,281)
5% 9,687 15% 26,121
(5%) (9,687) (15%) (26,121)
5% 1,055 5% 936
(5%) (1,055) (5%) (936)
5% 580 5% 613
(5%) (580) (5%) 613)
10% 2,499 10% 419
(10%) (2,499) (10%) 419
5% (42,448) 5% (24,529)
(5%) 42,448 (5%) 24,529
5% 13,015 5% 12,252
(5%) (13,015) (5%) (12,252)
5% 338 5% 1,015
(5%) (338) (5%) (1,015)
5% 1,275 5% 1,009
(5%) (1,275) (5%) (1,009)
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 FHXERREEREMIBENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(E)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) EEREREE)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (ivy BIRESH(EZ)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ loss/profit after tax and retained profits
measured in their respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The sensitivity analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.

ERENNDMERES
HEAREERASEHN
NREEEENREE
18,/ R R A e BN
R g HigmEHES
FRERANERBRESA
R A25 R -

BRE D BRBE EAIN
MERNESAETHE
AEBFEMSAEER
Wt RS E BRI INE
FERE SR TE - BN
ERASERARNNEE
AN B FHERM AR SE
& R &) A RE 3R & e R
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(M

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

30 BRKEREEREMIANAARE
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)  Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Recurring fair value

measurements:
BEQAALEETE
Assets EE
Derivative financial instruments: T4 &gl T A :
— Forward foreign exchange — R HRONE S A
contracts
Liabilities 8E&
Derivative financial instruments: $74 €@ TE :
— Forward foreign exchange — R HRONE S A

contracts
— Forward aluminium contracts

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

— BRI AR

30
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the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2R P A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RSB IEHAIN - IARE RER)

BEEAREEREMTIANDAE
{8 (#&)

(€)

NABEEE)

(@

BRoREEHENSHE
ERARE)

Fair value measurements

categorised into Level 1

PERE-EBNAAEETE

2015 2014
2015 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETFIT
35,683 85,059
58,842 25,490
- 5,919
58,842 31,409
REL Z 20154 & 2014 F
12A31BIEFEARN  F1
[ X 55 2 [ 2 [id] 9 4 55 2

(i)

HE  MEEARERE
BEZHERE - "EBZK
RRREEEZHREHMH
BEAERAABEER
ZRENEEIAR -

EFRARBEIENH S
MEERARHARKE

M 20154 K 2014412 A
318 » A& A #
SHAK AT AR A & B T AR
HEEAALBEL RS
A=ER -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

31

COMMITMENTS

(@)

Capital commitments

At 31 December 2015, the outstanding capital

commitments of the Group not provided for in the

consolidated financial statements were as follows:

Commitments in respect of land
and buildings, and machinery
and equipment
— Contracted for
— Authorised but not

contracted for

Operating lease commitments

ML RIETF - AR
M ES N SRAR O A

—B2&I#
—ERBERITH

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating

leases are payable as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years
After 5 years

—FR
—FRERFA
hEFi&

The Group leases certain land, plant and buildings,

motor vehicles and other equipment under operating
leases. Except for the lease of land for a period of 50
years, the remaining leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases

includes contingent lease rentals.

BAEYE

R2015512 A31 H » RAGE

BmERPIWARBE 2 AEE R
EBERNFENT ¢
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
7,114 5,558
£t 59,181
66,295 64.739
$E LT E AR

R2015512 31 H » "EER
BRO RS LHE RN R

REEHSLRBAT
2015 2014
20154 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFIT
5,381 4,937
979 1,348
3,384 3,497
9,744 9,782

AEERELEHEMEES
T BMEREBT  AER
H A% - B R HIS0 F A L it
HES HRHE—RNFR
H1E105 - IMBERERES
HERMA GRS EERE -
MERERSIREE -



32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

Guarantees issued

32

At 31 December 2015, the Group has issued the

following guarantees:

Guarantees for construction
contracts’ bidding, performance
and retentions (Note (i)

Financial guarantee to a third party
(Note (ii))

BEARIE - BOR
REEVER (B2 ()

A5 =7 e R I Rk
(e i)

The maximum liability of the Group as of the end of the
reporting period under the guarantees issued is the

amount disclosed above.

Notes:

(i) As of the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company do not consider it probable that a claim
in excess of the provision for warranties provided by
the Group will be made against the Group under any

of the guarantees.

(i) As mentioned in Note 24(d), a third party provides
a guarantee in respect of a long-term bank loan of
RMB227.1 million drawn by the Group. At the same
time, a subsidiary of the Group provides a counter-

guarantee to this third party.

Statements (continued)

I py F T ELNEELC )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

HREE

(BBHEBES - UARKRERL)

(@ BELER

M2015F12 A31H » Z&EERE
B AR -

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
2,189,897 2,676,717
227,104 =
2,417,001 2,676,717

AEERBERRREBEHD
EROESEER/LXMEE
M8 °

Hraz -

M

(i)

R|ERR - ARAESFR
731 AL BE R AR R AT 4B
REREEIRHBRAEE
Frie it RIEBIBROER R -

AART EE 24(d) BTt - EE =T b
REBRRH AR 2271
BETRABITERIRHEE
1R o RIBF - AN B/ — R B
BRAMZE = FiRERE
R o
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32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

U)

In December 2009, Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India, both wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Group, jointly received a notice that they are
being sued by a former sub-contractor in India in
respect of Shenyang Yuanda’s and Yuanda India’s
non-performance of the terms as stipulated in the
sub-contract agreement entered into between
Shenyang Yuanda and this former sub-contractor.
Shenyang Yuanda has made a counterclaim
against this sub-contractor for non-performance
of the sub-contract agreement. As at the date
of these financial statements, the above lawsuit
is under reviewed before the Arbitral Tribunal
of New Delhi in India. If Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately INR1,410.8 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB137.8 million) plus accrued
interest. Both Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda
India continue to deny any liability in respect of
the non-performance of the terms of the sub-
contract agreement and, based on legal advice,
the directors of the Company do not believe it
is probable that the arbitration tribunal will find
against Shenyang Yuanda and/or Yuanda India.
No provision has therefore been made in respect
of this claim.

32 HREEE)

(b)

BRZEBRROVIREE

U)

R2009F 128 » A& E
MR EM B R RERSR
AREE RN LR RS
- BEEHEDERA S
BrEhERERNRENEER
AT RBITER R XN E I AT
DEER LD BHE
FTBRIERUR B 5F < V&G
BANMERESBEARE
BITHBEGER L RS
R RZEFUHHwEXA
H - EaliSRFAIERENE SR
EEMBERRE - WERS
BRAREHEERNEHER
BLEEF FEHSEmE
BN REAYET,410.8B 8
ENEEL (BERHAR
#137.8 A& IT) MFEETFI
B o EGRANMIERA
HEESREATRETY
BEGERNEREE
MBBERER - AAA
EEWTEEPHESH
EEGERAR,REER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(i)

(i)

In April 2009, Shenyang Yuanda received a
notice that it is being sued by a construction
agent in Kuwait in respect of damages arose
from the termination of the agency agreement
entered into between Shenyang Yuanda and this
former agent. As at the date of these financial
statements, the above lawsuit is under reviewed
before the Court of First Instance in Kuwait. If
Shenyang Yuanda is found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately KWD11.2 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB239.5 million). Shenyang
Yuanda continues to deny any liability in respect of
the claim and, based on legal advice, the directors
of the Company do not believe it is probable that
the court will find against Shenyang Yuanda. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of
this claim.

In November 2014, Yuanda Canada, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, received a notice
that it is being counterclaimed by a contractor
in Canada alleging damages due to additional
costs incurred for project delays caused by
Yuanda Canada and costs incurred in completing
and rectifying Yuanda Canada’s work. This
counterclaim is derived from a claim registered
by Yuanda Canada against the contractor in
respect of its non-payment of CAD2.9 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB13.6 million) for
the value of work performed by Yuanda Canada.
If Yuanda Canada is found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately CAD13.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB63.2 million) plus accrued
interest. Yuanda Canada denies any liability in
respect of the counterclaim and, based on legal
advice, the directors of the Company do not
believe it is probable that the court will find against
Yuanda Canada. No provision had therefore been
made in respect of this claim.

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARKARERL)

32 HWREEHE)

b) BEIRBRNBARBEGE)

(i)

(i)

MR2000F 4 H + & 5 =
REBEBA - FEEWEEE
R ZERIEREERGR
AN E AT IERT L AR
WEKIEMEENIBER
AR o UL FH S HRE
HER » EatFsAEREHE
BRIAEERE o 4385
BRAWHTEEE LEE -
TEHA© S ERRE R sE L)
EN2A8REEENR
(HEERHOARKE 23958
BiL)c BERAERESR
REBRZHEMEE -
MRBEREE R » ARF]
ESW M EEEES A
B R AR - R
IETE R R o

R2014F11 8 A& E
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32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(v)

In addition to the lawsuits mentioned in Notes
32(b)(i) to 32(b)(iii), certain subsidiaries of the
Group are named defendants on other lawsuits
or arbitrations in respect of construction work
carried out by them. The directors of the Company
consider the amounts involved in these lawsuits
and arbitrations are insignificant to the Group,
both individually and in aggregate. As at the date
of these financial statements, these lawsuits and
arbitrations are under reviewed before courts or
arbitrators. If these subsidiaries are found to be
liable, the total expected monetary compensation
may amount to approximately RMB57.6 million,
of which RMB28.2 million has already been
accrued by the Group at 31 December 2015.
Based on legal advices, except for the lawsuits
the Group has already provided for, the directors
of the Company do not believe it is probable that
the courts or arbitrators will find against these
subsidiaries of the Group on these lawsuits and
arbitrations.

32 HREEE)

(b)

BRZRRRNAANAE(E)

(iv)

B B 5 32(b) (i) Z 32(b)(iii)
Pt ) SR A5 - AR EE
THEBARIKIEAE BE
FrEfTRRETIRMmEM
FAKMEHAIWEA o A
RAIEFRBZEFDR
mEF RS BERRE
HYHAEE T 5L E
Re Rt EMBE®RE A
Hi - bieReA R EIEHR
EE R E B EE - Wik
EWMBAREHEER L
BT EfcEHERSE
AEEHEARKESTES
T ERMARK2827
ST BASER20155F
12 A31 AEHREHE - BB
EEER  RAEEDE
REBHERFAIN - ARF)
EEZW T BEEZEF AR
M B e FFARM
HA RN EERZZN B
NEEREF °
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33 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 33. ATFEEMNMERRERE
POSITION
2015 2014
—E—RF —E—pUe
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR¥T AREFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RIBRARIMIEE 42,071 27,366
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other TEAST R Efth FE IR
receivables 1,788,742 1,684,280
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIBESEEY 3,423 8,957

1,792,165 1,693,237

Current liabilities RBAE
Accrued expenses and FEET RS R L Ath EAT K
other payables 825,381 287,440
Net current assets TREEESE 966,784 1,405,797
NET ASSETS BEE 1,008,855 1,433,163
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERR G 28
Share capital P& 519,723 519,723
Reserves i 489,132 913,440
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,008,855 1,433,163
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on FE 2R 20164 3 A 30 B #thifE & 5
30 March 2016. I o
Kang Baohua Tian Shouliang
EEE HFR
Director (Chairman) Director

EF (L) EF
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34

35

36

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures set out in Note 6(a), 10(b), 19,
23, 26(d) and 30(d) have been adjusted to conform to current
year’s presentation.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company as at 31 December
2015 to be Best Outlook Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a few new standards and amendments to
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2015 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

34.

35

36

BB T

& 71 R Ff 5E6(a) ~ 10(b) ~ 19~ 23 -
26(d) %30(d)H) & F LB FERIEA
FEZ2RMPE o

HEERBRERAF

RABIEEZRR - NATEINR2015512
A31 Az E# RBKERA R RER
BRAR  EDRRBE B ST
B o Sh BB BERAIHEARALT
ERMMBRE

BZ2015F 12831 HIEFEECHE
B RERKIERT ~ FHETER R
RETRER N E

HELZHHRETIZAS  BRe
FERIEEEE RS THE2015F
12 A31 B I FE R AR FETER]
REANSET - HW AR EMBEHRE
B o 52 S e 2R RERNERT &
FELATNEIE - BAjgela A EHE -
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2015 (continued)

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

2012 F F 2014 FF R BI85 2 & 2R 2 F /2 2

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

BARRAT —F—FARAEH

otes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 765 3 3R P A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EIEHAIN - IARE RERL)

BE2015F12A31 BILFEECHE
B e R A BB FTRT 22 A ~ RS
AR REARERNE ()

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
LA B

g2 i&

FIRE &t

AR AR

1 January 2016
201641 H1H

1 January 2016

REtERE 165 MBS ERIFE 8K IER]  BEAER T EREE S 20161 A1 H

Amendments to IAS 27, Equity method in separate financial statements

BEstERE 27 R 2AER] - BUAHHREA Bk

Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative

B & ERIE 1R AER] - KFEEH

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes — Recognition of
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

1 January 2016
20161 A1 H
1 January 2016
20161 A1 H

1 January 2017

BIFRESHERE 2R ZAER] » rEH — R BB EIRE LT B E AR 201751 A1 H

IFRS 9, Financial instruments.: Hedge accounting and
amendment to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IAS 39 (2013)

1 January 2018

BRI HRELRFE N - M TR - EHP BB R EIR B R EER)

FE9 - BT RBIRESF2ERE 3972 155] (2013)
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
BB S ERIE 155K - KA EFERZ Ko
IFRS16, Leases
BRI B S ERIE 1658 - HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new standards and amendments to
standards is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that except for IFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers, for which the Group is still under
the process in assessing the impact of its application, the
adoption of the remaining new standards and amendments
to standards is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

20181 A1 H
1 January 2018
20181 A1 H
1 January 2019
201941 H1H

REE ERHEZF ] Z R R ERIE
RINEE  WTBRHERIIFERE -
BRIAL - 5[ BERMBHREERE
165 KEEFERZ K] ME
AEBDEFHEERBZEZE  Rit
29N REBERMER T ER R
EREFT B &  ARA/ERAT
RABEHEEMBEHRRERERY
@,
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Five Year Financial Summary

LEUNBRE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEERAN  UARBEER)

Results E4+

Revenue WA

(Loss)/profit from operations 484 (E518),/F5
Finances costs BEMKA

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/profit for the year

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Bial (&18), /78
TS

FR(BER),/FIE
AT AL
ARBBR
TR
FR(BR),/FIE

EERAE
FRBEE

mBBE
mBRE

MBEEFE
BEERRPAR
FRBRE
FEE

EXR A

BTG
R

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
20154 20144 2013 20124 20114
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
8,594,364 10,038,653 10,872,404 11,844,578 10,797,007
(168,395) 295929 192,700 560,999 1,195,863
1,107 (234,398  (160,019)  (131,543)  (156,779)
(167,288) 61,531 32,681 429,456 1,039,084
(443)  (10,424) (6,133)  (51,546)  (213,482)
(167,731) 51,107 27548 377910 825,602
(192,257) 25597 104,367 438,491 850,324
24,526 25,510 (76,819)  (60,581)  (24,722)
(167,731) 51,107 27548 377910 825,602
1,728,283 1635986 1,664,416 1,660,774 1,478,160
12,610,538 12,804,657 12,270,108 10,559,387 8,600,332
10,817,304 10,521,672 9,592,913 7,794,337 5,783,105
1,793,234 2,282,085 2,677,195 2,765,050 2,817,227
3,521,517 3918971 4,341,611 4425824 4,295,387
478,458 130,607 234,875 230612 275340
3,043,050 3788274 4,106,736 4,195212 4,020,047
519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723
2,658,041 3425653 3,781,681 3,790,962 3,553,562
3,177,764 3945376 4,301,404 4,310,685 4,073,285
(134,705)  (157,102)  (194,668)  (115473)  (53,238)
3,043,050 3788274 4,106,736 4,195212 4,020,047
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